
NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

APRIL 7, 2014 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Submitted By 

The City Manager 

 

 

 

 





 

 

 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your agenda.  Also included are suggested 
or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your consideration and 
possible adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
VISION: 
To honor the legacy of the past and build a strong, vibrant future and be an 
attractive place to live, work, and grow a business. 
 
GOALS: 
Provide a safe, clean, and livable city 

 Practice good stewardship of infrastructure  
 Maintain high quality professional community oriented police and fire protection 
 Conserve resources in an environmentally responsible manner 
 Encourage development toward a walkable, livable community 
 
Provide effective and efficient local government 

 Demonstrate excellence in community services 
 Maintain fiscally sustainable government 
 Attract and support a committed and innovative workforce 
 Develop and maintain efficiencies with internal and external partners 
 Conduct city business and engage in public policy formation in a clear and 

transparent manner 
 
Build a sense of community 

 Communicate internally and externally in a timely and accurate manner 
 Develop platforms for transparent, deliberative and meaningful community 

conversations 
 Involve all stakeholders in communication and engagement activities 
 Encourage volunteerism and new methods for community involvement 
 Implement the connectedness of community outlines in the Master Plan 2008 
 
Attract and retain business investment 

 Clearly articulate an economic development plan 
 Create an inclusive, entrepreneurial culture internally and externally 
 Clarify, reduce and streamline investment hurdles 
 Consistently enhance the synergy between existing businesses and growing 

economic sectors 
 Market the advantages of living and working in Troy through partnerships 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS 
Adopted: Monday, February 7, 2011 

 



STRATEGIES 

 

 

 

 

TOP 12 
 

2013-2014 
 

“STRATEGY IS ABOUT MAKING CHOICES, TRADE-OFFS; IT’S ABOUT DELIBERATELY CHOOSING TO BE DIFFERENT” 

              - MICHAEL PORTER 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 
3 

5 

7 

9 

11 

2 

4 

6 

8 

10 

12 

Attract and retain quality employees 
Investigate programs to improve morale 
 

Improve public perception of the city 
Analyze social media opportunities to connect 

Find a solution to the Downtown 
Development Authority Bond issue 

 

Strengthen Police/Fire  
Consider putting police officers back in schools 
 

Redevelop Site/Office Space 

Evaluate efficiencies of outsourcing services  
consider outsourcing other areas 

 

Improve roads 
Examine budget allocation 

 

Support the Transit Center 
Hold promotional events 

 

Promote Troy  
Find a way to convince youth to stay in Troy 
 

Re-evaluate Vision 2020 

Develop 3-Year budget projections 

Increase lines of communication with Troy Schools  



 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA 

April 7, 2014 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers 

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION:  Pastor Doug Schmidt with Woodside Bible Church 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Trail Life Scout Troop #007 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 On Behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program for the 
Months of November & December 2013, Community Affairs Director Cindy 
Stewart will Present a Check in the Amount of $981 to Jeff Evans, Boys & Girls 
Club of Troy Executive Director (Introduced by:  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs 
Director) 1 

C-2 Chief Gary Mayer will Present a Proclamation for Sexual Assault Awareness 
Month to Megan Widman, Social Action Program Director from HAVEN  
(Introduced by: Gary Mayer, Chief of Police) 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 2 

D-1 No Carryover Items 2 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 2 

E-1 No Public Hearings 2 



F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS 

AND BUSINESSES: 2 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 3 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

H-1 Disposal/Sale of Remnant Property (Introduced by:  Mark Miller, Director of 
Economic and Community Development and Brenda Carter, City Manager’s Office 
Intern) 3 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 10 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 
Council Appointments – None 10 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority; b) City Council Nominations – Charter Revision 
Committee, Historic District Commission, Personnel Board, and Zoning Board of 
Appeals (ZBA) 10 

I-3 No Request for Closed Session 14 

I-4 Amendment to Chapter 26 – Parks Ordinance – General Regulations (Introduced 
by:  Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent of Parks, Streets and Drains) 14 

I-5 Transit Center Property (Introduced by:  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney) 15 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 16 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 16 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 16 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 17 

a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – March 17, 2014 ....................................... 17 
b) City Council Special Study Meeting-Draft – April 1, 2014 ................................... 17 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: 17 



a) Sexual Assault Awareness Month – April, 2014 ................................................. 17 
b) Fair Housing Month – April, 2014 ....................................................................... 17 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 17 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option - Mowing and 
Landscape Services ........................................................................................... 17 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option - General 
Consulting Engineering Services ........................................................................ 17 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Home Chore 
Lawn and Yard Services ..................................................................................... 18 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option - Aggregates .... 19 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Hauling and 

Disposal of Dirt and Debris ................................................................................. 19 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award - Upgraded Landscape 

Maintenance ....................................................................................................... 19 

g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Award – Oakland County Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles ............................................................ 20 

h) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Contract 14-1 – 
Section 36 Overlay ............................................................................................. 20 

J-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization from Jed C. Sprunger, 
President of the Troy Community Lions Club 20 

J-6 Adoption of the Oakland County Hazard Mitigation Plan 21 

J-7 Troy Racquet Club Rates 22 

J-8 Addendum #1 – Aquatic Center Backwash Discharge Modification 22 

J-9 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed and Four Permanent Easements for 
Belleclaire Estates Site Condominium – Sidwell #88-20-14-351-098, 099, 100, 
101 and 102 22 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 23 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 23 

a) April 14, 2014 - Conditional Rezoning Application (File CR-011) – Proposed 
Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts, West Side of Livernois, North of 
Town Center, 3409 Livernois, Section 21, from O (Office) to BB (Big Beaver) 
District ................................................................................................................ 23 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time): 23 

a) Amendments to Chapter 74 – Solicitations ........................................................ 23 



b) Detroit Water and Sewer Department – Discussion – Status and Business 
Issues ................................................................................................................. 23 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 23 

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 23 

M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 23 

N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 23 

N-1  No Council Comments Advanced 23 

O. REPORTS: 23 

O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 23 

a) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)-Final – September 11, 2012 ........................ 23 
b) Planning Commission-Final – February 11, 2014............................................... 23 
c) Traffic Committee-Final – February 19, 2014 ..................................................... 23 
d) Building Code Board of Appeal-Draft – March 5, 2014 ...................................... 23 
e) Planning Commission-Draft – March 11, 2014 ................................................... 23 
f) Planning Commission-Final – March 11, 2014 ................................................... 23 

g) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)-Draft – March 13, 2014 ................................ 23 
h) Traffic Commission-Draft – March 19, 2014 ....................................................... 23 

O-2 Department Reports: 23 

a) Fire Department and Alliance Mobile Health 2013 Annual Reports ................... 23 
b) Building Department Activity Report – March, 2014 ........................................... 23 

O-3 Letters of Appreciation: 23 

a) From Eric Messinger Regarding Assistance from Officer Greg Pokley and 
Sergeant Justin Novak ....................................................................................... 23 

b) From Art Leftridge Regarding Police Academy and Ride Along with Tim Alter 
and Josh Muhlenbeck ........................................................................................ 23 

O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 24 



P. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS OF 

THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND NOT FROM 

TROY BUSINESSES): 24 

Q. STUDY ITEMS: 24 

Q-1 Fund Balance 24 

R. CLOSED SESSION: 24 

R-1 No Closed Session 24 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 24 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 25 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 25 

April 14, 2014 Regular Meeting ............................................................................. 25 
May 12, 2014 Regular Meeting.............................................................................. 25 
May 19, 2014 Regular Meeting.............................................................................. 25 
June 2, 2014 Regular Meeting .............................................................................. 25 
June 16, 2014 Regular Meeting ............................................................................ 25 

July 7, 2014 Regular Meeting ................................................................................ 25 
July 21, 2014 Regular Meeting .............................................................................. 25 
August 11, 2014 Regular Meeting ......................................................................... 25 
August 25, 2014 Regular Meeting ......................................................................... 25 
September 8, 2014 Regular Meeting ..................................................................... 25 
September 22, 2014 Regular Meeting ................................................................... 25 

October 6, 2014 Regular Meeting ......................................................................... 25 
October 20, 2014 Regular Meeting ....................................................................... 25 

November 10, 2014 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 25 
November 24, 2014 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 25 
December 1, 2014 Regular Meeting ...................................................................... 25 

December 15, 2014 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 25 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 25 

April 21, 2014 Special Budget Meeting ................................................................. 25 
April 23, 2014 Special Budget Meeting ................................................................. 25 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION:  Pastor Doug Schmidt with Woodside Bible Church 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Trail Life Scout Troop #007 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 

a) Mayor Dane Slater 
Jim Campbell 
Wade Fleming  
Dave Henderson 
Ellen Hodorek  
Ed Pennington  
Doug Tietz 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member Tietz at 
the City Council Special Study Meeting of April 1, 2014, due to being out of the county. 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of       at the Regular 
City Council Meeting of April 7, 2014, due to           . 
 
Yes:       
No:       

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 On Behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program for the 

Months of November & December 2013, Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart 

will Present a Check in the Amount of $981 to Jeff Evans, Boys & Girls Club of 

Troy Executive Director (Introduced by:  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs 

Director) 
 
C-2 Chief Gary Mayer will Present a Proclamation for Sexual Assault Awareness Month 

to Megan Widman, Social Action Program Director from HAVEN  (Introduced by: 
Gary Mayer, Chief of Police) 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 2 - 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items 
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 No Public Hearings 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Article 17 – Members of 

the Public and Visitors: 

Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 

 Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 
the majority consent of City Council. 

 Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 
three (3) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 

 Any Troy resident or Troy business representative, not a petitioner of an item, shall be 
allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes total to address Postponed, Regular Business, 
Consent Agenda or Study items or any other item on the Agenda as permitted under the 
Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items On the Agenda from Troy 
Residents and Businesses portion of the Agenda. 

 Any Troy resident or Troy business representative, not a petitioner of an item, shall be 
allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes to address any topic not on the Agenda as 
permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items Not on the 
Agenda from Troy Residents and Businesses portion of the Agenda. 

 Any member of the public who is not a Troy resident or Troy business representative shall be 
allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes to address any topic on or not on the Agenda as 
permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Comments for Items On or Not On the 
Agenda from Members of the Public Outside of Troy (Not Residents of Troy and Not From 
Troy Businesses) portion of the Agenda. 

 All members of the public who wish to address the Council at a meeting shall be allowed to 
speak only if they have signed up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen 
minutes after the meeting’s start time. Signing up to speak requires each speaker provide his 
or her name and residency status (Troy resident, non-resident, or Troy business owner). If 
the speaker is addressing an Item (or Items) that appear on the pre-printed agenda, then the 
speaker shall also identify each such agenda item number(s) to be addressed. 

 City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority vote of the City Council 
members. 

 Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 
should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 3 - 

The following has been approved by Troy City Council as a statement of the rules of decorum for 
City Council meetings. The Mayor will also provide a verbal notification of these rules prior to 
Public Comment: 
 
The audience should be aware that all comments are to be directed to the Council rather than 
to City Administration or the audience. Anyone who wishes to address the Council is required 
to sign up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen minutes of the start of the 
meeting. There are three Public Comment portions of the Agenda. For Items On the Agenda, 
Troy Residents and Business Owners can sign up to address Postponed, Regular Business, 
Consent Agenda, or Study items or any other item on the Agenda. Troy Residents and 
Business Owners can sign up to address all other topics under Items Not on the Agenda.  All 
Speakers who do not live in Troy or own a Troy business may sign up to speak during the 
Comments on Items On and Not On the Agenda from Members of the Public Outside of Troy. 
Also, there is a timer on the City Council table in front of the Mayor that turns yellow when there 
is one minute of speaker time remaining, and turns red when the speaker's time is up.    
 
In order to make the meeting more orderly and out of respect, please do not clap during the 
meeting, and please do not use expletives or make derogatory or disparaging comments about 
any one person or group.  If you do so, then there may be immediate consequences, including 
having the microphone turned off, being asked to leave the meeting, and/or the deletion of 
speaker comments for any re-broadcast of the meeting.  Speakers should also be careful to 
avoid saying anything that would subject them to civil liability, such as slander and defamation.   
 
Please avoid these consequences and voluntarily assist us in maintaining the decorum befitting 
this great City. 
 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1 Disposal/Sale of Remnant Property (Introduced by:  Mark Miller, Director of 
Economic and Community Development and Brenda Carter, City Manager’s Office 
Intern) 

 
a) Remnant Property - Parcel A 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain parcels 
will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served obtaining 
sealed bids for the sale of a parcel property; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 4 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to initiate the sale of property utilizing the sealed bid process for City owned 
parcel 88-20-03-126-006, also known as Parcel A in the City Administration presentation;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to obtain an appraisal for the property. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to submit 
a Recommendation Bid Tabulation and a Purchase Agreement to City Council to approve the 
sale of the subject property.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
b) Remnant Property - Parcel B 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain remnant 
parcels will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served without 
obtaining sealed bids for the sale of a remnant parcel; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby FINDS that the 
public interest will best be served without obtaining a sealed bid in accordance with Resolution 
#2007-01-028 Policy Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess City Owned Remnant Property and 
AUTHORIZES City Administration to initiate the sale process with the abutting land owners of 
City owned parcel 88-20-10-101-018, also known as Parcel B in the City Administration 
presentation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to obtain an appraisal for the property. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to submit 
a Purchase Agreement to City Council to approve the sale of the subject remnant property.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
c) Remnant Property - Parcel C    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 5 - 

WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain parcels 
will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served obtaining 
sealed bids for the sale of a parcel property; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to initiate the sale of property utilizing the sealed bid process for City owned 
parcel 88-20-20-226-038, also known as Parcel C in the City Administration presentation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to obtain an appraisal for the property. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to submit 
a Recommendation Bid Tabulation and a Purchase Agreement to City Council to approve the 
sale of the subject property.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
d) Remnant Property - Parcel D-1    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain parcels 
will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served obtaining 
sealed bids for the sale of a parcel property; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to initiate the sale of property utilizing the sealed bid process for City owned 
parcel 88-20-16-476-028, also known as Parcel D-1 in the City Administration presentation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to obtain an appraisal for the property. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to submit 
a Recommendation Bid Tabulation and a Purchase Agreement to City Council to approve the 
sale of the subject property.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
e) Remnant Property - Parcel D-2    
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 6 - 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain parcels 
will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served obtaining 
sealed bids for the sale of a parcel property; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to initiate the sale process utilizing the bid process for City owned parcel 88-20-
16-476-028, also known as Parcel D-2 in the City Administration presentation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to obtain an appraisal for the property. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to submit 
a Recommendation Bid Tabulation and a Purchase Agreement to City Council to approve the 
sale of the subject property.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
f) Remnant Property - Parcel E    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain remnant 
parcels will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served without 
obtaining sealed bids for the sale of a remnant parcel; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby FINDS that the 
public interest will best be served without obtaining a sealed bid in accordance with Resolution 
#2007-01-028 Policy Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess City Owned Remnant Property and 
AUTHORIZES City Administration to initiate the sale process with the abutting land owners of 
City owned parcel 88-20-28-227-006, also known as Parcel E in the City Administration 
presentation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to obtain an appraisal for the property. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 7 - 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to submit 
a Purchase Agreement to City Council to approve the sale of the subject remnant property.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
g) Remnant Property - Parcel F    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain remnant 
parcels will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served without 
obtaining sealed bids for the sale of a remnant parcel; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby FINDS that the 
public interest will best be served without obtaining a sealed bid in accordance with Resolution 
#2007-01-028 Policy Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess City Owned Remnant Property and 
AUTHORIZES City Administration to initiate the sale process with the abutting land owners of 
City owned parcel 88-20-22-358-028, also known as Parcel F in the City Administration 
presentation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to obtain an appraisal for the property. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to submit 
a Purchase Agreement to City Council to approve the sale of the subject remnant property.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
h) Remnant Property - Parcel G 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain remnant 
parcels will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served without 
obtaining sealed bids for the sale of a remnant parcel; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 8 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby FINDS that the 
public interest will best be served without obtaining a sealed bid in accordance with Resolution 
#2007-01-028 Policy Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess City Owned Remnant Property and 
AUTHORIZES City Administration to initiate the sale process with the abutting land owners of 
City owned parcel 88-20-27-155-013, also known as Parcel G in the City Administration 
presentation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to obtain an appraisal for the property. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to submit 
a Purchase Agreement to City Council to approve the sale of the subject remnant property.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
i) Remnant Property - Parcel H 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain remnant 
parcels will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served without 
obtaining sealed bids for the sale of a remnant parcel; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby FINDS that the 
public interest will best be served without obtaining a sealed bid in accordance with Resolution 
#2007-01-028 Policy Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess City Owned Remnant Property and 
AUTHORIZES City Administration to initiate the sale process with the abutting land owners of 
City owned parcel 88-20-34-201-003, also known as Parcel H in the City Administration 
presentation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to obtain an appraisal for the property. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to submit 
a Purchase Agreement to City Council to approve the sale of the subject remnant property.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
j) Remnant Property - Parcel I 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 9 - 

Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain remnant 
parcels will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served without 
obtaining sealed bids for the sale of a remnant parcel; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby FINDS that the 
public interest will best be served without obtaining a sealed bid in accordance with Resolution 
#2007-01-028 Policy Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess City Owned Remnant Property and 
AUTHORIZES City Administration to initiate the sale process with the abutting land owners of 
City owned parcel 88-20-26-483-053, also known as Parcel I in the City Administration 
presentation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to obtain an appraisal for the property. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to submit 
a Purchase Agreement to City Council to approve the sale of the subject remnant property.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
k) Remnant Property - Parcel J 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain parcels 
will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served obtaining 
sealed bids for the sale of a parcel property; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to initiate the sale utilizing the sealed bid process for City owned parcel 88-20-
24-451-029, also known as Parcel J in the City Administration presentation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to obtain an appraisal for the property. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to submit 
a Recommendation Bid Tabulation and a Purchase Agreement to City Council to approve the 
sale of the subject property.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 10 - 

Yes:       
No:       
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 

Council Appointments – None 
 
a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 
 
b) City Council Appointments:  None 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Brownfield 

Redevelopment Authority; b) City Council Nominations – Charter Revision 

Committee, Historic District Commission, Personnel Board, and Zoning Board of 

Appeals (ZBA) 
 
a) Mayoral Nominations:   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City 
Council Meeting for action:  
 

Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
Appointed by Mayor 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 3 

Brake Dan 4/18/2016 4/30/2014 Requests Reappointment 
Dziurman Theodore 3/8/2014 4/30/2015 BCBA exp 1/1/2015 
Kornacki Rosemary 12/12/2015 4/30/2014 Requests Reappointment 
Swartz Robert D. 7/25/2013 4/30/2014 Requests Reappointment 
Vassallo Joseph J. 12/6/2013 4/30/2015  
Wilberding Bruce J. 2/18/2015 4/30/2016  

 

 
Nominations to the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority: 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 11 - 

Term Expires:  4/30/2017  

 Term currently held by: Dan Brake 
 
Term Expires:  4/30/2017  

 Term currently held by: Rosemary Kornacki 
 
Term Expires:  4/30/2017  

 Term currently held by: Robert Swartz 
 
Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 1 
Noble Carolyn 10/10/2015  

 

 

Yes: 
No: 
 

b) City Council Nominations:   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) 
to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 
 

Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Current Members: 
Last Name First Name App Res Expire Appointment Expire Notes 3 
Berk Robert 2/27/2015 4/30/2016  
Bernardi Maryann 11/18/2013 4/30/2015  
Bliss Daniel H. 11/16/2013 4/30/2015  
Howrylak Frank 2/1/2014 4/30/2014 Requests Reappointment 
Kanoza Shirley A. 2/21/2015 4/30/2016  
Weisgerber William 11/17/2013 4/30/2015  
Wilsher Cynthia A. 2/27/2016 4/30/2014 Requests Reappointment 

 

 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 12 - 

Nominations to the Charter Revision Committee: 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2017  

 Term currently held by: Frank Howrylak 
 
Term Expires:  4/30/2017  

 Term currently held by: Cynthia Wilsher 
 
Interested Applicants: 
Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 1 
Baker Julia (Judy) 5/7/2015  
McGee Timothy S. 8/13/2014  

 

 
 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 

Chambers Barbara 12/20/2015 3/1/2017  
Knight Barbara  3/1/2015  
McGee Timothy 8/13/2014 5/15/2015  
Partlan Ann 2/24/2013 3/1/2014 Historical Society Recommendation 
Petrulis Al  3/1/2017  
Schuchter Doris 11/22/2013 5/15/2015 Historical Society Recommendation 
Voigt W. Kent 1/23/2015 3/1/2016  

 

 
Nominations to the Historic District Commission: 
 
Term Expires:  3/1/2017  

 Term currently held by: Ann Partlan 
 
Interested Applicants: 
Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 1 
Viola Vincent 6/13/2014  

 

 
Personnel Board 

Appointed by Council 
5 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 13 - 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 2 Notes 3 

Abrahim Edna 8/15/2013 4/30/2015   

Baughman Deborah L. 2/22/2013 4/30/2014  Requests 
Reappointment 

Comiskey Ann M. 3/18/2016 4/30/2014  NO Reappointment 

Knight P. Terry 1/15/2016 4/30/2015 DDA exp 
9/30/2015 

Requests 
Reappointment 

New Lorraine 4/16/2014 4/30/2015   
 

 
Nominations to the Personnel Board: 
 
Term Expires:  4/30/2017  

 Term currently held by: Deborah Baughman 
 
Term Expires:  4/30/2017  

 Term currently held by: Ann Comiskey 
 
Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Resume 
Expire Notes 2 

Brake Dan L. 4/4/2014 Brownfield Redevelopment Auth exp 4/30/2014 
Rosenberg Michael 4/19/2015  

 

 
 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 Notes 2 

Bloomingdale Bruce 1/20/2014 4/30/2015   
Clark Glenn 5/31/2014 4/30/2015   
Courtney Kenneth 2/25/2015 4/30/2016   
Eisenbacher David 11/14/2013 4/30/2016   

Kaltsounis Orestis Rusty 12/12/2015 1/31/2015 Alternate P&R Bd exp 
9/30/2015 

Kneale A. Allen 3/9/2013 4/30/2014  Requests 
Reappointment 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 14 - 

Krent Thomas G. 12/13/2014 12/31/2014 PC Rep on ZBA Planning Comm 
exp 12/31/2013 

Lambert Dave 3/10/2016 4/30/2014  Requests 
Reappointment 

McCown Paul D. 7/10/2015 1/31/2015 Alternate  
 

 
Nominations to the Zoning Board of Appeals: 
 
Term Expires:  4/30/2017  

 Term currently held by: A. Allen Kneale 
 
Term Expires:  4/30/2017  

 Term currently held by: Dave Lambert 
 
Interested Applicants: 
Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 2 
Brandstetter Tim 5/1/2015 Traffic Comm exp 1/31/2015 
Chambers Barbara A. 4/30/2014  
Gottlieb Steve 11/8/2015  
Kaltsounis Andrew 12/13/2014 Liquor Advisory Comm. Exp. 1/31/2016 
Manek Ashish 5/23/2015  
Schultz Robert 10/22/2015  

 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
I-3 No Request for Closed Session 
 
I-4 Amendment to Chapter 26 – Parks Ordinance – General Regulations (Introduced 

by:  Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent of Parks, Streets and Drains) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Chapter 26 – Parks – General 
Regulations, as prepared by City Administration, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 15 - 

I-5 Transit Center Property (Introduced by:  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy is establishing a public transit and transportation center located 
near the southwesterly corner of Coolidge Highway and Maple Road in the City of Troy (the 
“Project”) and has determined that it is necessary to acquire certain land and interests in land 
owned by Grand/Sakwa New Holland, LLC and its successor or successors in interest as the 
case may be, including but not limited to Grand/Sakwa Properties, LLC, Grand/Sakwa 
Properties, Inc., and Grand Old Property Company, Inc. (the “Owner”) for public purposes in 
conjunction with the Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has determined that conditions necessitate the acquisition of the 
land and interests in land owned by the Owner described and depicted in Exhibit A consisting 
of all of the Owner’s interest in approximately 2.7 gross acres of land, in the City of Troy, 
County of Oakland, State of Michigan (the “Transit Parcel” as also described in a certain 
warranty deed recorded in liber 23097, page 576-577, June 21, 2001, Oakland County 
Records) and a permanent nonexclusive easement for ingress and egress for the construction, 
establishment, and operation of the public transit and transportation center on the Transit 
Parcel on, over, through, upon, and across the main boulevard driveway known as Doyle Drive 
connecting Coolidge Highway and Maple Road (the “Easement”) (the Transit Parcel and 
Easement are collectively referred to as “the Property”) for the Project and that benefits the 
public; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That by virtue of the authority vested in the City of Troy, the 
City of Troy DECLARES and DETERMINES that it is necessary to proceed with eminent 
domain proceedings to acquire and take the Property without the consent of the Owner for the 
public use, benefit, and purpose of the construction, establishment, and operation of the public 
transit and transportation center; and that the Property is necessary for the public’s use, 
benefit, and purpose and that a good faith written offer may be made in accordance with the 
requirements of 1980 PA 87, as amended; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City of Troy, in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 5 of 1980 PA 87, as amended, WAIVES federal and state cost recovery actions 
against the present owner(s) of the Property, including, but not limited to, actions arising out of 
a release of hazardous substances at the Property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That by virtue of the authority vested in the City of Troy, it is 
now DECLARED and DETERMINED that the property rights owned by the Owner as described 
in Exhibit A is hereby TAKEN; and  

 
INTEREST TAKEN:   All of the Owner’s interest in Transit Parcel and a 

permanent nonexclusive easement for ingress and 
egress for the construction, establishment, and 
operation of the public transit and transportation center 
on the Transit Parcel on, over, through, upon, and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 16 - 

across the main boulevard driveway known as Doyle 
Drive connecting Coolidge Highway and Maple Road 
as more fully described in Exhibit A.  

 
ENTITIES BELIEVED TO HAVE AN INTEREST IN THE PROPERTY: 

Grand/Sakwa New Holland, LLC and its successor or 
successors in interest as the case may be, including 
but not limited to Grand/Sakwa Properties, LLC, 
Grand/Sakwa Properties, Inc., and Grand Old Property 
Company, Inc.  

 
ESTIMATED JUST COMPENSATION FOR THE PROPERTY: $1,050,000.00. 

Subject to delinquent taxes, if any and the proration of 
real property taxes, if any, in accordance with 
applicable law. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the agents and attorneys for the City of Troy are 
DIRECTED to take the necessary steps to acquire the Property, including negotiating to 
purchase the Property, making a good faith offer in the amount of the estimated just 
compensation to purchase for the Property, and to institute condemnation proceedings against 
the Owner to take the Property, and take any other steps that are necessary to implement this 
action. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Manager of the City of Troy is AUTHORIZED TO 

SIGN any related documents upon approval of counsel to acquire the Property.  
 
Yes:       
No:       

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s)           , which shall be CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (J) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 17 - 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 
a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – March 17, 2014 
b) City Council Special Study Meeting-Draft – April 1, 2014 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:   

a) Sexual Assault Awareness Month – April, 2014 
b) Fair Housing Month – April, 2014 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:   
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option - Mowing and 

Landscape Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
 
WHEREAS, On March 1, 2010, Troy City Council awarded a three-year contract to provide 
mowing and landscape services with an option to renew for two (2) additional years to the low 
bidder, Green Meadows Lawnscape of Sterling Heights, MI (Resolution #2010-03-071-I-4b); 
and  
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council approved the option to renew the contract with Green Meadows 
Lawnscape, Inc. now of Shelby Township, MI , to provide one-year requirements of mowing 
and landscape services to all municipal property under the same contract prices, terms and 
conditions for an estimated total cost of $410,000; contract expiring December 31, 2013 
(Resolution #2013-03-057-J-4a); 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby DEEMS it to be in the City’s best interest to 
exercise the last one-year renewal option with Green Meadows Lawnscape, Inc. of Shelby 
Township, MI, to provide one-year requirements for mowing and landscape services of all 
municipal property under the same contract prices, terms, and conditions contract expiring 
December 31, 2014. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates, 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option - General Consulting 

Engineering Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 18 - 

 
WHEREAS, On July 21, 2008, City Council approved a three (3) year contract, effective 
through June 30, 2011, to provide General Consulting Engineering Services as required by the 
City and to assist the Engineering Department as needed, with the option to renew the contract 
for an additional three (3) year period under the same terms and conditions based on mutual 
consent of both parties, the highest rated bidders as a result of a best value process, with 
Hubbell, Roth and Clark, Inc., Spalding DeDecker Associates, Inc. and Orchard Hiltz and 
McCliment, Inc. at rates contained in the bid tabulation opened June 18, 2008 (Resolution 
#2008-07-239-F-4b); and 
 
WHEREAS, On June 20, 2011, City Council approved the three (3) year option to renew the 
contracts to provide General Consulting Engineering Services with Hubbell, Roth and Clark, 
Inc., Spalding DeDecker Associates, Inc. and Orchard, Hiltz and McCliment, Inc. under the 
same terms and conditions as the 2008 contract, at their respective revised pricing schedules 
effective July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2014. (Resolution #2011-06-144-J-4a); and  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy determines that Hubbell, Roth and Clark, Inc., Spalding DeDecker 
Associates, Inc. and Orchard, Hiltz and McCliment, Inc. has met all the contract terms and 
conditions in accordance with the Professional General Consulting Engineering Services 
Agreement dated July 21, 2008; and 
 
WHEREAS, Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc., Spalding DeDecker Associates, Inc. and Orchard, Hiltz 
and McCliment, Inc. have offered to extend their contracts for a three (3) year period under the 
same terms, conditions and pricing as the 2008 contract; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That a three-year extension of the contracts with 
Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc., Spalding DeDecker Associates, Inc., and Orchard, Hiltz and 
McCliment, Inc. are hereby APPROVED under the same terms and conditions as the 2008 
contract, effective July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the submission of 
contract documents and all other specified requirements.  
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Home Chore Lawn 

and Yard Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to provide seasonal 
requirements of lawn and yard services to Troy residents qualifying under the Home Chore 
Program with an option to renew for one (1) additional season to the low total bidders, Brantley 
Development, LLC of Inkster, MI as primary contractor, and Oakland Livingston Human Service 
Agency of Pontiac, MI, as secondary contractor, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened April 1, 2014, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting, with a contract expiration of April 30, 2016. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid documents, insurance certificates and all other specified 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 19 - 

requirements including a Public Service Contract executed administratively once in acceptable 
form. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option - Aggregates 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
 
WHEREAS, On April 8, 2013, Troy City Council awarded one-year contracts to provide 
Aggregate materials with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the low bidders, Tri-
City Aggregates Inc. of Holly, Edward C Levy Co. of Detroit, Novak Construction of Almont and 
Osburn Industries Inc. of Taylor (Resolution #2013-04-075-J4b); and  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has determined that Tri-City Aggregates, Inc. and Novak 
Construction meet all the terms and conditions of the original bid; and 
 
WHEREAS, Tri-City Aggregates Inc. and Novak Construction have agreed to exercise the one-
year option to renew under the same prices, terms, and conditions of the original bid; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the 
option to renew contracts to provide one-year requirements of Aggregates with Tri-City 
Aggregates Inc. of Holly, MI and Novak Construction of Almont, MI under the same contract 
prices, terms, and conditions; contract expiring April 30, 2015. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Hauling and Disposal 

of Dirt and Debris 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts for one-year 
requirements for the Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and Debris with an option to renew for 
one (1) additional year to low bidders; Bedrock Express, LTD of Ortonville, MI for items 
#1, #2 and #3 for an estimated total cost of $57,640.00 and Dale’s Disposal of Fraser, 
MI for item #4 for an estimated total cost of $16,850.00 at the unit prices contained in 
the bid tabulation opened March 20, 2014, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting, with contract expirations of April 30, 2016. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid and proposal documents, including insurance 
certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award - Upgraded Landscape 

Maintenance 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 20 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a three year contract for Upgraded 
Landscape Maintenance to the highest scoring bidder, W.H. Cannon, Inc., of Romulus 
Michigan for an estimated total cost of $122,000.00 per year, at the unit prices contained in the 
bid tabulation opened February 27, 2014, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting, the cost of which shall not exceed annual budgetary limitations; with 
the contract to expiring December 31, 2016.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid and proposal documents, including insurance 
certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Award – Oakland County Cooperative 

Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase four (4) 2014 
1500 GMC pickups and one (1) 2014 3500 GMC Savana cargo van from Red Holman Buick, 
GMC of Westland, MI, through the Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement for an 
estimated total cost of $101,792.00 as per the Oakland County Contract ID number 3003 & 
4019. 
 
h) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Contract 14-1 – 

Section 36 Overlay 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
 
RESOLVED, That Contract No. 14-1, Section 36 Overlay, be AWARDED to Asphalt 
Specialists, Inc., 1780 E. Highwood, Pontiac, MI 48340 for their low bid amount of 
$278,254.00. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is authorized in an amount 
not-to-exceed 15% of the total project cost. 
 
J-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization from Jed C. Sprunger, 

President of the Troy Community Lions Club 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Troy Community 
Lions Club, asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the 
community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license as recommended by City 
Management. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 21 - 

J-6 Adoption of the Oakland County Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
 
WHEREAS, The mission of the City of Troy includes the charge to protect the health, safety, 
and general welfare of the people of Troy; and  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy, Michigan is subject to flooding, tornadoes, winter storms, and 
other natural, technological, and human hazards; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Oakland County Local Emergency Planning Committee, comprised of 
representatives from the County, municipalities, and stakeholder organizations, has prepared a 
recommended Hazard Mitigation Plan that reviews the options to protect people and reduce 
damage from these hazards; and  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has participated in the planning process for the development of 
this Plan, providing information specific to local hazard priorities, encouraging public 
participation, identifying desired hazard mitigation strategies, and reviewing the draft Plan; and   
 
WHEREAS, On January 13, 2013, the Oakland County Board of Commissioners passed 
Resolution No.05-022 adopting the Oakland County Hazard Mitigation Plan as an official 
document of the County and established the County Hazard Mitigation Coordinating 
Committee, pursuant to the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (PL-106-390) and associated 
regulation (44 CFR 210.6); and  
 
WHEREAS, The Plan has been widely circulated for review by the County’s residents, 
municipal officials, and state, federal and local review agencies and has been revised to reflect 
their concerns;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City of Troy that:  
 

1. The Oakland County Hazard Mitigation Plan and sections of the Plan specific to the 
affected community is hereby adopted as an official plan of the City of Troy.  

2. The City Manager is charged with supervising the implementation of the Plan’s 
recommendations, as they pertain to the City of Troy City and within the funding 
limitations as provided by the City of Troy City Council or other sources.   

3. The City Manager shall give special attention to the following action items recommended 
in portions of the plan specific to the City of Troy:  

a. 5.2.56 City of Troy 
Tornadoes, winter weather hazards, fires in one of the many high rise buildings in Troy, 
and a chemical spill or release from one of many commercial trucks that carry 
hazardous materials are just a few concerns for the citizens of Troy. Secondarily, with 
the many corporate headquarters and high profile businesses, the threat of terrorism is 
always a concern.  
 

b. 6.3.1.56 Mitigation Strategies 
1) Visit other municipalities who have had critical incidents and have activated their 
Emergency Operations Centers to learn and update our current EOC.  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 22 - 

2) Continue educational and planning programs in the area of severe weather, terrorism, 
and fire prevention to the citizens and businesses of Troy. 
3) Seek funding for a citizens emergency notification system, (i.e. reverse 911) to notify 
residents by text, phone or email of emergency situations, (i.e. hazardous materials, 
active shooter, severe accidents, road closures, emergency shelter information).  
 
4) Continue to train and equip the police department to actively intervene in mass 
shooting situations.  

 
J-7 Troy Racquet Club Rates 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
 
RESOLVED, That the 2014-15 rates for court time and membership rates are hereby 
APPROVED as stated in the report from the Recreation Department, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-8 Addendum #1 – Aquatic Center Backwash Discharge Modification  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
 
RESOLVED, That contract Addendum #1 for the Aquatic Center Backwash Discharge 
Modification is APPROVED with Superior Excavating, Inc. of Auburn Hills, MI at an estimated 
total cost of $131,151. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That if additional work is required such additional work is 
AUTHORIZED in an amount not-to-exceed 20% of the contract addendum amount.  

 
J-9 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed and Four Permanent Easements for 

Belleclaire Estates Site Condominium – Sidwell #88-20-14-351-098, 099, 100, 101 

and 102 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-      
 
RESOLVED, That City Council hereby ACCEPTS a warranty deed for a detention basin, and 
four permanent easements for water mains, storm sewers, surface drainage, public utilities, 
and emergency ingress/egress from Mondrian Properties Belleclaire, LLC, owner of the 
properties having Sidwell #88-20-14-351-098, 099, 100, 101 & 102l; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD the 
warranty deed and permanent easements with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, copies 
of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 23 - 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) April 14, 2014 - Conditional Rezoning Application (File CR-011) – Proposed Amber 

Town Center Townhomes and Lofts, West Side of Livernois, North of Town Center, 
3409 Livernois, Section 21, from O (Office) to BB (Big Beaver) District 

 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

 some future point in time):   
a) Ordinance Amendments to Chapter 74 – Solicitations  
b) Detroit Water and Sewer Department – Discussion – Status and Business Issues  
 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 

Placement on the Agenda 

M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

N-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 

O. REPORTS: 

O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)-Final – September 11, 2012 
b) Planning Commission-Final – February 11, 2014 
c) Traffic Committee-Final – February 19, 2014  
d) Building Code Board of Appeal-Draft – March 5, 2014 
e) Planning Commission-Draft – March 11, 2014 
f) Planning Commission-Final – March 11, 2014  
g) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)-Draft – March 13, 2014  
h) Traffic Commission-Draft – March 19, 2014 
 
O-2 Department Reports:   
a) Fire Department and Alliance Mobile Health 2013 Annual Reports 
b) Building Department Activity Report – March, 2014 
 
O-3 Letters of Appreciation:   
a) From Eric Messinger Regarding Assistance from Officer Greg Pokley and Sergeant 

Justin Novak 
b) From Art Leftridge Regarding Police Academy and Ride Along with Tim Alter and Josh 

Muhlenbeck 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 24 - 

O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 

P. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF 

TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES): 

Q. STUDY ITEMS: 

Q-1 Fund Balance 
 

R. CLOSED SESSION:  

R-1 No Closed Session 
 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 7, 2014 

 

- 25 - 

 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
 

 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
April 14, 2014 ................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
May 12, 2014 ................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
May 19, 2014 ................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
June 2, 2014 .................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
June 16, 2014 .................................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
July 7, 2014 ...................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
July 21, 2014 .................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
August 11, 2014 ............................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
August 25, 2014 ............................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
September 8, 2014 .......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
September 22, 2014 ........................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
October 6, 2014 ............................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
October 20, 2014 ............................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
November 10, 2014 ......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
November 24, 2014 ......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
December 1, 2014 ........................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
December 15, 2014 ......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
 

 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
April 21, 2014 ........................................................................................ Special Budget Meeting 
April 23, 2014 ........................................................................................ Special Budget Meeting 

 



 
PROCLAMATION 

SEXUAL ASSAULT AWARENESS MONTH 
APRIL 2014 

 
WHEREAS, Throughout the United States, April is recognized as Sexual Assault Awareness Month (SAAM). The 
purpose of SAAM is to coordinate and promote, on a nationwide level, an understanding about sexual violence; and 
 
WHEREAS, Sexual Assault Awareness Month is intended to draw attention to the fact that sexual violence is 
widespread and impacts everyone. This year’s campaign is dedicated to healthy sexuality and young people, “Your 
Voice - Our Future - Prevent Sexual Violence;” and  
 
WHEREAS, It is also a time for communities to show their support of survivors of sexual violence, their families, 
advocates, and agencies such as HAVEN that provide services 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 days a year; and  
 
WHEREAS, Rape, sexual assault, and sexual harassment impact our community as seen by statistics indicating that 
one in five women and one in 71 men will be raped at some point in their lives; and  
 
WHEREAS, Child sexual abuse prevention must be a priority to confront the reality that one in six boys and one in four 
girls will experience a sexual assault before the age of 18.  Young people experience heightened rates of sexual 
violence, and youth ages 12-17 were 2.5 times as likely to be victims of rape or sexual assault; and 
  
WHEREAS, We must work together to educate our community about sexual violence prevention, supporting survivors, 
and speaking out against harmful attitudes and actions; and 
 
WHEREAS, With leadership, dedication, and encouragement, there is evidence that we can be successful in 
preventing sexual violence throughout our community as well as the entire country, through increased education, 
awareness, and community involvement; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council takes this opportunity to proclaim April as Sexual 
Assault Awareness Month in the City of Troy, and strongly supports the efforts of national, state, and local partners, 
especially HAVEN, to actively engage in public and private efforts to prevent sexual violence; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That we invite all Troy residents to join advocates and communities across the country 
in playing an active role to prevent sexual violence and recognize the importance of education to create a safer 
environment for all.  
 
Presented this 7th day of April 2014. 

 

 

 

stewartc
Text Box
C-02 / J-03a



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  March 14, 2014 
 
To:   Honorable Mayor and City Council 
  
From:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent of Parks, Streets, and Drains 
  Elaine Bo, Recreation Director 
  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
  Brenda Carter, Intern 
   
    
Subject: Disposal/Sale of Remnant Property (Introduced by:  Mark Miller, Director 

of Economic and Community Development and Brenda Carter, Intern) 
 
History 
 
Over the past several years, the City of Troy has acquired eleven (11) remnant 
properties.  Remnant properties are parcels of property acquired for road projects or are 
parcels deemed not needed since acquisition.  These remnant properties do not have 
complicated administrative or legislative hurdles and therefore offer an opportunity for 
timely sale.  Please refer to the attached chart summarizing each of the remnant 
properties.  
 
The listed remnant properties were reviewed by the Parks and Recreation Board.  The 
Board recommended disposal or sale of all of the remnant parcels; with the exception of 
the Old Fire Station #2.  Old Fire Station #2 is located at the southeast corner of 
Livernois and Cutting.  The Parks and Recreation Board further recommended that the 
Old Fire Station #2 property be retained and used for the purposes of a memorial for 
Station #2 firefighters.   
 
Please note that these 11 remnant parcels are part of phase one of remnant properties 
to be disposed/sold.  Phase two will include properties that have more challenging 
issues to be resolved prior to disposal/sale.  These phase two properties are larger sites 
and include undeveloped park land purchased with bond funding. 
 
Purchasing 
 
On January 22, 2007, the City Council approved the resolution to amend Disposal/Sale 
of Excess Property: Resolution #2007-01-028.  This resolution states that the City of 
Troy may determine that the public interest may be best served without obtaining sealed 
bids for the sale of remnant parcels.  These remnant parcels were created when the 
City acquired right-of-way and excess properties remained.  This resolution is to 
encourage the sale of remnant parcels that are too small for practical development and 
 

stewartc
Text Box
H-01



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

Purchasing (continued) 
 
consolidating the remnant parcels with abutting and adjoining properties.  Ultimately the 
resolution encourages quality development.  The resolution includes the following 
requirements: 
 
 

1. Purchaser submits evidence of evidence of ownership or control of an assembly 
of adjoining land of sufficient size so as to achieve quality development as 
determined by City Council after review and recommendation from the City 
Manager. 
 

2. Purchaser submits a conceptual site plan, which has been drawn to sufficient 
detail to indicate any and all features such as setbacks, parking and access, 
storm water detention and building height, which are governed by codes and 
standards of the City of Troy. 
 

3. Purchaser submits a petition for rezoning if required for the proposed 
development.  The rezoning request shall be in compliance with the Master Plan 
of the City of Troy.  

 
4. Purchase agreement commits the prospective buyer to a minimum purchase 

price established by an appraiser named by the Engineering Department of the 
City of Troy. 

 
5. Site plan approval application shall include architectural renderings of all 

buildings, including a description of building materials.  
 

6. Purchase agreement shall include proposed deed restrictions prepared by the 
City of Troy which will be imposed upon the purchaser of the City-owned 
property. 

 
7. The resolution does not relieve the Purchaser of their obligation to adhere to any 

and all City ordinances and development standards. 
 
    
 
Properties noted as buildable on the attached chart can be sold through the normal 
sealed bid process as required by Troy City Charter: Chapter 12.  This chapter requires 
that all sales or purchases in excess of $10,000 use a sealed bid process and the sale 
be approved by City Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
Financial 
 
Each property would require an appraisal for an estimated total of $15,000.  
 
Recommendation 
 
City administration recommends the disposal/sale without obtaining bids for the six (6) 
properties identified as needing assemblage, included on the attached chart.  The 
properties noted on the attached chart as buildable should be put on the market by 
obtaining bids utilizing the sealed bid process. All sales will require City Council 
approval.  All proceeds will be dedicated to road improvements. 
 
Attachments (2) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g/my documents/agenda items/2014/03.17.14 – Disposal-Sale of Remnant Property 



CITY OF TROY OWNED 
REMNANT PROPERTIES 

  
PIN ADDRESS/LOCATION ZONING ACRES DEVELOPMENT 

POTENTIAL 
CONDITIONS OF 

ACQUISITION  COMMENTS 

A 88-20-03-126-006 6972 Donaldson R-1B 0.95 Buildable Tax Reversion Easements. Sale proceeds pro-
rated due to tax reversion . 
Appraisal needed. 

B 88-20-10-101-018 Old Fire Station 2 O 0.34 Assemblage No Condition Residential potential. 
Appraisal needed. 

C 88-20-20-226-038 Engineering Field 
Office/Boulan Park 

CF 0.56 Buildable Transportation Historic district property – 
appraisal needed. 

D-1 88-20-16-476-027 Livernois & Paragon R-1B 0.42 Buildable Transportation  FHWA – appraisal needed. 
 

D-2 88-20-16-476-028 Livernois & Paragon R-1B 0.42 Buildable Transportation  FHWA – appraisal needed. 

E 88-20-28-227-006 2995 Livernois BB 0.18 Assemblage Transportation  FHWA – appraisal needed. 

F 88-20-22-358-028 Big Beaver & Frankton BB 0.21 Assemblage Transportation  FHWA – appraisal needed. 

G 88-20-27-155-013 Hickory & Plum R-1E 0.17 Assemblage Tax Reversion Sale proceeds prorated due to 
tax reversion. Appraisal 
needed 

H 88-20-34-201-003 598 E. Maple IB 0.14 Assemblage Transportation  FHWA – appraisal needed. 

I 88-20-26-483-053 John R & Maple CB 0.39 Assemblage Transportation  FHWA – appraisal needed. 

J 88-20-24-451-029 Big Beaver, West of 
Waterfall 

R-1E 0.31 Buildable Transportation  FHWA – appraisal needed. 

Assemblage: Best development potential requires property assembly. 
FHWA:   Requires appraisal to determine market value 
Transportation: Property acquired with federal dollars.  Funds need to be dedicated to transportation activities 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final January 22, 2007

- 11 -

RESOLVED, That pursuant to MCL 211.7u, the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES the proposed “Poverty Exemption Guidelines” for 2007, as presented by the City 
Assessor in a memorandum dated January 5, 2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting.

Yes: All-7

F-3 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Stone Haven Park Site Condominium, 
South of Wattles, West of Crooks, Section 20 – R-1B

Resolution #2007-01-026
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded byFleming 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the preliminary site condominium 
plan, as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family 
Residential Development) for the development of a One-Family Residential Site Condominium 
known as Stone Haven Park Site Condominium, located south of Wattles, west of Crooks, in 
Section 20, including 9 home sites, within the R-1B zoning district, being 4.285 acres in size.

Yes: All-7

F-4 Disposal/Sale of Excess Property

Resolution 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Lambert 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy endeavors to attain the highest and best land 
use, effective growth control measures and to enhance the health, safety and welfare of the 
community; and

WHEREAS, Chapter 12 of the Troy City Charter requires that…”in all sales or purchases in 
excess of $10,000, (a) the sales or purchases shall be approved by the City Council, (b) sealed 
bids shall be obtained, except where the City Council shall determine that an emergency exists 
or that the public interest will be best served without obtaining sealed bids…”;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy MAY DETERMINE
that the public interest will best be served without obtaining sealed bids for the sale of remnant 
parcels which remain after required right-of-way or excess property is taken when a purchase 
agreement is offered to the City of Troy by a prospective buyer which:

1. Has submitted evidence of ownership or control of an assembly of adjoining land of 
sufficient size so as to achieve what is believed to be the best possible development as 
determined by the City Council after review and recommendation from the City Manager.

2. Has submitted a conceptual site plan, which has been drawn to sufficient detail to 
indicate any and all features such as setbacks, parking and access, storm water 
detention and building height, which are governed by codes of the City of Troy.

Tashnickbl
Highlight



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final January 22, 2007

- 12 -

3. Is accompanied by a petition for rezoning, if necessary, in compliance with the Master 
Land Use Plan of the City of Troy as being the most appropriate land use.

4. Commits the prospective buyer to a purchase price of at least a value established by an 
appraiser named by the Real Estate and Development Department of the City of Troy. 

5. During the site plan review, site plan is accompanied by architectural renderings of all 
buildings along with a description of building materials to permit evaluation by building 
quality. 

6. Is accompanied by a draft of proposed deed restrictions prepared by the City of Troy 
which will be imposed upon the purchaser of the City-owned property.

7. Nothing in this resolution relieves the Purchaser/Developer of their obligation to adhere 
to any and all City Ordinances and development standards.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That staff will PROVIDE an analysis of the zoning and 
PRESENT the remnant parcel(s) to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee to review for 
possible use as parks prior to Council action on the offer to purchase; and

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Council RETAINS discretionary authority to 
determine the applicability of this policy.

Vote on Resolution to Amend Disposal/Sale of Excess Property

Resolution #2007-01-027
Moved by Beltramini
Seconded by Howrylak

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the resolution to Amend Disposal/Sale of 
Excess Property by INSERTING, “BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That if it is most probable that 
a rezoning will be requested, that an appraisal based on that subsequent rezoning also be 
submitted; and” BEFORE “BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED”.

Yes: All-7

Vote on Resolution to Amend Disposal/Sale of Excess Property as Amended

Resolution #2007-01-028
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Lambert 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy endeavors to attain the highest and best land 
use, effective growth control measures and to enhance the health, safety and welfare of the 
community; and

WHEREAS, Chapter 12 of the Troy City Charter requires that…”in all sales or purchases in 
excess of $10,000, (a) the sales or purchases shall be approved by the City Council, (b) sealed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final January 22, 2007

- 13 -

bids shall be obtained, except where the City Council shall determine that an emergency exists 
or that the public interest will be best served without obtaining sealed bids…”;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy MAY DETERMINE
that the public interest will best be served without obtaining sealed bids for the sale of remnant 
parcels which remain after required right-of-way or excess property is taken when a purchase 
agreement is offered to the City of Troy by a prospective buyer which:

1. Has submitted evidence of ownership or control of an assembly of adjoining land of 
sufficient size so as to achieve what is believed to be the best possible development as 
determined by the City Council after review and recommendation from the City Manager.

2. Has submitted a conceptual site plan, which has been drawn to sufficient detail to 
indicate any and all features such as setbacks, parking and access, storm water 
detention and building height, which are governed by codes of the City of Troy.

3. Is accompanied by a petition for rezoning, if necessary, in compliance with the Master 
Land Use Plan of the City of Troy as being the most appropriate land use.

4. Commits the prospective buyer to a purchase price of at least a value established by an 
appraiser named by the Real Estate and Development Department of the City of Troy. 

5. During the site plan review, site plan is accompanied by architectural renderings of all 
buildings along with a description of building materials to permit evaluation by building 
quality.

6. Is accompanied by a draft of proposed deed restrictions prepared by the City of Troy 
which will be imposed upon the purchaser of the City-owned property.

7. Nothing in this resolution relieves the Purchaser/Developer of their obligation to adhere 
to any and all City Ordinances and development standards.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That staff will PROVIDE an analysis of the zoning and 
PRESENT the remnant parcel(s) to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee to review for 
possible use as parks prior to Council action on the offer to purchase; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That if it is most probable that a rezoning will be requested, that 
an appraisal based on that subsequent rezoning also be submitted; and

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Council RETAINS discretionary authority to 
determine the applicability of this policy.

Yes: All-7



 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:             March 24, 2014               
 
To:   Brian Kischnik, City Manager     
  
From:  William Nelson, Fire Chief 
  David Roberts, Assistant Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 

Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development  
Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent of Parks, Streets and Drains 
Elaine Bo, Recreation Director 
 

Subject: Troy City Code Chapter 26 – Parks – General Regulations 
 

 
Troy City Code Chapter 26, titled Parks – General Regulations, Section 26.08, titled Fireworks, currently 
prohibits anyone from bringing into the park and discharging any type of fireworks, rocket, or explosives 
without a special permit granted by the City Manager or the Fire Chief.  
 
The Michigan Fireworks Safety Act of 2011, as amended, prohibits the use of consumer fireworks without 
the property owner’s or organization’s permission to use those fireworks on the premises. The Act, 
however, does not address low impact fireworks (sparklers, snakes, snaps, poppers) in these locations, 
and does not regulate novelty fireworks in general. The Act does allow a local unit of government to 
regulate consumer fireworks on any day except the day preceding, the day of, or the day after a national 
holiday. 
 
Each year the Parks Division, Recreation Department, and the Fire Department are requested to grant 
permission for low impact fireworks usage in a City park as part of the annual Dewali religious celebration. 
The proposed changes to Chapter 26 Section 26.08 would allow for this type of activity, yet allow the Fire 
Department to require a permit for consumer and display fireworks as permitted by the Act. 
 
Currently, Chapter 26 Section 26.11 allows the consumption of beer only with a special permit from the 
Police Chief in a City park. To meet the demands of patrons, city administration is proposing to amend 
this section to include the consumption of wine in a park. The proposed change also transfers 
responsibility of approving an alcohol permit to the Recreation Director when combined with a shelter 
permit and provides better language for enforcement. After the presentation of the proposed changes on 
March 17, 2014 to City Council, City Staff had discussion that led to some additional changes, which 
make the ordinance consistent with the policy to limit the consumption of alcohol to beer and wine only. 
These changes are highlighted in blue. The consumption is limited to the confines of the park shelter.  
 
 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality  
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 

 

stewartc
Text Box
I-04



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 

CHAPTER 26 - CITY OF TROY ORDINANCE 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 26- City of 
Troy Ordinance.  

Section 2. Amendment 
 
Section  26.08 shall be amended as follows:  
  
26.08 Fireworks. No person shall bring into a park, or have in his/her possession, or set off 

any firecrackers, torpedoes, rockets, or other fireworks or explosives, or otherwise 
cause the same to explode in a park. No person shall discharge any firecrackers, 
torpedoes, rockets, or other fireworks or explosives, or throw them into any park area 
from land or highway. The exception to this prohibition is when a special permit is 
granted by the City Manager and Fire Chief, which should include restrictions as to 
time and location. 

 
26.08.  Fireworks.  No person shall discharge, ignite, use, possess, activate or throw 
consumer fireworks or display fireworks in a public park, unless the Troy Fire Chief or 
his/her designee issues a permit to the person in advance and in accordance with the fire 
department’s permit policy and the person is in compliance with the permit conditions.  
Fireworks are defined in the Michigan Fireworks Safety Act, 2011 Public Act No. 256 
(MCL 28.451), as amended.     
 
 
Section 26.11 shall be amended as follows:  
 
26.11 Alcoholic Beverages. No person shall bring alcoholic beverages into the Park nor 

shall any person drink alcoholic beverages at any time in the Park unless he/she shall 
have first obtained a written permit for beer for that specific date from the Police 
Chief. No permit shall be issued for consumption of alcoholic beverages that have a 
higher alcoholic content than beer. 

 
No person shall possess or consume alcoholic beverages in a public park at any time 
unless the Recreation Director or his/her designee has issued a written park shelter 
reservation permit that specifically allows for the consumption of beer or wine (as 
defined in the Michigan Liquor Control Code, Public Acts of 1998 No. 58, as amended; 
MCL 436.1101), alcohol in the park on the designated date, location and time, and the 
person is in compliance with the terms of the issued permit.  If such a permit is issued, 
the possession or consumption of beer or wine alcohol is limited to the park shelter and 
its immediate vicinity, and does not extend to the ball diamonds, soccer fields, children’s 
play areas, restrooms, parking lots, or other areas of the park.          



Section 3. Repeal 
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only to the 
extent necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect. 
 

Section 4. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may be consummated 
under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings were 
commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending 
prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or 
impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses 
committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be 
instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be 
continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of 
such offense. 
 
Section 5. Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid or 
unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 6. Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a Regular Meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on 
the ________ day of ________, ________. 
 
 
 
 

Dane M. Slater, Mayor 
 
 
 
M. Aileen Bittner, CMC, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 
 



stewartc
Text Box
I-05













CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 17, 2014 
 

- 1 - 

Pastor A.C. Phipps from Evanswood Church of God performed the Invocation.  The Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held on Monday, March 17, 2014, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the meeting to order at      . 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 

a) Mayor Dane Slater 
Jim Campbell 
Wade Fleming  
Dave Henderson 
Ellen Hodorek  
Ed Pennington  
Doug Tietz 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Resolution #2014-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of       at the Regular 
City Council Meeting of March 17, 2014, due to           . 
 
Yes:       
No:       

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 On Behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program for the 
Months of September and October, 2013, Community Affairs Director Cindy 
Stewart will Present a Check in the Amount of $845 to Maureen Keenan Meldrum, 
Chair of the Susan G. Komen Detroit Race (Introduced by:  Cindy Stewart, 
Community Affairs Director) 

 
C-2 Proclamation to Keith Stark to Celebrate the 40th Anniversary of Stark Reagan, 

P.C., as a Business in the City of Troy (Introduced by: Cindy Stewart, Community 
Affairs Director) 

 
C-3 Presentation of the State Champion DPW Water Tapping Team (Introduced by: Tim 

Richnak, Department of Public Works Director) 
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-02a



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 17, 2014 
 

- 2 - 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items 
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 Liquor Violation Hearings – Yara, Inc., d/b/a Lebanese Grill 
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy scheduled a hearing, as allowed under State Law and the City of 
Troy Ordinances, Chapter 101, and also the Liquor License Agreement between the licensee 
and the City, to review the following alleged violation: 

 
Name: Yara, Inc., d/b/a Lebanese Grill 
Address: 1600 Rochester Road, Troy, Michigan 48083 
License No:  77842-2012-SS 
Violation:    SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on March 20, 2013 

 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given the opportunity to review this cited 
infraction, and an opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements of accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Monday, March 17, 2014; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That as a result of this hearing, the Troy City Council 
HAS BEEN PERSUADED that the alleged violation did occur, as set forth above; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That due to the violation at the licensed establishment, the Troy 
City Council, after due notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations,  RECOMMENDS renewal 
of the on-premises liquor license for the 2014 license year, with the STIPULATION that all 
serving employees successfully complete a server training program, as defined under State 
Law (MCL 436.1906) within 90 days of today’s date, and that immediately upon completion, 
licensee shall submit proof of the successful completion of the server training program to the 
Troy Police Department; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That if the licensee fails to comply with this condition within 120 
days, then licensee SHALL APPEAR before the Troy City Council after due notice, and that the 
licensee’s failure to comply with the server training condition could serve as a basis for the Troy 
City Council to take adverse action against the licensee’s liquor license;   
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution SHALL BE SENT to the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 17, 2014 
 

- 3 - 

E-2 Liquor Violation Hearings – Pizza Papalis/Rio Wraps, d/b/a Pizzapapalis of Troy, 
LLC 

 
Resolution #2014-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy scheduled a hearing, as allowed under State Law and the City of 
Troy Ordinances, Chapter 101, and also the Liquor License Agreement between the licensee 
and the City, to review the following alleged violation: 

 
Name: Pizza Papalis/Rio Wraps, d/b/a Pizzapapalis of Troy, LLC 
Address: 300 John R, Troy, Michigan 48083 
License No:  175213-2009-SS / 175214-2009-SS 
Violation:    SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on March 20, 2013 

 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given the opportunity to review this cited 
infraction, and an opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements of accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Monday, March 17, 2014; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That as a result of this hearing, the Troy City Council 
HAS BEEN PERSUADED that the alleged violation did occur, as set forth above; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That due to the violation at the licensed establishment, the Troy 
City Council, after due notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations,  RECOMMENDS renewal 
of the on-premises liquor license for the 2014 license year, with the STIPULATION that all 
serving employees successfully complete a server training program, as defined under State 
Law (MCL 436.1906) within 90 days of today’s date, and that immediately upon completion, 
licensee shall submit proof of the successful completion of the server training program to the 
Troy Police Department; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That if the licensee fails to comply with this condition within 120 
days, then licensee SHALL APPEAR before the Troy City Council after due notice, and that the 
licensee’s failure to comply with the server training condition could serve as a basis for the Troy 
City Council to take adverse action against the licensee’s liquor license;   
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution SHALL BE SENT to the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
E-3 Public Hearing to Receive Public Input on the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance 

Authority Utilizing Tax-Exempt Bonds for William Beaumont Hospital – Troy 
(Introduced by:  Lisa Haga, Miller Canfield and Nick Vitale, CFO, Beaumont 
Hospital) 

 
Resolution #2014-03-      



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 17, 2014 
 

- 4 - 

Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
At a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Troy held at 7:30 p.m., Eastern Time, on 
March 17, 2014. 

PRESENT: Members:           

             

ABSENT: Members:           
 
 
The following preamble and resolution were offered by Council Member __________ and 
supported by Council Member __________; 

WHEREAS, The City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority (the “Authority”) proposes to 
make loans to William Beaumont Hospital (the “Hospital”), to be used, in part, by the Hospital 
to refinance indebtedness used to finance the construction, renovation and equipping of certain 
hospital facilities in the City of Troy, Michigan; and 

WHEREAS, The Authority intends to issue City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority 
Hospital Revenue Refunding Bonds (William Beaumont Hospital Obligated Group) in one or 
more series (the “Bonds”) on behalf of the Hospital in the aggregate principal amount of not to 
exceed $550,000,000 to provide funds with which to make loans to the Hospital; and 

WHEREAS, The Bonds will be limited obligations of the Authority and will not constitute general 
obligations or debt of the City of Royal Oak, the City of Troy, the County of Oakland, the State 
of Michigan or any political subdivision thereof; and 

WHEREAS, The City Council has held a public hearing after notice was published as provided 
in, and in satisfaction of the applicable public hearing requirements of, the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”); and 

WHEREAS, A record of public hearing will be maintained with the City Clerk; and 

WHEREAS, The Authority has requested that this City Council approve the issuance of the 
Bonds by the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy desires to express its approval of the issuance 
of the Bonds by the Authority; 

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TROY, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Solely for the purpose of fulfilling the public approval requirements of the Code, the City 
Council of the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the issuance, sale and delivery of not to 
exceed $550,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds by the Authority. 

2. The City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to provide three (3) certified copies of this 
resolution to the Secretary of the Authority 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 17, 2014 
 

- 5 - 

 
YEAS:              

NAYS:             

ABSTENTIONS:            
 
Yes:       
No:       

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 
RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

  
  
  
 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT: 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1 No Postponed Items 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 
Council Appointments – None 

 
a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 
 
b) City Council Appointments:  None 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City 

Council Nominations – Historic District Commission 
 
a) Mayoral Nominations:  None 
 
b) City Council Nominations:  Historic District Commission 
 
Resolution #2014-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) 
to serve on t he Boards and C ommittees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 17, 2014 
 

- 6 - 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 

Chambers Barbara 12/20/2015 3/1/2017  

Knight Barbara  3/1/2015  
McGee Timothy 8/13/2014 5/15/2015  
Partlan Ann 2/24/2013 3/1/2014 Historical Society Recommendation 
Petrulis Al  3/1/2017  
Schuchter Doris 11/22/2013 5/15/2015 Historical Society Recommendation 
Voigt W. Kent 1/23/2015 3/1/2016  

 

 
Nominations to the Historic District Commission: 
 
Term Expires:  3/1/2017  
 Term currently held by: Ann Partlan 
 
Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Res Expire Notes 1 
Viola Vincent 6/13/2014  

 

 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-3 No Request for Closed Session 
 
I-4 Pure Troy – Mowing Ordinance Amendment (Introduced by:  Paul Evans, Zoning 

Compliance Specialist) 
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Chapter 82 – Property Maintenance 
Code, as prepared by City Administration, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting.   
 
Yes:       
No:       
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 17, 2014 
 

- 7 - 

I-5 Disposal/Sale of Remnant Property (Introduced by:  Mark Miller, Director of 
Economic and Community Development and Brenda Carter, City Manager’s Office 
Intern) 

 
a) Remnant Property - Parcel A 
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain parcels 
will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served obtaining 
sealed bids for the sale of a parcel property; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to initiate the sale of property utilizing the sealed bid process for City owned 
parcel 88-20-03-126-006, also known as Parcel A in the City Administration presentation;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to obtain an appraisal for the property. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to submit 
a Recommendation Bid Tabulation and a Purchase Agreement to City Council to approve the 
sale of the subject property.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
b) Remnant Property - Parcel B 
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain remnant 
parcels will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served without 
obtaining sealed bids for the sale of a remnant parcel; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby FINDS that the 
public interest will best be served without obtaining a sealed bid in accordance with Resolution 
#2007-01-028 Policy Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess City Owned Remnant Property and 
AUTHORIZES City Administration to initiate the sale process with the abutting land owners of 
City owned parcel 88-20-10-101-018, also known as Parcel B in the City Administration 
presentation. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 17, 2014 
 

- 8 - 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to obtain an appraisal for the property. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to submit 
a Purchase Agreement to City Council to approve the sale of the subject remnant property.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
c) Remnant Property - Parcel C    
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain parcels 
will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served obtaining 
sealed bids for the sale of a parcel property; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to initiate the sale of property utilizing the sealed bid process for City owned 
parcel 88-20-20-226-038, also known as Parcel C in the City Administration presentation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to obtain an appraisal for the property. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to submit 
a Recommendation Bid Tabulation and a Purchase Agreement to City Council to approve the 
sale of the subject property.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
d) Remnant Property - Parcel D-1    
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain parcels 
will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served obtaining 
sealed bids for the sale of a parcel property; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 17, 2014 
 

- 9 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to initiate the sale of property utilizing the sealed bid process for City owned 
parcel 88-20-16-476-028, also known as Parcel D-1 in the City Administration presentation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to obtain an appraisal for the property. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to submit 
a Recommendation Bid Tabulation and a Purchase Agreement to City Council to approve the 
sale of the subject property.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
e) Remnant Property - Parcel D-2    
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain parcels 
will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served obtaining 
sealed bids for the sale of a parcel property; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to initiate the sale process utilizing the bid process for City owned parcel 88-20-
16-476-028, also known as Parcel D-2 in the City Administration presentation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to obtain an appraisal for the property. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to submit 
a Recommendation Bid Tabulation and a Purchase Agreement to City Council to approve the 
sale of the subject property.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
f) Remnant Property - Parcel E    
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain remnant 
parcels will best serve the public interest; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 17, 2014 
 

- 10 - 

WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served without 
obtaining sealed bids for the sale of a remnant parcel; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby FINDS that the 
public interest will best be served without obtaining a sealed bid in accordance with Resolution 
#2007-01-028 Policy Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess City Owned Remnant Property and 
AUTHORIZES City Administration to initiate the sale process with the abutting land owners of 
City owned parcel 88-20-28-227-006, also known as Parcel E in the City Administration 
presentation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to obtain an appraisal for the property. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to submit 
a Purchase Agreement to City Council to approve the sale of the subject remnant property.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
g) Remnant Property - Parcel F    
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain remnant 
parcels will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served without 
obtaining sealed bids for the sale of a remnant parcel; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby FINDS that the 
public interest will best be served without obtaining a sealed bid in accordance with Resolution 
#2007-01-028 Policy Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess City Owned Remnant Property and 
AUTHORIZES City Administration to initiate the sale process with the abutting land owners of 
City owned parcel 88-20-22-358-028, also known as Parcel F in the City Administration 
presentation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to obtain an appraisal for the property. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to submit 
a Purchase Agreement to City Council to approve the sale of the subject remnant property.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
h) Remnant Property - Parcel G 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 17, 2014 
 

- 11 - 

Resolution #2014-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain remnant 
parcels will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served without 
obtaining sealed bids for the sale of a remnant parcel; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby FINDS that the 
public interest will best be served without obtaining a sealed bid in accordance with Resolution 
#2007-01-028 Policy Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess City Owned Remnant Property and 
AUTHORIZES City Administration to initiate the sale process with the abutting land owners of 
City owned parcel 88-20-27-155-013, also known as Parcel G in the City Administration 
presentation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to obtain an appraisal for the property. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to submit 
a Purchase Agreement to City Council to approve the sale of the subject remnant property.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
i) Remnant Property - Parcel H 
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain remnant 
parcels will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served without 
obtaining sealed bids for the sale of a remnant parcel; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby FINDS that the 
public interest will best be served without obtaining a sealed bid in accordance with Resolution 
#2007-01-028 Policy Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess City Owned Remnant Property and 
AUTHORIZES City Administration to initiate the sale process with the abutting land owners of 
City owned parcel 88-20-34-201-003, also known as Parcel H in the City Administration 
presentation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to obtain an appraisal for the property. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 17, 2014 
 

- 12 - 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to submit 
a Purchase Agreement to City Council to approve the sale of the subject remnant property.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
j) Remnant Property - Parcel I 
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain remnant 
parcels will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served without 
obtaining sealed bids for the sale of a remnant parcel; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby FINDS that the 
public interest will best be served without obtaining a sealed bid in accordance with Resolution 
#2007-01-028 Policy Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess City Owned Remnant Property and 
AUTHORIZES City Administration to initiate the sale process with the abutting land owners of 
City owned parcel 88-20-26-483-053, also known as Parcel I in the City Administration 
presentation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to obtain an appraisal for the property. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to submit 
a Purchase Agreement to City Council to approve the sale of the subject remnant property.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
k) Remnant Property - Parcel J 
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain parcels 
will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served obtaining 
sealed bids for the sale of a parcel property; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to initiate the sale utilizing the sealed bid process for City owned parcel 88-20-
24-451-029, also known as Parcel J in the City Administration presentation. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 17, 2014 
 

- 13 - 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Administration to obtain an appraisal for the property. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to submit 
a Recommendation Bid Tabulation and a Purchase Agreement to City Council to approve the 
sale of the subject property.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-6 2014 Tri-Party Program – Concrete Slab Replacement – Big Beaver Road, Coolidge 

to Civic Center Drive (Introduced by:  Steve Vandette, City Engineer) 
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That the Cost Participation Agreement between the City of Troy and the Board of 
Road Commissioners for Oakland County for the 2014 Tri-Party Program is hereby 
APPROVED at an estimated cost to the City of Troy of $100,054, and the Mayor and City Clerk 
are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting.    
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-7 Contract Ratification - Troy Communication Supervisors Association (TCSA) 

(Introduced by:  Jeanette Menig, Human Resources Director) 
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That a collective bargaining agreement between the City of Troy and TCSA for 
the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2016 is hereby RATIFIED by the City Council of the 
City of Troy, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the final 
agreement. 
 
Yes:       
No:       

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
Moved by       



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 17, 2014 
 

- 14 - 

Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s)           , which shall be CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (J) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 
a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – March 3, 2014 
b) City Council Special Meeting Minutes-Draft – March 3, 2014 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:   
a) Proclamation to Keith Stark to Celebrate the 40th Anniversary of Stark Reagan, P.C., as 

a Business in the City of Troy 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:   
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Pump Repair and 

Emergency Services – Indoor and Outdoor Pools 
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
 
WHEREAS, On April 4, 2011, Troy City Council awarded a contract to furnish two-year 
requirements of pump repair and emergency repair services for both the indoor and outdoor 
pools at the Troy Family Aquatic Center and Community Center with two one-year renewal 
options to the low bidder, Professional Pump Inc. of Belleville, MI, at an estimated total cost of 
$20,000.00 per year on an as-needed basis and at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 
dated March 23, 2011, contract expiring April 30, 2013 (Resolution 2011-04-071-J-4a); and 
 
WHEREAS, On February 18, 2013, Troy City Council determined it to be in the City’s best 
interest to exercise and approve the first one-year option to renew the contract with 
Professional Pump Inc. for pump repair and emergency maintenance services under the same 
pricing, terms and conditions as the 2011 contract; contract to expire April 30, 2014 (Resolution 
2013-02-032-J-04b); and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy determines that Professional Pump Inc. continues to meet all 
contract terms and conditions of the original contract; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 17, 2014 
 

- 15 - 

WHEREAS, Professional Pump, Inc. has offered to renew their contract for one (1) additional 
year under the same pricing structure, terms and conditions as the 2011 contract;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES and 
APPROVES the second one-year option to renew the contract with Professional Pump Inc. for 
pump repair and emergency services at prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 
23, 2011, not to exceed budgetary limitations, under the same terms and conditions as the 
2011 contract; contract to expire April 30, 2015. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Asphalt Paving 

Materials – Hot Patch 
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
 
WHEREAS, On February 18, 2013, Troy City Council approved a one-year contract to provide 
Asphalt Paving Materials-Hot Patch with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the 
low bidders, Barrett Paving Materials Inc. of Troy, MI, Cadillac Asphalt L.L.C., of Canton, MI 
and Surface Coatings Co. of Auburn Hills, MI (Resolution #2013-02-32-J-04a); and  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has determined that Barrett Paving Materials Inc., Cadillac 
Asphalt L.L.C., and Surface Coatings Co. have all successfully provided Asphalt Paving 
Materials – Hot Patch to the City as per all terms and conditions of the existing contract; and 
 
WHEREAS, The awarded bidders have offered to renew their contracts for one (1) year as per 
the original bid specifications and under the same prices, terms, and conditions; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby DETERMINES it to be in 
the City’s best interest to EXERCISE the option to renew contracts with Barrett Paving 
Materials Inc of Troy, MI, Cadillac Asphalt LLC of Canton, MI and Surface Coatings Co of 
Auburn Hills, MI, to provide one-year requirements of Asphalt Paving Materials-Hot Patch for 
an estimated cost of $93,000.00 to be ordered on an as-needed basis, not to exceed budgetary 
limitations; under the same contract prices, terms and conditions; contract expiring December 
31, 2014. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Option to Renew – Printing Services for the 

Troy Today Quarterly Newsletter 
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
 
WHEREAS, On April13, 2013, Troy City Council approved a one (1) year contract to provide 
printing and delivery services of the Troy Today Quarterly Newsletter with an option to renew 
for two (2) additional years to the low bidder meeting specifications, Grand Blanc Printing Co., 
Inc. of Grand Blanc, MI at an estimated total cost of $39,418.80, plus the actual cost of bulk 
rate postage and $50.00 per issue to post the Flip Page newsletter on the City’s website, and 
additional charges if needed not-to-exceed $3,900 (Resolution #2013-04-083-J4c); and  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has determined that Grand Blanc Printing Co., Inc. has 
successfully and efficiently provided printing and delivery services to the City as per all terms 
and conditions of the existing contract; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 17, 2014 
 

- 16 - 

 
WHEREAS, Grand Blanc Printing Co., Inc. has offered to renew their contract for one (1) year 
as per the original bid specifications and under the same pricing, terms and conditions, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DETERMINES it to be 
in the City’s best interest to EXERCISE the option to renew the contract with Grand Blanc 
Printing Co., Inc. to provide printing and delivery services of the Troy Today Quarterly 
Newsletter under the same bid prices, terms and conditions for one (1) year for an estimated 
total cost of $39,418.80, plus the actual cost of bulk rate postage and $50.00 per issue to post 
the Flip Page newsletter on the City’s website, and additional charges if needed not-to-exceed 
$3,900.00 at prices contained in the original bid tabulation not to exceed budget limitations; 
contract expiring April 15, 2015. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the submission of 
contract documents, insurance certificates and all other specified documents. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Lowest Acceptable Bidder – Replacement 

Batteries for Emergency Back-Up System for the Community Center 
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to purchase twenty (20) CSB-
HRL-12200 batteries, twenty-four (24) CSB-TPL 12-1000 batteries, and fifty (50) CSB-HRL 12-
280 batteries to the lowest acceptable bidder: Complete Battery Source of Detroit, MI for an 
estimated total cost of $13,950.00 less trade-in value of $708.00, for a final cost of $13,242.00, 
all at prices contained in the bid tabulation dated March 6, 2014, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon the company’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements.  
 
J-5 Act 51 Mileage Certification for 2013 
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
 
WHEREAS, It is necessary to furnish certain road information to the state of Michigan for the 
purpose of obtaining funds under Act 51, P.A. 1951, as amended;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy hereby ACCEPTS the following platted 
and non-platted streets: Aster, Mayflower, Oak Forest Drive, Black Oak, Rockdale Court, Siena 
Drive, Cabernet Drive, Sutherland Drive, Hazel Nut Lane, Southerland Court, Timbercrest Drive 
and Lynwood Drive. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That said streets are located within the City of Troy; right of way 
is under the control of the City of Troy; said streets are public streets and are for public street 
purposes and were open to the public prior to December 31, 2013; and said streets are 
ACCEPTED into the City of Troy local street system. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 17, 2014 
 

- 17 - 

J-6 Mondrian Properties Belleclaire LLC v City of Troy Lawsuit 
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Mondrian Properties Belleclaire, 
LLC. v. City of Troy, et. al. (Oakland County Circuit Court Case No. 2014-139164-CH) and to 
retain any necessary expert witnesses to adequately represent the City.  
 
J-7 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – Galleria 

of Troy – Phase II Project 13.923.3 
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Galleria of Troy, LLC, is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, paving, sidewalks, soil erosion and 
landscaping, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-8 Bid Waiver – Professional Services – Police Department Promotional Testing 

Services  
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
 
WHEREAS, EMPCO, Inc. has been providing testing and hiring services to the City’s Police 
Department for 24 years, and has provided this service to several other surrounding 
municipalities (Resolution #2011-11-261); and 
 
WHEREAS, EMPCO, Inc. meets departmental needs and complies with Act 78 Commission 
requirements, including the requirements to be fair and impartial; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedure for this professional service 
is hereby WAIVED, since the public interest is best served by contracting with EMPCO, Inc.; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the attached contract authorizing EMPCO, Inc. to provide 
police sergeant promotional testing is APPROVED, and a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That upon the final action of the City of Troy Civil Service 
Commission requesting the certification of eligible police sergeant candidates, the City 
Manager and Human Resources Director are hereby AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE this 
contract on behalf of the City. 
 
J-9 Switch to Community Blue PPO and PA 152 
 
Resolution #2014-03-      



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 17, 2014 
 

- 18 - 

 
WHEREAS, Public Act 152 of 2011 allows for a Local Unit Opt Out alternative which will not 
adversely affect the City of Troy’s payments from the Economic Vitality Incentive Program; and  
 
WHEREAS, City Management successfully migrated all Classified, Exempt, AFSCME and 
MAP employees into the Blue Cross Blue Shield Community Blue PPO health insurance plan; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, The City will benefit by cost-savings estimated to be in excess of $400,000 per 
year based on illustrative rates; and 
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council ratified collective bargaining agreements with AFSCME and 
MAP unions, acknowledging Local Government Opt Out for fiscal year 2014/15;   
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SELECTS the Local Unit Opt 
Out for 2014/15. 
 
J-10 Scheduling of City Council Special Meetings 
 
Resolution #2014-03-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES Special Meetings as follows: 
 
a) City Council Special Study Meeting on Tuesday, April 1, 2014, at 6:00 PM in the Council 

Boardroom for the Purpose of Discussing the Results of City of Troy Focus Groups 

b) City Council Joint Special Study Meeting with Downtown Development Authority on 
Wednesday, April 2, 2014, at 6:00 PM in the Council Boardroom for the Purpose of 
Discussing the Future Role of the DDA and Maintenance of Boulevards  

 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time):   
a) Troy City Code Chapter 26 – Parks – General Regulations  
 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 
RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

  
  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 17, 2014 
 

- 19 - 

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

N-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 

O. REPORTS: 

O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final – February 5, 2014 
b) Planning Commission-Draft – February 11, 2014 

Noted and Filed 
 

O-2 Department Reports:   
a) Building Department Activity Report – February, 2014 
b) Travel Expense Request – Council Member Ellen Hodorek - MML Core Training - 

February 7, 2014 and February 8, 2014 - Frankenmuth, Michigan  
Noted and Filed 

 
O-3 Letters of Appreciation:  None Submitted 
 
O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 

P. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF 
TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES): 

Q. STUDY ITEMS: 

Q-1 No Study Items 
 

R. CLOSED SESSION:  

R-1 No Closed Session 
 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 

The Meeting ADJOURNED at      . 
 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 17, 2014 
 

- 20 - 

 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 
M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
City Clerk 

 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES-Draft April 1, 2014 

 

- 1 - 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held on Tuesday, April 1, 2014, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the meeting to order at 6:05 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 

Mayor Dane Slater 
Jim Campbell - Absent 
Wade Fleming 
Dave Henderson 
Ellen Hodorek 
Ed Pennington - Absent 
Doug Tietz - Absent 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-04-036 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member 
Campbell and Council Member Pennington at the City Council Special Study Meeting of 
Tuesday, April 1, 2014, due to being absent from the state. 
 
Yes: Slater, Fleming, Henderson, Hodorek 
No: None 
Absent: Campbell, Pennington, Tietz 

C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:  

C-1 Results of City of Troy Focus Groups 
 
Mayor Slater opened the meeting by thanking City Manager Kischnick for putting together 
these Focus Groups. 
 
City Manager Kischnick thanked all the participants of the Focus Groups for their hard work. He 
thanked Cindy Stewart for coordinating the groups. City Manager Kischnick described the 
groups as being made up of a diverse cross-section of community members. 
 
City Manager Kischnick introduced the PowerPoint presentation called Troy Story Focus 
Groups. He commented that the Focus Groups all saw the presentation on The Troy Story that 
had been shown to City Council in 2013. City Manager Kischnick discussed the presentation 
slides. 
 
Mayor Slater asked if there was discussion about what would be a good level of fund balance. 
City Manager Kischnick replied that he never gave that answer to the groups, but, at every 
meeting, that topic came up. He did make the general comment that the bond adviser had said 
20%-30% was a good percentage. City Manager Kischnick continued that some members of 

stewartc
Text Box
J-02b



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES-Draft April 1, 2014 

 

- 2 - 

the groups agreed and some disagreed with that percentage range. He then continued the 
presentation. 
 
City Manager Kischnick called on representatives from the Citizen Representatives Focus 
Group. Robin Beltramini, presented the Scenario 1 slide from her Citizen Representatives 
group. City Manager Kischnick called on Mark Calice to present the Scenario 2 slide from his 
Citizen Representative group. City Manager Kischnick called on John Ballantine to present 
Scenario 3 from his Citizen Representative group. 
 
City Manager Kischnick resumed the presentation. He explained that this is part of the citizen 
engagement project. He turned the conversation back to City Council for discussion.  
Mayor Slater indicated he is not surprised to hear that roads were such a priority among the 
groups considering the winter we’ve had this year. He was surprised by the results from the 
groups saying that the City should be financially responsible for maintaining County roads. City 
Manager Kischnick said that topic came up in every group but 99.9% of the participants would 
say that they don’t know who owns what roads, but, that we need to fix the roads regardless of 
who owns those roads. Mayor Slater said that three years ago, we would have not agreed with 
putting City money toward County roads. But today, it is a different time and if the County isn’t 
willing to pay for repairs on County roads, then the City will have to make that decision to fix 
them instead. City Manager Kischnick replied that the City has been willing to partner with the 
County to share the cost of fixing roads. Council Member Fleming said we need to take 
advantage of matching funds for road projects. He continued that he hears from residents that 
we need to do a better job of fixing roads than we are doing currently, for example slab 
replacement and patch work. Council Member Fleming questioned if the City needs to ask the 
State to reduce weight limits for large trucks on the roads. He said he is not surprised to see 
the groups all talk about the roads. He wondered if we should also be putting aside funds to 
address the future of water infrastructure considering what is going on with the Detroit Water & 
Sewer Department. Mayor Slater said he also shares the frustration with slab replacement 
projects. He said the County and State need to stop putting band-aids on the problem roads 
and start doing what Troy does, which is replace entire segments. Mayor Slater said he will sign 
the agreement to fix pot holes in 48 hours, but believes that we need to do more than patch pot 
holes.  
 
Council Member Hodorek agreed. She believes that the State needs to put a higher priority on 
roads. Council Member Hodorek encourages everyone to express their opinions to the State 
officials.  She commented that the Traffic Safety Unit is very important for deterring crime and 
that unit needs to be in place. City Manager Kischnick commented that everyone in the focus 
groups who wanted Traffic Safety thought the police presence in the community was very 
important. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson thanked City Manager Kischnick for putting the Focus Groups 
together. He agreed with what had been said already about the roads. He commented that $10 
million will make a big difference in the roads. Mayor Pro Tem Henderson commended the 
Mayor for signing the 48 hour promise. Mayor Slater stated that the City now has a 24 hour 
policy for pot holes and that Troy will always respond quickly.  
 
Mayor Slater said we are not over the financial crisis yet, and we need to not spend down all 
the fund balance. 
 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES-Draft April 1, 2014 

 

- 3 - 

Council Member Fleming said we need to tell the County and State that we want the money 
that we pay to fix their roads back after we spend it. City Manager Kischnick said he is 
convinced that Oakland County is doing what they can with engineering services etc. to help 
Troy because we are willing to fix all the roads in Troy. He continued that the State 
Representative and State Senator need to get to work and help Troy get the funding from the 
State for road repairs. Council Member Hodorek asked City Manager Kischnick to pass along 
to Oakland County Troy’s appreciation for all the assistance that the County has given to us. 
Mayor Slater said that other communities around us are not as safe as Troy, so we have an 
obligation to maintain that safety. It’s the same with the road conditions. We need to put money 
toward all the roads in Troy. 
 
City Manager Kischnick summarized that in the upcoming budget, there are some items 
included but not everything so that we maintain a good level of fund balance. 
 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT:  

 
John Ballantine Spoke about road conditions and repairs. 
Mark Calice Spoke about road conditions and fund balance. 

 
Council Member Fleming asked if the DWSD issue is being considered for the future. City 
Manager Kischnick said yes, the City is paying very close attention to that situation.  
 
City Manager Kischnick commented that both presentations will be available on the website 
along with the poster of the Focus Groups. 
 
Council Member Hodorek said the more we educate the community, the more we come 
together as a smart community. 
 

E. ADJOURNMENT: 

The Meeting ADJOURNED at 7:11 PM. 
 
 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 
M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
City Clerk 

 



 
PROCLAMATION 

FAIR HOUSING MONTH 
APRIL, 2014 

 
WHEREAS, The month of April, 2014 has been declared Fair Housing Month in the City of Troy, in recognition 
of the 46th anniversary of the signing of the Federal Fair Housing Law under the Civil Rights Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, This landmark law along with other federal and state legislation strictly prohibits housing 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, sex, national origin, age, marital status, religion, disability or family 
status; and 
 
WHEREAS, The National Fair Housing Alliance is the voice of fair housing.  NFHA works to eliminate housing 
discrimination and to ensure equal housing opportunity for all people through leadership, education, outreach,
membership services, public policy initiatives, advocacy and enforcement; and 
 
WHEREAS, The National Fair Housing Alliance recognizes the importance of "home" as a component of the
American dream and envisions a country free of housing discrimination where every individual, group and
community enjoys equal housing opportunity and access in a bias free and open housing market where
integrated neighborhoods are the norm, and the private and public sector guarantees civil rights in an open,
and barrier free community committed to healing the history of discrimination in America; and  
  
WHEREAS, Fair Housing Month is designed to heighten people’s awareness of their rights under the law 
when pursuing the purchase or rental of housing; and  
 
WHEREAS, City of Troy residents are urged to contact Oakland County’s housing counselors in the 
Community & Home Improvement Division if they believe they have been the victims of housing discrimination;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Troy City Council hereby proclaims the month of April, 
2014 as Fair Housing Month in the City of Troy. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That we invite all Troy residents to join advocates and communities across the 
country in playing an active role to ensure equal housing opportunity for all people through leadership, 
education, outreach, membership services, public policy initiatives, advocacy and enforcement.  
 
 
Presented this 7th day of April 2014. 
 
 
 
  
 
 
  
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-03b



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  March 28, 2014 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From: MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent Parks, Streets, and Drains 
    
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Mowing and Landscape 

Services 
 
 
History 

• Three-year requirements of Mowing and Landscape Services with an option to renew for two 
(2) additional years was competitively bid and opened on March 1, 2010, in accordance with 
City Charter and Code.   

• The scope of work includes all labor, tools, equipment, chemicals, transportation, and 
landscape maintenance services including mowing for municipal grounds.   

• On March 15, 2010, Troy City Council approved a three-year contract to provide Mowing and 
Landscape Services with an option to renew for two (2) additional years to the low bidder, 
Green Meadows Lawnscape, Inc of Sterling Heights, MI {Resolution # 2010-03-071-I-4b}.   

• On March 4, 2013 Troy City Council approved the option to renew the contract with Green 
Meadows Lawnscape, Inc. for year one of a two-year renewal option; contract expiring 
December 31, 2013.  {Resolution #2013-03-057-J-4a}. 

• Green Meadows Lawnscape, Inc. has expressed interest in renewing its current contract for 
one (1) additional year for the second time under the same pricing, terms, and conditions.  
 

 
Purchasing 

• Purchasing has conducted a market survey and determined the City would not benefit from 
soliciting new bids for mowing and landscape services at this time.   

• The City of Troy has determined that Green Meadows Lawnscape, Inc. continues to 
successfully provide mowing services to the City as per all terms and conditions of the existing 
contract and also since Green Meadows Lawnscape, Inc. has offered to extend their contract 
renewal for the last year of the potential contract under the same terms and conditions as the 
2010 contract; it is recommended to exercise the last renewal on this contract. 

 
Financial 
Funds are available through the Public Works, Fire Station, Museum, and Transit Center operating 
budgets 
 
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-04a



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Recommendation 
City management recommends exercising the option to renew the last one year renewal option with 
Green Meadows Lawnscape Inc of Shelby Township (new Location), MI to provide mowing and 
landscape services of all municipal property at unit prices detailed on the bid tabulation opened 
March 1, 2010 for an estimated total cost of $410,000 contract to expire December 31, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 13-14 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 Renewal Rough Mowing ITB-COT10-04.doc 



1 
 

 
March 27, 2014 
 
To:    Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From:   Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
   MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Director 

Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
 

Subject:  Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal 
   Option – General Consulting Engineering 
      
Consulting Services History 

 
Consulting engineering services are used primarily by the Engineering Department.  They are used 
when in-house capacity is exceeded; when expertise is not available in-house; when spikes occur in 
workload, especially inspection; when technical studies or long range utility studies and/or plans are 
needed; and when reviews of complex traffic studies for major development proposals are needed. 
 
Consultant design services are usually needed for large capital projects, particularly road widening 
projects in the $3-15 million cost range.  These projects, such as the upcoming two mile John R 
widening project from Long Lake to South Boulevard, not only exceeds in-house engineering design 
capacity, but also requires engineering expertise for traffic signal replacements and street lighting 
that are not available in-house.  For these large projects approximately 80% the cost of design 
services and construction administration is reimbursed by federal funds. 
 
Consultants are used for design and/or inspection of the city’s water, sewer, and road projects.   
Permit inspections for soil erosion control and right-of-way permits for utility companies are also 
needed.  The number of these projects and permits each year far exceeds the capacity of the 
department’s one full time inspector and sometimes the capacity or our design engineers.   
 
The cost of design and inspection by consultants is included in the capital budget, while the cost of 
permit inspections by consultants is included in the Engineering Department operating budget. 
 
The City currently has three engineering consultants: Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. (HRC), Spalding 
DeDecker Associates, Inc. (SDA) and Orchard, Hiltz and McCliment, Inc. (OHM).  HRC has long 
been the City’s consultant and at one time they were the city’s only consultant.  In 2004, SDA and 
OHM were added to take advantage of the strengths of each consultant and to assure that our needs 
do not exceed the capacity of any given consultant. 
 
Over the last three (3) years the total expenditure for consulting engineering services has been 
$2,177,028:  HRC $1,464,492; SDA $582,767; and OHM $129,769.  The services provided cover a 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-04b



2 
 

wide variety, including soil erosion permit inspections; private agreement inspections for water, 
sewer, road and other construction associated with private development; inspections on city capital 
projects such as the Section 4 Water Main and Aquatic Center Habitat Restoration projects both 
currently under construction, the Crooks/I-75 intersection replacement project done last year, the 
Rochester Road reconstruction project of a few years ago and many, many others.  OHM primarily 
does our traffic study reviews, PASER ratings for all Troy roads and some construction inspection.  
Most of our design work is currently done in-house with the exception of the Transit Center and major 
road projects coming up such as John R from Long Lake to South Boulevard and Livernois from 
Long Lake to Square Lake.  
 
Consulting service costs for inspection on a variety of permits related to private development are 
budgeted in Engineering’s operating budget; the rest is budgeted in capital.  The budget for permit 
inspections was trending down during the economic downturn, as the chart below indicates, but in 
recent years it’s trending up and trending up quickly.  This is certainly good for Troy, but it means that 
with just one (1) full time inspector, down from five (5) six years ago, consulting services for 
inspection is on the rise.  The proposed 2014-15 budget for the Engineering Department reflects this 
trend with a net increase in consulting services of $285,000. 

 

GENERAL FUND 

ENGINEERING CONSULTING SERVICE COSTS - INSPECTION 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Consulting Contract History 
 
On July 21, 2008 Troy City Council approved a three (3) year contract, effective through June 30, 
2011 to provide General Consulting Engineering Services, as required by the City and to assist the 
Engineering Department as needed.  Contracts, with the option to renew for an additional three (3) 
year period under the same terms and conditions, based on mutual consent of both parties, to the 
highest rated bidders as a result of a best value process, were executed with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, 
Inc, (HRC); Spalding DeDecker Associates (SDA); and Orchard, Hiltz and McCliment, Inc. (OHM). 
(Resolution #2008-07-239-F-4b) 
 



3 
 

On June 20, 2011 Troy City Council approved the renewal for three (3) additional years for General 
Consulting Engineering Services with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc., Spalding DeDecker Associates, 
Inc., and Orchard, Hiltz and McCliment, Inc., under the same terms and conditions as the 2008 
contract, at their respective revised pricing schedules effective July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2014. 
(Resolution #2011-06-144-J-4a) 
 
The renewal included and was predicated on revised pricing schedules which contained reductions 
from 3% to 6.7%, depending on the type of service to be provided.  Revisions to the pricing schedule 
were offered and agreed upon in order to assist the City of Troy with its budget shortfall during the 
economic downturn.  Those were difficult economic times not only for the City of Troy but for the 
consultants as well.  Based on the revised pricing schedules the City of Troy has benefitted from pre- 
2008 rates for the last three (3) fiscal years.  The City has also benefitted from continuity of service 
and City of Troy specific Engineering Consulting Services delivered on an as needed basis at an 
exceptional level of service meeting all needs of the Engineering Department. 
 
Purchasing 

 
In 2008 the City of Troy issued a best value process, including a Statement of Qualifications (SOQ-
COT 08-18) which resulted in a Professional Services Agreement for General Consulting Engineering 
Services.  Because the current contract has expired; the Department conducted a market survey of 
General Consulting Engineering Services and found no reason to solicit new bids.  Additionally, all 
three respective firms were asked if they were willing to extend their contract for three (3) additional 
years.  While all three firms are interested in a renewal; they were reluctant to do so at pricing below 
2008 levels.  Subsequently, the firms offered the opportunity to extend the existing contracts as per 
the original terms and conditions, at the original 2008 rates for an additional three (3) year period.  
The City will continue to benefit from high quality engineering services at 2008 service rates through 
June 30, 2017.  The contract, consultant performance and contract billing will continue to be 
monitored very closely. 
 
Financial 

 
General Consulting Engineering Services as needed to complete capital projects are funded from 
each project’s funding source as identified in the budget.  Additionally, the Engineering Department’s  
Operating budget includes funds for general consulting services as needed for private development, 
infrastructure studies and project planning. 
 
Recommendation 

 
Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc., Spalding DeDecker Associates, Inc., and Orchard, Hiltz and McCliment, 
Inc. provide professional General Consulting Engineering Services on an exceptional level, offering 
continuity of City specific knowledge with a 2008 fee structure.  City Administration recommends that 
City Council extend the current General Consulting Engineering Services contracts for a three (3) 
year period with the contract expiring June 30, 2017. 
 
 
 
 
G:\Consulting Services\2014\Renew To CC April_2014\To CC Award Gen Eng.doc 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  April 3, 2014 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidders – Home Chore Lawn and 

Yard Services 
 
 
History 

• The City of Troy receives Community Development Block Grant funding each year and 15% of 
the total funding can be allocated for Public Services.  The City of Troy utilizes our Public 
Services allocation for the Home Chore program.  Low income qualified senior citizens and 
persons with permanent disabilities are eligible for the City’s Home Chore Program which 
offers lawn and yard services in the spring, summer and fall seasons and Snow Removal in 
the winter.  The yard services include lawn mowing plus spring and fall clean up of the 
homeowner’s yards.  Currently the City has over ninety (90) qualified recipients signed up for 
the Home Chore Program. 

• The current contract expired December 31, 2013. 
 
Purchasing 

• On March 20, 2014; a bid opening was conducted as required by City Charter/Code and bids 
were received at the City’s request from firms interested in providing seasonal requirements of 
lawn and yard services for Troy residents using the Home Chore Program with an option to 
renew for one (1) additional season.   

• Companies were notified via the Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN); 
www.mitn.info. 243 vendors were notified via the MITN website.  Five (5) bid responses were 
received.  Below is a detailed summary of the vendor responses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Companies notified via MITN 243 
Troy Companies notified via MITN 8 
Troy Companies notified Active email Notification 7 
Troy Companies notified Active Free 1 
Companies that viewed the bid  22 
Troy Companies that viewed the bid 1 

 
 

MITN provides a resourceful online platform to streamline the 
procurement process, reduce costs, and make it easier and more 
transparent for vendors to do business with the City of Troy. 
Active MITN members with a current membership and paying annual 
dues receive automatic electronic notification which allows instant 
access to Bids, RFPS and Quote opportunities with the City.   
Active MITN non-paying members are responsible to monitor and 
check the MITN website for opportunities to do business with the City. 
Inactive MITN member status can occur when a company does not 
renew their account upon expiration.  Inactive members cannot be 
notified of solicitations or access any bid information. 

 

http://www.mitn.info/�
stewartc
Text Box
J-04c



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

• The award recommendation considered the vendor offering the best combination of a variety 
of factors including:  bid price, professional competence and level of service, equipment fleet, 
references, and the comfort of the residents involved in the program.  

 
Purchasing (continued) 

• The contract warrants making an award to a primary and secondary contractor in the event the 
primary contractor is unable to perform services as specified.  The secondary vendor will be 
called upon to fulfill the terms of the contract if necessary. 

• A low total award for Proposals A and B is being recommended as neither contractor was 
interested in a split award.  Separate contracts with different vendors for each Proposal have 
proven to be an administrative nightmare, with one contractor blaming the other for 
uncompleted or shoddy work. 

 
Financial 
Funds for lawn and yard services for the Home Chore Program are available initially through the 
Public Works operating budget, then reimbursed by Oakland County through the Community 
Development Block Grant Program (CDBG). 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends City Council award contracts for seasonal requirements of lawn and 
yard services for Troy residents using the Home Chore Program with an option to renew for one (1) 
additional season to the low total bidders, Brantley Development, LLC of Inkster, MI as primary 
contractor, and Oakland Livingston Human Service Agency of Pontiac, MI, as secondary contractor at 
unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened April 1, 2014; contract to expire April 30, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(As Needed) 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality 
 
 
____________________________  ______________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney   Date 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 13-14 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 HChore Lawn Svcs ITB-COT 14-09.doc 
 
 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 14-09

Opening Date -- 4/01/2014 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 2

Date Reviewed - 4/02/2014 LAWN SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME:

EST NO.

PROPOSAL A: LAWN CARE SERVICES

70 Lawn Care Services Residential City of Troy
Lots Home -average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

24 Lawn-care Services at lots over 100 ft x 180 ft
Lots or corner lots

PROPOSAL A ESTIMATED TOTAL 26 Weeks

PROPOSAL B: YARD CLEAN UP 

70 Yard clean up at a residential City of Troy
Lots home - average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

24 Yard Clean up for lots over 100 ft x 180 ft or
Lots corner lots

PROPOSAL B ESTIMATED TOTAL 2 Weeks

GRAND TOTAL BOTH SERVICES: Estimated

SITE INSPECTIONS: Yes or No
Date

PHONE NUMBERS: Daytime
24 Hour
Contact Name
Hrs of Operation

PAYMENT TERMS:

EXCEPTIONS:

ALL OR NONE AWARD: Y or N

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: Signed Y or N

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: Attached    Y or N

ATTEST: BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER

Susan Riesterer
Rick Greenwell
Enna Bachelor ________________________________

MaryBeth Murz, 
Purchasing Manager

G:\ITB-COT 14-09 Lawn Care Home Chore Program

Monthly Invoice Net 20

810-610-0427
810-610-0427

Peter Carroll

248-693-1269
248-891-3760

3/28/2014

Stanley Brantley
7am/7pm

248-209-2675
248-342-3441

Thomas Ferguson
8am/5pm

None None

YES NO

Brantley Development

LLC

Inkster, MI

Oakland Livingston
Human Service Agency

Pontiac, MI

Outdoor Enhancements

PRICE PER SERVICE

$48,104.00

Lake Orion, MI

$32,864.00

$5,928.00

YES
2 Forms Missing YES

NO YES NO

NO
None

M-Sat. 9AM/7PM

2% 10 days

YES
YES YES

$1,728.00

$36.00

$4,200.00

$30.00

$11.00

$18,200.00

$10.00

$6,864.00$8,736.00

$14.00

$18,200.00

$10.00

PRICE PER SERVICE PRICE PER SERVICE

$14.00

$34,840.00

$9,360.00

$15.00

$25,480.00

$26,936.00 $25,064.00

$55.00

$3,744.00

$78.00

$9,520.00

$68.00

$3,264.00

$68.00

$7,700.00

$10,964.00 $13,264.00

$36,028.00



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 14-09

BID TABULATION Page 2 of 2

LAWN SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL A: LAWN CARE SERVICES

70 Lawn Care Services Residential City of Troy
Lots Home -average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

24 Lawn-care Services at lots over 100 ft x 180 ft
Lots or corner lots

PROPOSAL A ESTIMATED TOTAL 26 Weeks

PROPOSAL B: YARD CLEAN UP 

70 Yard clean up at a residential City of Troy
Lots home - average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

24 Yard Clean up for lots over 100 ft x 180 ft or
Lots corner lots

PROPOSAL B ESTIMATED TOTAL 2 Weeks

GRAND TOTAL BOTH SERVICES: Estimated

SITE INSPECTIONS: Yes or No
Date

PHONE NUMBERS: Daytime
24 Hour
Contact Name
Hrs of Operation

PAYMENT TERMS:

EXCEPTIONS:

ALL OR NONE AWARD: Y or N

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: Signed Y or N

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: Attached    Y or N

None None

6am/6pm 8am/5pm

Net 30 Net 30

Jason Gelle Michael DePlanche

586-566-9483 586-262-4981
586-615-2752 586-344-4238

$71,513.40

Services, Inc.Inc.
Utica, MIShelby Twp, MI

$51,373.40

$11,232.00
$18.00

$32,760.00
$18.00

$43,992.00

Advantage Property Universal Lawn Care,

PRICE PER SERVICEPRICE PER SERVICEPRICE PER SERVICE

$13,300.00

$20,140.00

$142.50

$95.00

$17,940.00
$28.75

$33,433.40
$18.37

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

$51,608.00

NO NO

$7,616.00

$2,016.00
$42.00

$5,600.00
$40.00

$6,840.00















 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

Date:  March 31, 2014  
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent Parks, Streets and Drains 
    
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: - Exercise Renewal Option - Aggregates 
 
 
History 

• On April 8, 2013 Troy City Council approved one (1) year contracts to provide Aggregate materials with 
an option to renew for one additional year to low bidders Tri-City Aggregates Inc of Holly, Edward C. 
Levy Co of Detroit, Novak Construction of Almont and Osburn Industries Inc of Taylor, {Resolution 
#2013-04-075-J4b}.  

• Aggregate material is used by the Department of Public Works to maintain City infrastructure including 
underground systems. 

• The current contract expires April 30, 2014. 
 
Purchasing 

• The awarded companies have met all contract terms and conditions in accordance with bid 
specifications ITB-COT 13-03. 

• Tri-City Aggregates and Novak Construction have agreed to renew their contracts under the same 
prices, specifications, terms and conditions of the original bid.  

• Osburn Industries and Edward C. Levy Co. were not interested in renewing their respective contracts 
for 6A Slag, 21AA Limestone and 3” – 6” Limestone.  These aggregates which are used on a much 
lower volume basis and are below the bid threshold; will be obtained as needed; utilizing the quote 
process. 

• Based on the current market and survey it is to the City’s advantage to renew this contract. 
 
Financial 
Funds for these materials are available through the Public Works operating budgets. 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends exercising the options to renew the contract with Tri-City Aggregates, Inc. of 
Holly and Novak Construction of Almont, for Aggregates as specified, under the same prices, terms and 
conditions for one (1) additional year; contract expiring April 30, 2015.   
 
G:\Drive Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 Aggregates ITB-COT13-03 

stewartc
Text Box
J-04d



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  April 1, 2014 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  Kurt Bovensiep, Parks, Streets and Drain Superintendent 
  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder –  

Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and Debris 
 
History 

• On March 20, 2014, bid proposals were received electronically to provide one-year requirements of 
Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and Debris with an option to renew for one (1) additional year.   

• The work includes the hauling and di sposal of broken concrete and as phalt, fill dirt excavated from 
water and sewer repairs, and catch basin sludge and street sweepings. 

• The current contract expires April 30, 2014. 
 
The award is contingent upon contractor’s submission of proper insurance certificates, and all other specified 
requirements.  
 
Purchasing 
On March 20, 2014; a bid opening was conducted as required by City Charter/Code and bids were received at 
the City’s request from firms interested in providing seasonal requirements of Hauling Disposal of Dirt and 
Debris.  Companies were notified via the Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN); www.mitn.info. 
85 vendors were notified via the MITN website.  Four (4) bid responses were received.  One (1) submitted bid 
was rejected for failure to submit required documentation.  Below is a detailed summary of the vendor 
responses. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Based upon the bid responses and as per the bid tabulation; it is in the City’s best interest to award the bid; low 
bid as specified by line item.  Awarding the bid low bid by line item will save the City an additional $8,885.00 in 
comparison to awarding the bid low bid in total. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Companies notified via MITN 85 
Troy Companies notified via MITN 1 
Troy Companies notified Active email Notification 1 
Troy Companies notified Active Free 0 
Companies that viewed the bid  31 
Troy Companies that viewed the bid 1 

 
 

MITN provides a resourceful online platform to streamline the 
procurement process, reduce costs, and make it easier and more 
transparent for vendors to do business with the City of Troy. 
Active MITN members with a current membership and paying annual 
dues receive automatic electronic notification which allows instant 
access to Bids, RFPS and Quote opportunities with the City.   
Active MITN non-paying members are responsible to monitor and 
check the MITN website for opportunities to do business with the City. 
Inactive MITN member status can occur when a company does not 
renew their account upon expiration.  Inactive members cannot be 
notified of solicitations or access any bid information. 

 

http://www.mitn.info/�
stewartc
Text Box
J-04e



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

Financial 
Funds are available through the Public Works operating budgets for the Streets and Water Divisions. 
 
Recommendation 
City Management recommends awarding contracts for one-year requirements of Hauling and Disposal of Dirt 
and Debris, with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the low bidders, Bedrock Express, LTD of 
Ortonville, MI for items #1, #2 and #3 for an estimated total cost of $57,640.00, and Dale’s Disposal of Fraser, 
MI for item #4 for an estimated total cost of $16,850.00, at the unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened March 20, 2014; contracts to expire April 30, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 13-14 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 HaulingDisposal DirtDebris ITB-COT 14-07.doc 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 14-07
Opening Date - 03/20/2014 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 1
Date Reviewed - 3/28/2014 HAULING/DISPOSAL OF DIRT AND DEBRIS

VENDOR NAME: Bedrock Express, LTD. Dale's Disposal, Inc. Homrich Inc.
Electronic Bid Ortonville, MI Fraser, MI Carleton, MI

PROPOSAL: One (1) year requirements of Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and Debris with an option to renew for 

one (1) additional year. 

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/

ITEM QTY(TONS)   DESCRIPTION TON TON TON

1 3,000 Broken concrete with & without wire, possibly mixed $5.24 $9.75 $22.14
 w/fill dirt

2 1,000 Broken asphalt possibly mixed with fill dirt $5.24 $16.85 $22.14

3 7,000 Fill Dirt, material excavated from water and sewer $5.24 $9.75 $22.14
repairs.

4 1,000 Catch basin sludge and street sweepings. $18.49 $16.85 $27.93

ESTIMATED TOTAL ALL ITEMS: (1 - 4) $83,375.00 $139,625.00 $285,435.00

ESTIMATED TOTAL BID AWARDED BY LINE ITEM/VENDOR: $57,640.00 $16,850.00

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 10 None No discount

PRICING GUARANTEE 3 years 1 year 90 days

DELIVERY/START DATE: 3/21/2014 4/1/2014 3/24/2014

MINIMUM ORDER: Yes/40 No No

REFERENCES: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

DISPOSAL SITE: Yes Yes Yes

APPROVED SITE Y or N Yes Yes Yes
EPA PERMIT #: SWA 060810 9307 9354

48 HOUR SERVICE - CATCH BASIN MATERIAL

Can Meet Yes Yes Yes
Cannot Meet 

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Operations 8 a.m./ 6 p.m. 7 a.m./ 5:30 p.m. 7 a.m./ 7 p.m.
24 Hr Phone # 810-217-6324 586-524-1948 734-915-2254
Tax ID # 38-2691219 N/A 38-2146255

SITE VISIT: Yes/No Yes No Yes
Date

EXCEPTIONS:

INSURANCE: Can Meet Yes Yes Yes
Cannot Meet

EQUIPMENT LIST: Attached Y or N Yes Yes Yes

ATTEST:

Susan Riesterer

Enna Bachelor

Emily Frontera

___________________________
MaryBeth Murz,
Purchasing Manager

HIGHLIGHTED AREA DENOTES LOW BIDDER BY LINE ITEM.

Contaminated Hazardous 
Dirt Not included.

NoneNone

The bid submitted by Osburn Industries was rejected for failure to submit required 
documentation.



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  March 31, 2014 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent Parks, Streets and Drains 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award – Upgraded Landscape Maintenance 
 
 
History 
The Parks Division is responsible for the maintenance of the City’s medians and municipal property, which includes 
the Civic Center Complex and t he medians along the Troy Downtown Development Authority (TDDA).  This 
responsibility includes maintaining the turf through cutting, weed control, and fertilizing along with maintaining the 
landscape beds through mulching, trimming trees and shrubs, and weeding.  Image is a very important consideration 
when improving the economic status of the corridor, which also is why the city provides a higher level of 
maintenance to this area when compared to other non-irrigated medians and municipal facilities throughout the City. 
 
Because it has become difficult to predict how local weather patterns may influence the growth of landscape; the City 
of Troy issued a Request for Proposals for Upgraded Landscape Maintenance to be awarded as a performance-
based contract.  A performance-based contract ensures the awarded contractor shall be 100% contract compliant by 
including and imposing financial penalties to the contractor if specific contracted maintenance requirements are not 
met.  The proposals were rated on specific factors; such as company expertise and professionalism, achievement 
awards, certifications, specific types of equipment, pricing and professional references from other comparable 
municipalities. 
 
Purchasing 
On February 27, 2014, a bid opening was conducted as required by City Charter and Code for Upgrade Landscape 
Maintenance.  The bid was posted on the Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network (MITN) website; www.mitn.info 
and was sent to the Troy Chamber of Commerce.  Three (3) bid proposals were received.  Below is a detailed 
summary of potential vendors for both bid opportunities: 
 
 

Companies notified via MITN 240 
Troy Companies notified via MITN 10 
Troy Companies notified Active email Notification 8 
Troy Companies notified Active Free 2 
Companies that viewed the bid  46 
Troy Companies that viewed the bid 6 

  
After reviewing the bid proposals, W.H. Cannon, Inc., of Romulus MI, scored the highest on meeting all specifications 
and is being recommended as the best value award for the City to provide Upgraded Landscaping Maintenance 
Services at unit pricing as detailed in the attached bid tabulation. 
 

MITN provides a resourceful online platform to streamline the procurement 
process, reduce costs, and make it easier and more transparent for vendors 
to do business with the City of Troy. 
Active MITN members with a current membership and paying annual dues 
receive automatic electronic notification which allows instant access to Bids, 
RFPS and Quote opportunities with the City.   
Active MITN non-paying members are responsible to monitor and check 
the MITN website for opportunities to do business with the City. 
Inactive MITN member status can occur when a company does not renew 
their account upon expiration.  Inactive members cannot be notified of 
solicitations or access any bid information. 

 
 

http://www.mitn.info/�
stewartc
Text Box
J-04f



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Financial 
Funds are available in the Parks Division Operating Budget.  
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding a contract for providing Upgraded Landscape Maintenance to; W.H. 
Cannon, Inc., of Romulus Michigan, as per unit bid pricing; for an estimated total cost of $122,000.00 per year; not to 
exceed budgetary limitations at prices contained in the bid tabulation opened February 27, 2014.  The award is 
contingent upon the contractors’ submission of properly executed bid documents including insurance certificates, 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 13-14 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 Upgraded Landscape Maintenance RFP-COT 14-04  



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 14-04
Opening Date -- 2/27/2014 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 2
Date Reviewed -- 3/18/2014 UPGRADED LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:

Check #
Check Amount

fungicides, algaecides, and pesticides, watering, pruning, weeding, deadheading, mulching, replacement plantings (as approved by 

PROPOSAL A: LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES 2014 2015 2016 2014 2015 2016

$114,800.00 $114,800.00 $114,800.00 $115,000.00 $115,000.00 $115,000.00

COST PER ACRE: $60.00 $60.00 $60.00 $110.00 $110.00 $110.00
To add or delete acreage during the contract term.

ADDITIONAL SERVICES:  Cost per Acre 2014 2015 2016 2014 2015 2016

Before April 1st or after November 30th.
     Additional Mowing: $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $55.00 $55.00 $55.00
     Additional Edging: $20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $32.00 $32.00 $32.00
     Additional Trimming: $20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $32.00 $32.00 $32.00

PROPOSAL B: LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES IN 2014 2015 2016 2014 2015 2016

ACCORDANCE WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS; 

For three (3) gardens: The Peace Garden, Veteran's 
Memorial Plaza and the City Hall Atriums.

$4,500.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00

PROPOSAL C: Hourly Rate for additional work as 2014 2015 2016 2014 2015 2016

required and directed by the City.

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $119,300.00 $119,300.00 $119,300.00 $122,000.00 $122,000.00 $122,000.00

$35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $35.00

PROPOSAL D: IRRIGATION MAINTENANCE PARTS IN 2014 2015 2016 2014 2015 2016

ACCORDANCE WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS

15% 15% 15% 15% 15% 15%

QUESTIONAIRE: 

INSURANCE: Y/N

SITE INSPECTION:

SIGNATURE PAGE: Y/N

PAYMENT TERMS:

EXCEPTIONS:

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE ENCLOSED: Y/N

CONTACT INFORMATION Hrs of Operation
24 Hr. Phone #
Contact Name

REFERENCES: Y/N

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Signed Y/N

Forms (5) Y/N

Yes

Yes

Yes

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF:

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS

PROPOSAL:  Proposal A and B includes but is not limited to mowing, application of fertilizers, soil amendments, herbicides,

the City of Troy), hardscape maintenance/cleaning, spring/fall cleanup, and irrigation maintenance.

Yes Yes

A PERCENTAGE ABOVE COST:

Company visited locations on:

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF:

MAN HOUR RATE:

Yes

Yes

Yes

Company did not visit locations:

Tom DeClerck

Yes Yes

Yes Yes

Brian McDonald

Yes Yes

W.H. Cannon, Inc.

$15,000.00 $15,000.00

Green Meadows Lawnscape, Inc.
#22855920 #390411

All of 2013 Season Feb. 12,13,14

None None

Net 45 Net 30

586-855-3796
7 a.m. / 8 p.m.

734-732-1761

YesYes



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 14-04
Opening Date -- 2/27/2014 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 2
Date Reviewed -- 3/18/2014 UPGRADED LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:

Check #
Check Amount

fungicides, algaecides, and pesticides, watering, pruning, weeding, deadheading, mulching, replacement plantings ( as approved by 

PROPOSAL A: LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES 2014 2015 2016 2014 2015 2016

173,000.00 173,000.00 173,000.00

COST PER ACRE: $2,890.18 $2,890.18 $2,890.18
To add or delete acreage during the contract term.

ADDITIONAL SERVICES:  Cost per Acre 2014 2015 2016 2014 2015 2016

Before April 1st or after November 30th.
     Additional Mowing: $48.00 $48.00 $48.00
     Additional Edging: $15.00 $15.00 $15.00
     Additional Trimming: $15.00 $15.00 $15.00

PROPOSAL B: LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES IN 2014 2015 2016 2014 2015 2016

ACCORDANCE WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS; 

For three (3) gardens: The Peace Garden, Veteran's 
Memorial Plaza and the City Hall Atriums.

$4,700.00 $4,700.00 $4,700.00

PROPOSAL C: Hourly Rate for additional work as 2014 2015 2016 2014 2015 2016

required and directed by the City.

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $177,700.00 $177,700.00 $177,700.00

$33.00 $33.00 $33.00

PROPOSAL D: IRRIGATION MAINTENANCE PARTS IN 2014 2015 2016 2014 2015 2016

ACCORDANCE WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS

20% 20% 20%

QUESTIONAIRE: 

INSURANCE: Y/N

SITE INSPECTION:

SIGNATURE PAGE: Y/N

PAYMENT TERMS:

EXCEPTIONS:

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE ENCLOSED: Y/N

CONTACT INFORMATION Hrs of Operation
24 Hr. Phone #
Contact Name

REFERENCES: Y/N

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Signed Y/N

Forms (5) Y/N
Bold Type Indicates Best Value Proposal.

ATTEST:
Susan Riesterer __________________________

MaryBeth Murz, 
Purchasing Manager

G:\RFP-COT 14-04 Upgraded Landscape Mntce

N/A
N/A

Yes

Yes

Yes

Kurt Bovensiep

N/A

None

Yes

A PERCENTAGE ABOVE COST:

Company visited locations on: 11-Feb
Company did not visit locations:

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Net 30

MAN HOUR RATE:

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF:

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF:

the City of Troy), hardscape maintenance/cleaning, spring/fall cleanup, and irrigation maintenance.

United Lawnscapes, Inc.

$15,000.00
PROPOSAL:  Proposal A and B includes but is not limited to mowing, application of fertilizers, soil amendments, herbicides,

#11421600461



 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

UPGRADED LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE 
 
STATISTICS: 

 
 Two hundred and forty (240) company’s were notified via the MITN e-procurement website 

 
 Three (3) proposals were received 
 
 All three (3) companies met the pass/fail criteria 

 
 It was not necessary to conduct equipment inspections with the top two (2) companies 
 
 W.H. Canon, Inc. received the highest score as a result of a best value process  

 
The following two (2) companies received the indicated final scores as a result of the 
proposal and pricing scores.   
   
 

Company SCORE 
W.H. Canon, Inc.  67.48 

Green Meadows Lawnscape, Inc.  59.29 

 
Attachments: 
 

 Weighted Final Scoring of 70% includes Proposal and Price Evaluation  
 Evaluation Process 
 Original Tabulation 

 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  March 27, 2014 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 

Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
Samuel P. Lamerato, Superintendent of Fleet Maintenance    

 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement – 

Fleet Vehicles 
 
History 
The five (5) vehicles being purchased are replacement vehicles for the Public Works Department. The five (5) 
obsolete vehicles will be removed from service and sold at auction with estimated proceeds of $20,000.00.  This 
purchase replaces existing vehicles and does not increase the size of the existing Department of Public Works 
motor pool fleet. 
 
Purchasing 
Red Holman Buick, GMC is the low total bidder in the Oakland County Cooperative Bid. The Oakland County 
Contract ID number is 3003 & 4019.  The contract pricing is valid thru 2014 model year GMC vehicles.   
 
Financial 
Funds are available in the Public Works Fleet Division capital account. 

  
       Red Holman Buick, GMC   Budget    Unit Cost        Estimated Total 
     
  (4) 1500 GMC Pickups 2X4    $  80,000.00      $19,783.00  $   79,132.00 
  (1) 3500 GMC Savana Cargo Van    $  24,000.00      $22,660.00  $   22,660.00 
  (5)                    $104,000.00               $ 101,792.00 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding a contract to purchase four (4) 2014 GMC ½ ton pickups and one (1)  
2014 GMC Savana cargo van, for the Public Works Department from the low total bidder, Red Holman Buick, 
GMC of Westland, MI, as per the Oakland County Cooperative Bid for an estimated total cost of $101,792.00.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 13-14 New Format\ Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 4 Vehicles - Oakland .doc 
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-04g



 

 
April 2, 2014 
 
 
TO:    Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development  
   Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:             Standard Purchasing Resolution #1: Award to Low Bidder 
              Contract 14-1 – Section 36 Overlay 
 
History 
 
The following roads in Section 36 are proposed to receive an asphalt pavement overlay: Iowa, Wisconsin, 
Dashwood and Minnesota.  This project includes milling (grinding off) select areas of the existing pavement 
and then placing a new asphalt pavement surface.  A section of Minnesota, from Maple Road to approximately 
200’ south of Maple Road, will be removed and replaced to allow for drainage improvements on the east side 
near the party store.  Also included is a new concrete drive to allow maintenance access by DPW to the lift 
station located near Minnesota and Lovington.  Work is anticipated to start in May and all work including 
restoration is to be complete by June 30, 2014.   
 
Purchasing 
 
Bids were received and publicly read on April 2, 2014.  The low bid of $278,254.00 was submitted by Asphalt 
Specialists, Inc., 1780 E. Highwood, Pontiac, MI 48340, as shown on the attached tabulation summary. The 
Engineer’s estimate at the time of bidding was $382,260.00.  The low bid is $104,006.00 or 27.2% below the 
Engineer’s estimate. 
 
Work was competitively bid and publicly opened with seven (7) bidders responding.  The award is contingent 
upon submission of proper proposal and bid documents, including insurance certificates, bonds and all 
specified requirements. 
 
Financial 
 
Funds for this work are included in the Local Roads Fund.  The budgeted amount includes funds for 
construction, inspection and contingencies. 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that City Council award the Section 36 Overlay contract to Asphalt Specialists, Inc., 1780 
E. Highwood, Pontiac, MI 48340, for their low bid of $278,254.00.  In addition, we are requesting authorization 
to approve additional work, if needed, not to exceed 15% of the original project cost due to unknown quantities 
of repair work needed after milling off the asphalt surface. 
 
WJH/ G:\Contracts\Contracts - 2014\Contract 14-1 - Section 36 Overlay\Correspondence\Bid Award.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-04h







stewartc
Text Box
J-05

























































































February 21, 2014 
 

 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From:  Gary G Mayer, Chief of Police 
  William Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
Subject:   Adoption of the Oakland County Hazard Mitigation Plan  
________________________________________________________________ 
 
History 
 
In order to be eligible for Federal Hazard Mitigation Grants as authorized under 
Section 404 of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program, FEMA has mandated that governmental units 
have in place a comprehensive disaster and hazard mitigation plan.  Locally, 
eligibility for these grants requires adoption of and participation in the Oakland 
County Hazard Mitigation Plan.   
 
The City of Troy’s Emergency Response and Preparedness Team, a joint police 
and fire department operation, assisted in the development of the county-wide 
plan. On January 13, 2013, the Oakland County Board of Commissioners 
adopted the Oakland County Hazard Mitigation Plan. 
 
The Oakland County Hazard Mitigation Plan is over 300 pages, and can be found 
at the following address:   
 
http://www.oakgov.com/homelandsecurity/Documents/HM%20Final%20Plan_Pu
blic%20Distribution.pdf 
 
With the many personnel changes over the last few years, there is a need for 
EOP training for each of the departments responsible for emergency operations. 
This will be conducted during calendar year 2014.   
 
Purchasing 
 
None 
 
Financial 
 
None 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
City management recommends that the Troy City Council adopt the Oakland 
County Hazard Mitigation Plan by resolution.     
 
Prepared by:  Sgt. Donald Ostrowski 

http://www.oakgov.com/homelandsecurity/Documents/HM%20Final%20Plan_Public%20Distribution.pdf
http://www.oakgov.com/homelandsecurity/Documents/HM%20Final%20Plan_Public%20Distribution.pdf
stewartc
Text Box
J-06



stewartc
Text Box
J-07









 

 
March 27, 2014 
 
 
TO:     Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 

Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Addendum #1:   Aquatic Center Backwash Discharge 

Modification 
 
History: 
 
During the Aquatic Center Habitat Restoration project it was determined that the pool’s backwash 
water was pumped into the onsite storm sewer and being discharged into the detention pond 
adjacent to Town Center Drive.  This method of disposal was acceptable when the Aquatic Center 
was built in the 1990’s, but it does not meet current environmental regulations.  The filter backwash 
water must now be directed to a sanitary sewer. 
 
Due to work scheduled for the pond this spring as part of the Aquatic Center Habitat Restoration 
project and start up of the pool in May, the sanitary sewer must be expedited and become 
operational by May 9, 2014.  Because of this short timeframe, quotes for the work were solicited from 
three well qualified underground contractors who are currently under contract with the city for various 
water main projects.   
 
The low quote of $131,150 submitted by Superior Excavating is $30,450 or 19% under the engineer’s 
estimate of $162,000. 
 
Superior is currently under contract with the City for the Section 4 Water Main project, which was 
awarded on June 17, 2013 (Resolution #2013-06-119-J-4d).  The amount of that contract is 
$2,632,685.  Construction started in January and is expected to be complete by the end of June.  All 
water main work is complete.  The remaining work includes storm drains, final grading and landscape 
restoration.  Addendum #1 for the sanitary sewer work at the Aquatic Center would be an addition to 
the Section 4 Water Main project.   
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
Funds for this work are included in the 2013-14 Sewer Fund.  The budgeted amount includes funds 
for construction, inspection and contingencies. 
 
 
 
 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-08



 
 
 

Legal Considerations: 
 
Addendum #1 is contingent upon contractor execution of the addendum documents, and subject to 
all insurance, bonds and all specified requirements of the Section 4 Water Main project. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
It is recommended that City Council approve Addendum #1 with Superior Excavating, Inc. of Auburn 
Hills, MI for the Aquatic Center Backwash Discharge Modification project.  This addendum in the 
amount of $131,150 is for additional work to be done under the Section 4 Water Main contract.     
 
In addition, we are requesting authorization to approve additional work, if needed, not to exceed 20% 
of the project cost due to unknown underground and tight working conditions adjacent to the pool’s 
pump house.  Enterprise (sewer) funds are being used to fund this work, which can only be used for 
sanitary sewer system improvements, maintenance and operation of the sewer system.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Contracts\Contracts - 2013\Contract 13-03 - Aquatic Center Pond\Correspondence\Contract Mod - Backwash Sanitary\Addendum1BackwashSewer.doc 
 



 
 
 

Legal Considerations: 
 
Addendum #1 is contingent upon contractor execution of the addendum documents, and subject to 
all insurance, bonds and all specified requirements of the Section 4 Water Main project. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
It is recommended that City Council approve Addendum #1 with Superior Excavating, Inc. of Auburn 
Hills, MI for the Aquatic Center Backwash Discharge Modification project.  This addendum in the 
amount of $131,150 is for additional work to be done under the Section 4 Water Main contract.     
 
In addition, we are requesting authorization to approve additional work, if needed, not to exceed 20% 
of the project cost due to unknown underground and tight working conditions adjacent to the pool’s 
pump house.  Enterprise (sewer) funds are being used to fund this work, which can only be used for 
sanitary sewer system improvements, maintenance and operation of the sewer system.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Contracts\Contracts - 2013\Contract 13-03 - Aquatic Center Pond\Correspondence\Contract Mod - Backwash Sanitary\Addendum1BackwashSewer.doc 

 
 



Page 1 4/1/2014

QUOTE TABULATION Quotes Due: March 26, 2014

City of Troy
Oakland County, Michigan

Contractor  Total Bid Amount 

Superior Excavating, Inc. $131,150.00

Bricco Excavating Co,. L.L.C. $155,227.00

C & P Construction Co, Inc. $228,230.00

Aquatic Center Backwash Discharge Modification



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  April 1, 2014 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
  Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way Representative 
    
Subject: Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed and Four Permanent Easements for Belleclaire 

Estates Site Condominium - Sidwell #88-20-14-351-098, 099, 100, 101 & 102 
 
 
 
History 
 
As part of the new Belleclaire Estates Site Condominium development located in the southwest ¼ of Section 
14, the Engineering department has received a warranty deed for detention purposes and four permanent 
easements for water mains, storm sewers, surface drainage, public utilities, and emergency ingress/egress.  
The conveyance of interest is from Mondrian Properties Belleclaire, LLC, owner of the properties having 
Sidwell #88-20-14-351-098, 099, 100, 101 & 102. 
 
The format and content of the warranty deed and easements is consistent with conveyances previously 
accepted by City Council.  
 
 
Financial 
 
The consideration amount on each document is $1.00 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
City Management recommends that City Council accept the attached warranty deed and four permanent 
easements consistent with our policy of accepting warranty deeds and easements for development and 
improvement purposes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\MEMOS TO MAYOR AND CC\Belleclaire 4-1-14.doc 

stewartc
Text Box
J-09





































 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
Date: April 1, 2014 
 
To:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
 R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
Subject: ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING (APRIL 14, 2014) - CONDITIONAL 

REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 011) – Proposed Amber Town Center 
Townhomes and Lofts, West side of Livernois, North of Town Center (3409 Livernois), 
Section 21, From O (Office) District to BB (Big Beaver) District 

 
 
The applicant, Amber Properties Company, seeks a conditional rezoning of the subject parcel from 
O (Office) District to BB (Big Beaver) District. The applicant had submitted a standard rezoning 
application that was denied by City Council on January 27, 2014. The applicant had also submitted 
a separate Preliminary Site Plan application for a 5-story building, 61 feet in height. The applicant 
has submitted a new conditional rezoning application, including a revised site plan for a 4-story 
building, approximately 50 feet in height. A condition offered by the applicant is the Preliminary Site 
Plan, which will control the future development of the site. 
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on March 25, 2014 and recommended 
approval of the application by an 8-0 vote. 
 
The site is within the Big Beaver classification in the City of Troy Master Plan, which supports multi-
story residential development. The application is consistent with the Master Plan. 
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the rezoning request. City Management recommends approval of the 
rezoning request from O (Office) District to BB (Big Beaver) District. A City Council public hearing 
has been scheduled for April 14, 2014. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Map 
2. Minutes from March 11, 2014 Planning Commission Regular meeting 
3. Minutes (draft) from March 25, 2014 Planning Commission Special/Study meeting (excerpt) 
4. Agenda item from March 25, 2014 Planning Commission Regular meeting 

 
G:\Conditional Rezoning\CR-011  Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts  Sec 21\CC Memo_Announce Public Hearing 2014 04 07.doc 

stewartc
Text Box
K-01a



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

15,568

1:

Feet15,5680 7,784



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 11, 2014 
  
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
7. CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 011) – Proposed 

Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts, West side of Livernois, North of 
Town Center (3409 Livernois), Section 21, From O (Office) District to BB (Big 
Beaver) District 
 
Mr. Savidant provided a history on the previous traditional rezoning request 
denied by City Council on January 27, 2014 and a previously submitted site plan 
that related to the traditional rezoning request. He addressed changes in the 
proposed Conditional Rezoning application which is scheduled for a Public 
Hearing on March 25, 2014. Mr. Savidant summarized the proposed 
development is lower in profile. He displayed color renderings provided by the 
applicant. 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed the differences between a traditional rezoning request 
and a conditional rezoning request. 
 
Present were the petitioner, Jerome Amber, and the project architect, Justin 
Wieber of SHW Group. 
 
Mr. Amber addressed the Master Plan, noting the project is market driven and he 
has tenants who want to move to Troy. 
 
Mr. Wieber addressed the changes in the proposed preliminary site plan. 
• Elimination of one floor. 
• Improved sight lines. 
• Reduced number of balconies. 
• Increased brick on rear elevation. 
• Reduced parking. 
• Increased greenbelt and landscape. 
• Additional glazing on front elevation. 
 
Mr. Wieber gave an explanation on the sight line drawings that were displayed. 
 
Chair Edmunds opened the floor for public comment. There was no one present; 
the floor was closed for public comment. 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 25, 2014 
   
 
 

CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST 
 
9. PUBLIC HEARING – CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number 

CR 011) – Proposed Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts, West side of 
Livernois, North of Town Center (3409 Livernois), Section 21, From O (Office) 
District to BB (Big Beaver) District 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the proposed Conditional Rezoning application for Amber 
Town Center Townhomes and Lofts and gave a history of the proposed 
development as relates to the previous traditional rezoning submission. He 
addressed the follow changes proposed in the Conditional Rezoning application: 
 

• Building height reduced by one story; 4 story, 51 feet high. 
• Number of units reduced. 
• Additional green space. 
• Reduction in parking spaces. 
• Greater percentage of brick on elevations. 
• Open space exceeds requirement. 
 
Mr. Savidant said the Preliminary Site Plan submitted represents the conditions 
as proposed and if the Conditional Rezoning application is ultimately approved by 
City Council, the conditions would be final. He said any significant modifications in 
the future would have to come back before the Planning Commission for review 
and approval. Mr. Savidant said the proposed conditions volunteered by the 
applicant would control future development of the property. 
 
Mr. Savidant said it is recommended to approve the proposed Conditional 
Rezoning application for the reasons as provided by the Planning Consultant in 
his report dated March 13, 2014. 
 
There was discussion on: 
• Proposed open space; surpasses minimum requirement of 15%. 
• Density compared to existing apartment buildings in City. 
• Traffic generation; reviewed by City Traffic Engineer. 
• Building addressing; charge of the City’s Building Department. 
• Reciprocal cross access easement/agreement with property to the north. 
 
Dennis Cowan of Plunkett Cooney was present to represent the petitioner. Mr. 
Cowan said it is their belief the Conditional Rezoning application addresses 
every concern expressed by the Planning Commission, City Council and 
neighbors, both commercial and residential. He said the proposed development 
remains a viable and economic project. 
 
Justin Wieber of SHW Group, project architect, displayed and addressed the 
sight line demonstrations, renderings and elevations. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 25, 2014 
   
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Craig Goldin of Cosmetic Dentistry Institute, 3415 Livernois, spoke in opposition. 
He addressed the Master Plan, visibility of his office building, potential increase 
in traffic and concerns with parking and wear and tear on the parking lot as 
relates to the cross access easement. 
 
Michael Fahmy of OMPT Specialists, 3435 Livernois, spoke in opposition. He 
addressed the potential increase in traffic, visibility of existing office buildings and 
safety of his clientele. 
 
Sanjay Shah of 123 Millstone spoke in opposition. He distributed information he 
prepared relating to surrounding zoning, the Master Plan, traffic, compatibility of 
proposed use and the knowledge of a prospective purchaser of the subject 
property with an interest to develop office. 
 
Mr. Savidant clarified the information received from Mr. Shah as relates to the 
surrounding zoning and advised Mr. Shah and the audience of the legal zoning 
classifications of the surrounding area. 
 
Chetan Rastogi of 3535 Cherished View spoke in opposition. He addressed 
potential increase of traffic and safety of children. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Hutson said is supportive of the application. He outlined the activity of 
development around the office building in which he works located at 292 Town 
Center since constructed in 1985. He said the missing element is residential with 
the access to community services such as the library, aquatic center and 
recreational center. 
 
Mr. Schultz said he is supportive of the application because it is a good 
development in a good location. He addressed the application process, traffic 
and alternative living accommodations. Mr. Schultz said he is pleased the 
petitioner is offering a conditional rezoning so there is control going forward with 
any future development. He hopes the City Council will share the vision of the 
Planning Commission and provide new housing stock within the City. 
 
Mr. Tagle said he is supportive of the application and agrees the proposed 
development would provide the walkability, sustainability and a different housing 
stock, views shared in the 20/20 Vision study in which residents were involved. 
 
Mr. Krent addressed the generation of traffic and parking for office versus 
residential with respect to the times of day. He addressed the visibility of existing 
buildings as relates to any development on the subject parcel. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 25, 2014 
   
 
 

Mr. Savidant confirmed the Preliminary Site Plan application meets all 
requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. He addressed the vacancy history and 
the potential development of the subject parcel under its existing zoning 
classification. 
 
Mr. Strat said he is supportive of the application. He said it is an excellent 
location for young professionals to reside with its close proximity to the City 
campus. 
 
Mr. Sanzica said he is supportive of the application. He commended the 
petitioner on the application and his existing developments in Royal Oak and 
Clawson. 
 
Chair Edmunds said he is happy to support the recommendation to City Council, 
noting the petitioner went beyond all expectations. 
 
Mr. Cowan addressed the Probate Court’s decision on the conservatorship of the 
subject property. 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-03-019 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Krent 
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the O to BB conditional rezoning request, which incorporates 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as per Section 16.04 of the City of Troy Zoning 
Ordinance, located on the west side of Livernois, north of Town Center (3409 
Livernois), within Section 21, being approximately 1.23 acres in size, be granted. 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
 

MOTION PASSED 
 
Mr. Savidant announced a Public Hearing on the proposed Conditional Rezoning 
application is scheduled for the April 14, 2014 City Council meeting. 
 
 

G:\Conditional Rezoning\CR-011  Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts  Sec 21\Minutes\2014 03 25 PC Minutes Excerpt_Draft.doc 



PC 2013.03.25 
Agenda Item # 9 

      
 

 
 
 
DATE: March 20, 2014 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING - CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number 

CR 011) – Proposed Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lof ts, West side of 
Livernois, North of Town Center (3409 Livernois), Section 21, From O (Office) 
District to BB (Big Beaver) District 

 
The applicant, Amber Properties Company, seeks a conditional rezoning of the subject parcel 
from O (Office) District to BB (Big Beaver) District. The applicant submitted a s tandard 
rezoning application that was considered on num erous occasions by the Planning 
Commission. The rezoning was denied by City Council on January 27, 2014. The applicant 
had also submitted a separate Preliminary Site Plan application for a five-story building, 61 
feet in height. The applicant has submitted a new conditional rezoning application, including a 
revised site plan for a four-story building, approximately 51 feet in height. A condition offered 
by the applicant is the Preliminary Site Plan, which will control the future development of the 
site. 
 
The site is within the Big Beaver classification in the City of Troy Master Plan. This 
classification supports residential development along the Big Beaver Corridor.  
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the rezoning request. CWA prepared the report with input from 
various City departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and F ire. City 
Management supports the findings of fact contained in the report and agrees with the 
recommendation.   
 
A Planning Commission public hearing has been scheduled for March 25, 2014.   
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. City of Troy Master Plan (excerpt) 
3. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.  

 
G:\Conditional Rezoning\CR-011  Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts  Sec 21\PC Memo 03 25 2014.doc 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING - CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 011) 
– Proposed Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts, West side of Livernois, North of 
Town Center (3409 Livernois), Section 21, From O (Office) District to BB (Big Beaver) 
District 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-03- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the O to  BB conditional rezoning request, which incorporates Preliminary Site 
Plan Approval, as per Section 16.04 of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, located on 
the west side of Livernois, north of Town Center (3409 Livernois), within Section 21, 
being approximately 1.23 acres in size, be granted, subject to the following 
conditions:  
 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
MOTION PASSED / FAILED 
 

 
 
G:\Conditional Rezoning\CR-011  Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts  Sec 21\Proposed PC Resolution cr-
011 2013 03 25.doc 



3409 Livernois, CR 011

1: 1,000

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

830167 167Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

3/3/2014

Legend:
Street Name Text



3409 Livernois, CR 011

1: 1,200

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1000200 200Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

3/3/2014

Legend:
Street Name Text
Form Based Zoning (Current)

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MR) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MF) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales



101

CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN

CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

Big Beaver Road: 

A World Class Boulevard

Home to large, landmark projects and • 
mixed-use regional destinations.
Central gathering area of the community.• 
A collection of international corporations, • 
local companies, and establishments which 
complement these high-visibility uses. 

The Big Beaver Road corridor is responsible 
for the fi rst impression many people have 
throughout Michigan when they think of the 
City of Troy.    The high-rise buildings, Somerset 
Collection, and its immediate proximity to 
I-75 are frequently the main elements visitors 
remember about the Corridor and the City.   In 

order to remain competitive and continue 

to be a leader in economic development 

in Southeast Michigan, Troy must plan for 

this Corridor to evolve in light of a changing 

economy.  In that spirit, the City adopted the 
key concepts of the Big Beaver Corridor Study in 
2006:

Gateways, Districts and Transitions • 
Trees and Landscape as Ceilings and Walls • 
Walking Becomes Entertainment - Much to • 
Observe & Engage In 
Mixing the Uses Turns on the Lights - • 
Energetic Dynamic of Mixed Uses with a 
Focus on Residential 

The Automobile & Parking are No Longer #1. • 
Civic Art as the Wise Sage of the Boulevard• 

The uses and character of this future 

land use category are driven by the 

recommendations of the Big Beaver Corridor 

Study and subsequent eff orts of the Planning 

Commission to create new zoning techniques 

to implement those recommendations.

This Study provided a comprehensive analysis 
of the existing and potential characteristics 
of this important area.  The planned future 
land uses in the Big Beaver Corridor are in 
large part considered mixed-use, to allow for a 
wave of new residential development and the 
redevelopment of individual sites to make a 
more meaningful contribution to the quality of 
life of the City.  The main diff erence between the 
various mixed-use districts planned in the Study 
is building height.  The intended characteristics 
of the various districts are also very diff erent, 
and are the topic of in-depth analysis in the 
Study.  Some important recommendations of 
that Study are listed below.  

Moving toward the creation of distinct • 
physical districts by building from lot line to 
lot line along the right-of-way rather than 
continuing to be a collection of isolated 
towers.    

Becoming fl exible with land use • 
relationships.  The use of vertically 
integrated mixed-use commercial, offi  ce 
and residential towers should be promoted.  
The use of prominent ground fl oor retail, 
restaurants and cafes allows visual interest 
and activity for visitors and residents.      

Contain parking in structures that are shared • 
by surrounding developments.  Do not allow 
off -street parking to be visible from major 
thoroughfares.  

Landscape Big Beaver and intersecting • 
thoroughfares with rows of mature trees.

BIG BEAVER ROAD



102 CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

DESIGN CONCEPT
This will be a vibrant high-rise business and • 
residential district.  

Pedestrian use will be promoted through • 
massive landscaping, wide sidewalks, 
outdoor cafes, and public art.  

The Big Beaver Corridor Study and Big • 
Beaver Development Code provide for a 
specifi c land development pattern.   

Architectural design must create an • 
interesting visual experience for both 
sidewalk users at close range and for those 
viewing the skyline from a distance.

SITE DESIGN ATTRIBUTES
Parking should be located in rear yards.• 

Development should include intense street • 
tree planting along Big Beaver.

Cafes, plazas, parks and similar amenities to • 
draw pedestrians will be encouraged.

Buildings will frame the street network by • 
building to the front and side property lines.  
Exceptions for cafes, plazas and access roads 
may be permitted.  

BUILDING DESIGN ATTRIBUTES
Buildings should rise in height toward • 
Crooks Road in the east-west direction.  

Buildings should rise in height toward Big • 
Beaver in the north-south direction.

Ground level stories should be a minimum of • 
twelve feet in height; with large expanses of 
transparent glass.  

Fenestration at the ground level should be • 
highlighted through the use of awnings, 
overhangs or trim detailing, and building 
caps or roofs should provide a visually 
interesting skyline.

Concept Sketch from the Big Beaver Corridor Study; Birchler Arroyo Associates, Inc.

Big Beaver Corridor Study; Birchler Arroyo Associates, Inc.



 

  

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662-2200 
(734) 662-1935 Fax 

 
Date:  March 13, 2014 

 

Conditional Rezoning and Preliminary Site Plan Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Jerome S. Amber, Amber Properties Company 
 380 N. Crooks Road 
 Clawson, Michigan 48017 
 
Project Name: Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts 
 
Plan Date: January 10, 2014 
 
Location: Northwest corner of Livernois Road and Town Center Drive 
 
Zoning: O, Office District, requesting rezoning to BB, Big Beaver District 
 
Action Requested: Conditional Rezoning and Preliminary Site Plan Approval 
 
Required Information: Noted Below 
 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROJECT STATUS 
 
The Amber Properties Company is requesting a conditional rezoning of the Northwest corner of 
Livernois Road and Town Center Drive from O, Office District to BB, Big Beaver Form Based District.  The 
1.2 acre parcel is currently vacant.    The purpose of the rezoning is to construct a five (5) story, 49’-8” 
tall, 46-unit residential development on the vacant parcel.    
 
At the December 10, 2013 meeting the Planning Commission recommended approval of a rezoning of 
the property; however the rezoning was not granted by the City Council.  Subsequently, the applicant 
has resubmitted their application as a conditional rezoning. A condition of the conditional rezoning is 
the approval of the site plan as submitted.  The condition of the site plan as part of the conditional 
rezoning alleviates potential concerns over future development of this site.  Please note that the revised 
application reduces the height of the building by one story and approximately 11 feet, and reduces the 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
2  P a g e  

number of units by 14.  If the Planning Commission recommends the conditional rezoning and approves 
the Site Plan, the site plan approval is conditioned on the City Council granting the conditional rezoning.  
 
Location of Subject Property: 
 
The property is located on the northwest corner of Livernois Road and Town Center Drive. 
 

 
 
Surrounding Zoning: 
A table summarizing zoning of the surrounding areas is as follows. 
 

Direction Zoning Use 
North  O, Office Office 
South CF, Community Facilities Park, Municipal Office 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3  P a g e  

East R-1E, One-Family Residential Vacant, Residential 
West O, Office Office 
 
 
MASTER PLAN 
 
The site is located within the area designated as Big Beaver in the Master Plan.  The Big Beaver 
designation responds to the recommendations set forth in the Big Beaver Corridor Study, which 
promotes higher density, vertically integrated mixed-use commercial, office, and residential uses.  The 
Plan encourages increased residential units along and in proximity to Big Beaver. Development of 
residential uses should be designed with a strong orientation towards the roadway corridor to support 
pedestrian activity and frame the street.    
 
Neighboring zoning, land use, and master plan designations are summarized in the following chart:  
 

 Property in 
Question 

NORTH South  East West  

Zoning  O O CF R-1F  O 
Land Use Vacant Office Park Vacant/Res.  Office  
Master Plan Big Beaver Big Beaver Public Residential Big Beaver  
 
Based on the provided site plan, which meets the requirements of the Big Beaver form-based zoning, 
the proposed use of the property as residential is consistent with the Master Plan.  
 
Items to be addressed:  None. 
 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTIAL   
 
The City has an abundance of land zoned and used for office purposes.  With the current vacancy rate, it 
is unlikely that office use of the property is reasonable in the foreseeable future.  The applicants 
proposed residential development is not permitted under the current O, Office zoning.    
 
Items to be addressed:  None. 
 
BUILDING ARRANGEMENT 
 
The proposed building is oriented toward the southeast corner of the site and accessed via two (2) 
drives of Town Center Drive.   The applicant is placing the building 54-feet from the northern property 
line.  The building is located approximately 67-feet and 110-feet from the office buildings to the north 
and approximately 350-feet from the nearest single family residential home.   
 
Parking is proposed on the western and northern portions of the site, and also on the ground floor of 
the development in the form of two (2) car garages.  A cross access point is located along the northern 
property line.     
 
 Items to be addressed:  None 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
4  P a g e  

AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
Table 5.03.B.2, Building Form B of Section 5.03, Standards Applicable to All Districts of the Zoning 
Ordinance establishes the dimensional requirements for the BB, Big Beaver District.  The requirements 
and proposed dimensions are as follows: 
 

 
Items to be addressed:  None. 
 
PARKING 
 
Section 13.06.G of the Zoning Ordinance requires: 
 

Multiple-Family Residential Required Provided 
Per each dwelling unit: 2 spaces X 46 standard units= 92 spaces 94 spaces 

Barrier-Free Parking Required Provided 
Barrier-free spaces: 92 spaces X 2%= 2 spaces 2 spaces 
 
Curbing is proposed for the parking lot per the requirement in Section 13.06.J.2, Off-Street Parking Lot 
Design.   
 
Items to be addressed:  None 
 
DESIGN STANDARDS 
 
The Big Beaver design standards provide the Planning Commission with direction when reviewing the 
proposed design features of this development.  
 
Façade Variation.  
 
The maximum linear length of an uninterrupted building façade facing public streets and/or parks shall 
be thirty (30) feet.   

 Required Provided Compliance 

Front (Town Center Dr.) 10 foot build-to-line 10 feet Complies 

Front (Livernois) 10 foot build-to-line 10 feet Complies 

Side (north) N/A, building may be placed 
up to property line 54 feet Complies 

Rear (west) 30-foot  minimum setback 96 feet Complies 

Building Height Maximum 6  stories, 72 feet, 
Minimum 2 stories, 14 feet 

5-stories,  
51’ to top of parapet wall  Complies 

Minimum Open Space 15% 16.67% Complies 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
5  P a g e  

Through the use of material changes, projections, façade articulation and fenestration, the building 
complies with this standard.    
 
Pedestrian Access / Entrance. 

a. Primary Entrance:  The primary building entrance shall be clearly identifiable and useable and 
located in the front façade parallel to the street.   
 
Building entrances are provided on Livernois Road and Town Center Drive.  
 

b. Pedestrian Connection. The pedestrian connection shall be fully paved and maintained surface 
not less than five (5) feet in width. 
 
The applicant has provided an 8-foot wide sidewalk along Rochester Road and a 6-foot wide 
sidewalk along Town Center Drive.   

 
c. Additional Entrances. In addition to the primary façade facing front façade and/or the right-of-

way, if a parking area is located in the rear or side yard, must also have a direct pedestrian 
access to the parking area that is of a level of materials quality and design emphasis at least 
equal to that of the primary entrance.  Complies 

 
Ground Story Activation. 
 
The first floor of any front façade facing a right-of-way shall be no less than fifty (50) percent windows 
and doors, and the minimum transparency for facades facing a side street, side yard, or parking area 
shall be no less than 30 percent of the façade.  Transparency alternatives are permitted up to 80% of the 
50% total along the front of buildings, and up to 100% of the sides of buildings.  The minimum 
transparency requirement shall apply to all sides of a building that abut an open space, including a side 
yard, or public right-of-way.  Transparency requirements shall not apply to sides which abut an alley.   
 
The applicant meets the transparency requirement.   
 
Transitional Features 
 

a. Transitional features are architectural elements, site features, or alterations to building massing 
that are used to provide a transition between higher intensity uses and low- or moderate-density 
residential areas.  These features assist in mitigating potential conflicts between those uses.  
Transitional features are intended to be used in combination with landscape buffers or large 
setbacks. 

 
The applicant is providing a ten (10) foot greenbelt along the northern property line adjacent 
to the office uses.   The applicant is placing the building 54-feet from the northern property 
line.  The building is located approximately 67-feet and 110-feet from the office buildings to 
the north and approximately 350-feet from the nearest single family residential home.   
 

b. Intensity. A continuum of use intensity, where moderate intensity uses are sited between high-
intensity uses and low-intensity uses, shall be developed for multi-building developments. An 
example would be an office use between commercial and residential uses. 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
6  P a g e  

The hours and intensity of site activity for a residential use varies from the office use that is 
located to the north and west.  The intensity of the different uses shall not adversely impact 
each other.  
 

c. Height and Mass. Building height and mass in the form of building step-backs, recess lines or 
other techniques shall be graduated so that structures with higher intensity uses are 
comparable in scale with adjacent structures of lower-intensity uses. 
 
The applicant has reduced the height of the building as first proposed.  The applicant has 
applied vertical and horizontal elements including sloped roofs and building insets to reduce 
the scaling and mass.  Furthermore, the applicant has located the building in the southwest 
corner of the site in the furthest location from adjacent development in order to provide 
additional buffer that will reduce the sense of mass.   
 

d. Architectural Features. Similarly sized and patterned architectural features such as windows, 
doors, arcades, pilasters, cornices, wall offsets, building materials, and other building 
articulations included on the lower-intensity use shall be incorporated in the transitional 
features. 
 

 The applicant has applied consistent architectural features through the building elevations.   
 
Site Access and Parking 
 

a. Required Parking.  Off-street parking shall be provided in accordance with the standards set 
forth in Article 13, Site Design Standards.   The applicant has provided the necessary parking.     
  

b. Location. 
I. When parking is located in a side yard (behind the front building line) but  fronts on the 

required building line, no more than fifty (50) percent of the  total site’s linear feet along 
the required building line or one hundred (100) feet, whichever is less, shall be occupied 
by parking.   All the parking is located to the side and rear of the building and complies 
with parking location requirements.    
 

II. For a corner lot, shall be no more than fifty (50) percent of the site’s cumulative linear 
feet along the required building lines or one hundred (100) feet, whichever is less, shall 
be occupied by parking.  The building shall be located in the corner of the lot adjacent to 
the intersection. Not Applicable  

 
III. For a double frontage lot or a lot that has frontage on three (3) streets, the  cumulative 

total of all frontages occupied by parking shall be no more  than sixty-five (65) percent of 
the total site’s linear feet along a required  building line or one hundred and twenty-five 
(125) feet, whichever is less. Not Applicable  

 
IV. Where off-street parking is visible from a street, it should be screened in accordance with 

the standards set forth in Section 13.02.C.  The applicant has screened their parking lot 
in compliance with section 13.0.2.C.   

  
Items to be Addressed: None  



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
7  P a g e  

 
SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 

 
Vehicular access and Circulation 
 
The site is accessed via two (2) drives from Livernois Road.  Access to the site is sufficient.  The applicant 
is providing a 3-foot separation with a concrete sidewalk and mountable curb between the 24-foot drive 
aisle and the face of the garage.  Access and circulation is sufficient.   
 
Pedestrian access and Walkways:  
 
The applicant will install an eight (8) foot concrete sidewalk on Livernois and a six (6) foot sidewalk on 
Town Center Drive.   Each townhome is directly accessible from the sidewalk on Town Center Drive.  The 
lofts are accessed via a common entrance that is accessible from the sidewalk on Town Center Drive.   
 
Items to be addressed:  None. 
 
LANDSCAPING 

 
The applicant has provided a landscape plan in accordance with these sections of the Zoning Ordinance:  
 

 Required: Provided: Compliance: 
Greenbelts (13.02.D) Livernois: The 
Ordinance requires that the greenbelt 
shall be landscaped with a minimum of 
one (1) deciduous tree for every thirty 
(30) lineal feet, or fraction thereof, of 
frontage abutting a public road right-of-
way.   

Approximately 
120 lineal feet 
of improved 
space along 
Livernois Road 
= four (4) trees 
 
Approximately 
440 lineal feet 
of improved 
space along 
Livernois Road 
= fifteen (15) 
trees. 
 
Required 19 
trees 

Nineteen (19) trees 
 

Complies 
 

Site Landscaping (13.02.E): A minimum of 
fifteen percent (15%) of the site area shall 
be comprised of landscape material. 

Total proposed 
site square 
feet= 8,067 
square feet 

16% Complies  

 
The applicant is proposing to screen the trash enclosure with a brick patterned poured concrete.    
 
Items to be addressed:  None. 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
8  P a g e  

PHOTOMETRICS 
 
The lighting plan indicates two (2) 25-foot high pole mounted lights, with two (2) lights on each pole, 
and five (5) 15-foot high pole mounted lights with one (1) light on each pole.  The submitted fixture 
meets ordinance compliance regarding full-cut off.  The submitted photometrics complies with Article 
13 of the Zoning Ordinance.     
  
Items to be Addressed:  None  
 
FLOOR PLAN AND ELEVATIONS 
 
The applicant has submitted floor plans and elevations.  The architecture complies with the Big Beaver 
Form Based District standards including the use of material changes, projections, façade articulation and 
fenestration and windows.  The architecture provides architectural detail as well as changes in 
horizontal and vertical scaling, variations in material, pattern, and color, to provide ground story 
activation.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Conditional Rezoning: 
 
We would recommend approval of the subject conditional rezoning for the following reasons: 
 

1) The request complies with the Master Plan. 
2) The Form-Based District would permit greater flexibility in use and development of the 

property.  
3) The abundance of Office District property in the City has been well documented.  
4) The rezoning would be compatible with surrounding zoning and land use.  
5) The site can be adequately served with municipal water and sewer.  
6) The condition of the site plan as part of the conditional rezoning alleviates potential concerns of 

future development of this site.   
 
Site Plan: 
 
We recommend approval of the site plan. 
 
Sincerely,  

      
 



TROY, MI
10-98 TOWN CENTER DR,

TROY, MI 48083

SHW GROUP
ARCHITECTS | ENGINEERS | PLANNERS

2338 COOLIDGE, SUITE 100
BERKLEY, MI 48072

T:248.336.4700
F:248.336.4701

www.shwgroup.com

KEM-TEC & ASSOCIATES
22556 GRATIOT AVENUE

EASTPOINTE, MI 48021
T.586.772.2222
F:586.772.4048

ARCHITECT
GEORGE HOUHANISIN

STATE OF MICHIGAN 27036

CIVIL ENGINEER
MATT KUEHN

STATE OF MICHIGAN 53214

1

ISSUE:

CHECKED:

SCALE:

© 2014 SHW Group

SHW Project:

SHEET TITLE:

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

F

E

D

C

B

A

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

C
:\

R
e
v
it

L
o

c
a
l
F

il
e
s
\7

1
1
3
0
3
7
0
0
-A

T
C

-A
1
4
_
jw

ie
b

e
r.

rv
t

3
/2

0
/2

0
1
4

2
:1

3
:3

2
P

M

AMBER PROPERTIES
COMPANY

AMBER TOWN CENTER
TOWNHOMES AND LOFTS

TROY, MI

PROJECT COVER SHEET

G001
7113.037.00

SHEET INDEX

0
2
.2

8
.2

0
1
4

C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
R

E
Z

O
N

IN
G

R
E

V

GENERAL
G001 PROJECT COVER SHEET O

ARCHITECTURAL
AS01 ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN O
A001 COMPOSITE FLOOR PLANS O
A002 COMPOSITE FLOOR PLANS O
A003 ROOF PLAN & BUILDING SECTIONS O
A201 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS O
A202 PEDESTRIAN LEVEL ACTIVATION O

ELECTRICAL
ES01 EXTERIOR SITE LIGHTING PLAN O
ES02 EXTERIOR SITE LIGHTING PLAN O

CIVIL
C-1 TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY O
C-2 GRADING & UTILITY PLAN O

LANDSCAPE
L-1 LANDSCAPE PLAN O
L-2 LANDSCAPE DETAILS O

02.28.2014 CONDITIONAL REZONING REV

ELECTRICAL ENGINEER
WILLIAM CHOMIC

STATE OF MICHIGAN 35463



SITE INFORMATION:

EXISTING SITE: LAND SITUATED IN THE CITY OF TROY, COUNTY OF
OAKLAND, STATE OF MICHIGAN IS DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS:

LOT 5, EXCEPT THE SOUTH 5 FEET FOR ROAD,
"SUPERVISOR'S PLAT NO. 26", AS RECORDED IN
LIBER 57, PAGE 59, OF PLATS, OAKLAND COUNTY
RECORDS.

TAX ID: 20-21-426-010:
SUPERVISOR'S PLAT NO. 26, LOT 5 EXC. S.
10 FT. TAKEN FOR RD.

SITE AREA: 53,780 SQ FT(+/- 1.231 ACRES)

CURRENT ZONING: OFFICE DISTRICT

PROPOSED ZONING: BIG BEAVER DISTRICT

PROPOSED USE: APARTMENTS

PROPOSED MULTIPLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL USE:
2 BEDROOM TOWNHOMES, 2 BEDROOM TOWNHOUSE,
1 BEDROOM APARTMENT, AND LOFT TERRACE UNITS (RENTAL).

46 UNITS PROPOSED - 2 PARKING SPACES / EACH DWELLING UNIT
(REQUIRED)

PARKING REQUIRED: 92 SPACES

PARKING PROVIDED: 92 SPACES +
2 SPACES BARRIER FREE =

94 TOTAL SPACES

PROPOSED BUILDING
FOOTPRINT: 17,205 SQ FT

PROPOSED OPEN SPACE: 8,966 SQ FT (OPEN) / 53,780 SQ FT (SITE) =
16.67%*

* 15% REQUIRED OPEN SPACE BASED ON TABLE 5.03.B.2
BUILDING FORM B

BUILDING SITE
COVERAGE: 17,205 SQ FT (GROUND FLOOR OF BLDG) /

53,780 SQ FT (SITE) = 31.99%

BUILDING INFORMATION:

OCCUPANCY USE: R-2

CONSTRUCTION TYPE: 3B

FIRST FLOOR AREA: 17,205 GROSS SQ FT
SECOND FLOOR AREA: 17,205 GROSS SQ FT
THIRD FLOOR AREA: 17,205 GROSS SQ FT
FOURTH FLOOR AREA: 16,980 GROSS SQ FT
MEZZANINE FLOOR AREA: 3,602 GROSS SQ FT
TOTAL: 68,595 GROSS SQ FT*

*MEZZANINES DO NOT CONTRIBUTE TO EITHER THE BUILDING AREA
OR THE NUMBER OF STORIES AS REGULATED BY MBC SECTION 503.1

SETBACK INFORMATION:

PROPERTY SETBACKS SUBJECT TO SETBACK REQUIREMENTS AS FOLLOWS PER
TABLE 5.03.B.2 BUILDING FORM B, UNLESS OTHERWISE
ALLOWED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION:

FRONT: REAR: SIDE:
MINIMUM: N/A MINIMUM: 30'-0" MINIMUM: N/A
MAXIMUM: 60'-0" MAXIMUM: NONE MAXIMUM: NONE

THE PROPOSED BUILDING SETBACKS ARE:
FRONT (SOUTH AND EAST) BUILD TO LINE: 10'-0" TO FACE OF BUILDING
REAR (NORTH): 54'-0" TO FACE OF BUILDING
SIDE (WEST): 96'-0" TO FACE OF BUILDING

BUILDING HEIGHT INFORMATION:

THE PROPOSED BUILDING HEIGHT IS 49'-8" TO THE MID POINT OF
THE ROOF. THE TOP OF THE PARAPET WALL IS 51'-0".

APARTMENTS TYPES UNIT TYPE QUANTITY

ONE BEDROOM

TWO BEDROOM TOWNHOUSE

TWO BEDROOM TOWNHOME

LOFT TERRACE

TOWN HOUSE TERRACE

(1)

(2T)

(2TH)

(LT)

(THT)

1

1

21

22

1

46 UNITS

BARRIER FREE REQUIREMENTS:

BARRIER FREE PARKING:
2% OF THE TOTAL NUMBER OF SPACES REQUIRED. (MIN OF 1)
(2 BARRIER FREE SPACES ARE REQUIRED FOR
THE 94 SPACES PROVIDED.)

BARRIER FREE DWELLING UNITS:
2% OF TOTAL UNITS ARE REQUIRED TO BE
"TYPE A" (MIN OF 1) PER MBC 1107.6.2.1.1.
THE 1 "TYPE A" UNIT IS LOCATED ON THE FIRST FLOOR.

THE 23 FOURTH FLOOR LOFT TERRACE UNITS WITH MEZZANINE
ACCESSED BY THE BUILDING ELEVATOR WILL MEET TYPE "B"
REQUIREMENTS ON THE PRIMARY ENTRY FLOOR PER MBC 1107.7.2.

THE 22 TOWNHOME AND TOWNHOUSE (MULTISTORY) UNITS ACCESSED ON
THE FIRST LEVEL, ARE NOT REQUIRED TO BE BARRIER FREE
PER MBC 1105.1.6 EXCEPTION 2 AND 1107.7.2.

TOWN CENTER DR

LI
VE

R
N

O
IS

R
D

BICYCLE RACK

MAILBOXES

BALCONY
CL

443.09'

12
1.

40
'

TRANSFORMER

GENERATOR

BF1BF2

BALCONY

DUMPSTER &
RECYCLING
ENCLOSURE
(BRICK PATTERNED
POURED CONCRETE
WALLS - 6' HEIGHT)

CANOPY

CANOPY

57
'-

0"

10' - 0"

10
'-

0"

BICYCLE RACK

SIGN

SIGN

GREEN SCREEN
ELECTRIC METERS

SITE WALL

GAS METERS

10
'-

0"
17

'-
0"

24
'-

0"
3'

-0
"

10' - 7". 17' - 0" 24' - 0" 17' - 0" 7' - 0" 15' - 0" 5' - 8"

ELEC METERS

SITE WALL
SITE LIGHTING

GAS METERS

54
'-

0"
1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

78

79

96' - 3".

336' - 4".

515253545556575859 50 49 48 47 46 456061 44 43

89

90

91

92

87

88

84

80

81

82

83

85

86

757677 7374 646566676869707172 63 62

GROSS BUILDING SQUARE FOOTAGE:
NET SQUARE FOOTAGE SUMMARY:

FIRST FLOOR: 13,888 SQ FT NET UNITS
240 SQ FT MECH
404 SQ FT LOBBY

74 SQ FT ELEVATOR ELEC
72 SQ FT ELEVATOR

+ WALLS
+ STAIRS

(17,205 GROSS SQ FT)

SECOND FLOOR: 12,643 SQ FT NET UNITS
+ WALLS
+ STAIRS

(17,205 GROSS SQ FT)

THIRD FLOOR: 14,602 SQ FT NET UNITS
+ WALLS
+ STAIRS

(17,205 GROSS SQ FT)

FOURTH FLOOR & MEZZANINE: 12,984 SQ FT NET UNITS
1,606 SQ FT CORRIDOR

187 SQ FT JC/WC
+ WALLS
+ STAIRS

(16,980 GROSS SQ FT)

BUILDING NET SQ FT: 56,700 SQ FT
BUILDING GROSS SQ FT: 68,595 SQ FT*

*MEZZANINES DO NOT CONTRIBUTE TO EITHER BUILDNG AREA OR
NUMBER OF STORIES AS REGULATED BY SECTION 503.1.

1

ISSUE:

CHECKED:

SCALE:

© 2014 SHW Group

SHW Project:

SHEET TITLE:

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

F

E

D

C

B

A

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

C
:\

R
e
v
it

L
o

c
a
l
F

il
e
s
\7

1
1
3
0
3
7
0
0
-A

T
C

-A
1
4
_
jw

ie
b

e
r.

rv
t

3
/2

0
/2

0
1
4

2
:1

3
:0

4
P

M

As indicated

AMBER PROPERTIES
COMPANY

AMBER TOWN CENTER
TOWNHOMES AND LOFTS

TROY, MI

ARCHITECTURAL SITE
PLAN

AS01
7113.037.00

N

1" = 20'-0"

ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLANA1
LANDSCAPING SHOWN FOR INTENT ONLY.
RE: SHEET L-1 LANDSCAPING PLAN FOR ACTUAL LANDSCAPING PLAN AND TYPE.

02.28.2014 CONDITIONAL REZONING REV



D
W

D
W

D
W

D
WD

W

D
WD

W

D
WD

W

D
WD

W

D
W

D
WD

W

D
WD

W

D
WD

W

D
WD

W

D
WD

W

D
W

W
D

E

A

A201

C1

A201

A1

A201E1

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 233 4

A201 E4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

B

D

13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 15' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8"

14

C

13

STAIR
1

DEN

PATIO

MECH

ELEV
ELEC

LOBBY

LOBBY

UNIT
90

(2TH)

UNIT
86

(2TH)

DEN

PATIO

UNIT
82

(2TH)

UNIT
78

(2TH)

UNIT
74

(2TH)

UNIT
70

(2TH)

UNIT
66

(2TH)

UNIT
62

(2TH)

UNIT
58

(2TH)

UNIT
54

(2T)

UNIT
46

(2TH)

UNIT
42

(2TH)

UNIT
38

(2TH)

UNIT
34

(2TH)

UNIT
30

(2TH)

UNIT
26

(2TH)

UNIT
22

(2TH)

UNIT
18

(2TH)

UNIT
14

(2TH)

24

UNIT
10

(2TH)

ELEV

57
'-

0"
.

21

STAIR
2

UNIT
94

(2TH)

UNIT
98

(2TH)

336' - 4"

UNIT
101
(1)

E

A

A201

C1

A201

A1

A201E1

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 233 4

A201 E4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

B

D

14

C

13

STAIR
1

BALCONY

KITCHEN

DEN

BATH
BATH

DEN

LIVING

DINING

24

UNIT
90

(2TH)

UNIT
86

(2TH)

UNIT
82

(2TH)

UNIT
78

(2TH)

UNIT
74

(2TH)

UNIT
70

(2TH)

UNIT
66

(2TH)

UNIT
62

(2TH)

UNIT
58

(2TH)

UNIT
54

(2T)

UNIT
46

(2TH)

UNIT
42

(2TH)

UNIT
38

(2TH)

UNIT
34

(2TH)

UNIT
30

(2TH)

UNIT
26

(2TH)

UNIT
22

(2TH)

UNIT
18

(2TH)

UNIT
14

(2TH)

UNIT
10

(2TH)

BALCONY

DINING

LIVINGBALCONY

KITCHEN

LIVING

DINING

OPEN OPEN

OPEN

CANOPY

CANOPY

CANOPY

21

STAIR
2

CANOPY

UNIT
94

(2TH)

UNIT
98

(2TH)

E

A

A201

A1

A201E1

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 233 4

A201 E4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

B

D

14

C

13

A202

F1

STAIR
1

BEDROOM

BEDROOM

B

B

BEDROOM

B

BEDROOM

B

B

BEDROOM

24

UNIT
90

(2TH)

UNIT
86

(2TH)

UNIT
82

(2TH)

UNIT
78

(2TH)

UNIT
74

(2TH)

UNIT
70

(2TH)

UNIT
66

(2TH)

UNIT
62

(2TH)

UNIT
58

(2TH)

UNIT
54

(2T)

UNIT
46

(2TH)

UNIT
42

(2TH)

UNIT
38

(2TH)

UNIT
34

(2TH)

UNIT
30

(2TH)

UNIT
26

(2TH)

UNIT
22

(2TH)

UNIT
18

(2TH)

UNIT
14

(2TH)

UNIT
10

(2TH)

21

STAIR
2

UNIT
94

(2TH)

UNIT
98

(2TH)

UNIT
411

(THT)

LIVING

1

ISSUE:

CHECKED:

SCALE:

© 2014 SHW Group

SHW Project:

SHEET TITLE:

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

F

E

D

C

B

A

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

C
:\

R
e
v
it

L
o

c
a
l
F

il
e
s
\7

1
1
3
0
3
7
0
0
-A

T
C

-A
1
4
_
jw

ie
b

e
r.

rv
t

3
/2

0
/2

0
1
4

2
:1

6
:0

0
P

M

1/16" = 1'-0"

AMBER PROPERTIES
COMPANY

AMBER TOWN CENTER
TOWNHOMES AND LOFTS

TROY, MI

COMPOSITE FLOOR
PLANS

A001
7113.037.00

1/16" = 1'-0"

FIRST LEVEL FLOOR PLANA1

1/16" = 1'-0"

SECOND LEVEL FLOOR PLANC1

1/16" = 1'-0"

THIRD LEVEL FLOOR PLANE1

02.28.2014 CONDITIONAL REZONING REV



E

A

A201E1

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 233 4

A201 E4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

B

D

14

C

13 2421

JC/WC

ELEV

UNIT
423
(LT)

UNIT
401
(LT)

UNIT
403
(LT)

UNIT
405
(LT)

UNIT
407
(LT)

UNIT
409
(LT)

UNIT
411

(THT)

UNIT
413
(LT)

UNIT
415
(LT)

UNIT
417
(LT)

UNIT
419
(LT)

UNIT
421
(LT)

UNIT
422
(LT)

UNIT
402
(LT)

UNIT
404
(LT)

UNIT
406
(LT)

UNIT
408
(LT)

UNIT
410
(LT)

UNIT
412
(LT)

UNIT
414
(LT)

UNIT
416
(LT)

UNIT
418
(LT)

UNIT
420
(LT)

STAIR
1

STAIR
2

E

A

A201E1

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 233 4

A201 E4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

B

D

14

C

13 2421

UNIT
423
(LT)

UNIT
401
(LT)

UNIT
403
(LT)

UNIT
405
(LT)

UNIT
407
(LT)

UNIT
409
(LT)

UNIT
411

(THT)

UNIT
413
(LT)

UNIT
415
(LT)

UNIT
417
(LT)

UNIT
419
(LT)

UNIT
421
(LT)

UNIT
422
(LT)

UNIT
402
(LT)

UNIT
404
(LT)

UNIT
406
(LT)

UNIT
408
(LT)

UNIT
410
(LT)

UNIT
412
(LT)

UNIT
414
(LT)

UNIT
416
(LT)

UNIT
418
(LT)

UNIT
420
(LT)

1

ISSUE:

CHECKED:

SCALE:

© 2014 SHW Group

SHW Project:

SHEET TITLE:

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

F

E

D

C

B

A

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

C
:\

R
e
v
it

L
o

c
a
l
F

il
e
s
\7

1
1
3
0
3
7
0
0
-A

T
C

-A
1
4
_
jw

ie
b

e
r.

rv
t

3
/2

0
/2

0
1
4

2
:1

6
:2

7
P

M

1/16" = 1'-0"

AMBER PROPERTIES
COMPANY

AMBER TOWN CENTER
TOWNHOMES AND LOFTS

TROY, MI

COMPOSITE FLOOR
PLANS

A002
7113.037.00

02.28.2014 CONDITIONAL REZONING REV

1/16" = 1'-0"

FOURTH LEVEL FLOOR PLANA1

1/16" = 1'-0"

MEZZANINE LEVEL FLOOR PLANC1



C1
A003

C1
A003

E1
A003

E1
A003

E4
A003

E4
A003

TERRACE SHINGLE ROOF
4/12 SLOPE

SINGLE PLY
MEMBRANE ROOF

SHINGLE ROOF
4/12 SLOPE

SHINGLE ROOF
4/12 SLOPE

TERRACE

FIRST LEVEL
100' - 0"

SECOND LEVEL
109' - 5 1/8"

THIRD LEVEL
119' - 4 3/8"

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 233 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 1413

E1
A003

E1
A003

E4
A003

E4
A003

24

U
N

IT
(L

T,
TH

T)
U

N
IT

(2
TH

,2
T)

21

FOURTH LEVEL
129' - 3 5/8"

MEZZANINE LEVEL
139' - 2 7/8"

TOP OF PARAPET
151' - 0"

8'
-0

".
8'

-6
".

8'
-6

".
8'

-6
".

ROOF LINE
149' - 8"

EB DC

C1
A003

C1
A003

FIRST LEVEL
100' - 0"

SECOND LEVEL
109' - 5 1/8"

THIRD LEVEL
119' - 4 3/8"

EA B DC

C1
A003

C1
A003

FOURTH LEVEL
129' - 3 5/8"

MEZZANINE LEVEL
139' - 2 7/8"

TOP OF PARAPET
151' - 0"

ROOF LINE
149' - 8"

1

ISSUE:

CHECKED:

SCALE:

© 2014 SHW Group

SHW Project:

SHEET TITLE:

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

F

E

D

C

B

A

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

C
:\

R
e
v
it

L
o

c
a
l
F

il
e
s
\7

1
1
3
0
3
7
0
0
-A

T
C

-A
1
4
_
jw

ie
b

e
r.

rv
t

3
/2

0
/2

0
1
4

2
:1

8
:3

5
P

M

1/16" = 1'-0"

AMBER PROPERTIES
COMPANY

AMBER TOWN CENTER
TOWNHOMES AND LOFTS

TROY, MI

ROOF PLAN & BUILDING
SECTIONS

A003
7113.037.00

1/16" = 1'-0"A003
ROOF LEVEL PLANA1

1/16" = 1'-0"A003
BUILDING SECTIONC1

1/16" = 1'-0"A003
BUILDING SECTIONE1

1/16" = 1'-0"A003
BUILDING SECTIONE4

02.28.2014 CONDITIONAL REZONING REV



FIRST LEVEL
100' - 0"

SECOND LEVEL
109' - 5 1/8"

THIRD LEVEL
119' - 4 3/8"

151617181920212223 345678910111214 13

E1
A003

E1
A003

E4
A003

E4
A003

GLAZED BLOCK VENEER

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT

BRICK VENEER 1

GRADE

RAIN CONDUCTOR
DOWNSPOUT

GLAZED BLOCK
VENEER

ALUMINUM
STOREFRONT

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT

METAL PANEL @ ENTRY CANOPY

GARAGE DOOR

FURNACE
GRILLE

BRICK VENEER 2

BRICK VENEER 1

METAL DOOR

ARCHITECTURAL
CAST-IN-PLACE
CONCRETE

24 2

1

FOURTH LEVEL
129' - 3 5/8"

MEZZANINE LEVEL
139' - 2 7/8"

TOP OF PARAPET
151' - 0"

VINYL WINDOW (TYP)
GALVANIZED METAL
PANEL
BRICK VENEER 2

GALVALUME METAL SIDING

BRICK VENEER 1

BRICK VENEER 2

ROOF LINE
149' - 8"

FIRST LEVEL
100' - 0"

SECOND LEVEL
109' - 5 1/8"

THIRD LEVEL
119' - 4 3/8"

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 233 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 1413

E1
A003

E1
A003

E4
A003

E4
A003

VINYL WINDOW (TYP)

FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION

GALVALUME METAL SIDING

GLAZED BLOCK VENEER

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
METAL PANEL @ ENTRY CANOPY

BRICK VENEER 1

BRICK VENEER 2

BRICK VENEER 1

BRICK VENEER 2

GRADE

APARTMENT ENTRY DOOR W/
FULL GLASS AND HORIZONTAL
BLINDS

BRICK VENEER 2

24

DECORATIVE LIGHT FIXTURES

21

RAIN CONDUCTOR
DOWNSPOUT

GLAZED BLOCK
VENEER

GALVANIZED
METAL PANEL

FOURTH LEVEL
129' - 3 5/8"

MEZZANINE LEVEL
139' - 2 7/8"

TOP OF PARAPET
151' - 0"

ROOF LINE
149' - 8"

E ABD C

C1
A003

C1
A003

ASPHALT SHINGLES

BRICK VENEER 1

VINYL WINDOW (TYP)

ALUMINUM
STOREFRONT

GALVANIZED METAL
MESH @ BALCONY

ARCHITECTURAL CAST-IN-
PLACE CONCRETE
SITE WALL

GLAZED BLOCK VENEER

BRICK VENEER 2

GRADE

GALVALUME
METAL SIDING

GREEN SCREEN

FIRST LEVEL
100' - 0"

SECOND LEVEL
109' - 5 1/8"

THIRD LEVEL
119' - 4 3/8"

EA B DC

C1
A003

C1
A003

FURNACE GRILLE

GALVANIZED METAL PANEL

ALUMINUM
STOREFRONT

GALVANIZED METAL
MESH @ BALCONY

BRICK VENEER 2

GRADE

GALVANIZED METAL
SIDING

BALCONY SUPPORT

FOURTH LEVEL
129' - 3 5/8"

MEZZANINE LEVEL
139' - 2 7/8"

TOP OF PARAPET
151' - 0"

ROOF LINE
149' - 8"

BRICK 1: #14-3 FL BOWERSTON SHALE COMPANY

BRICK 2: #50 BOWERSTON SHALE COMPANY

GLAZED BLOCK: BLACK GLAZED BELDEN BRICK COMPANY

TERRACE RAILING: BLACK VINYL METAL MESH

METAL SIDING: GALVALUME CENTRIA SIDING

ASPHALT SHINGLES: HARVARD SLATE IKO CAMBRIDGE AR

PROPOSED MATERIALS

1

ISSUE:

CHECKED:

SCALE:

© 2014 SHW Group

SHW Project:

SHEET TITLE:

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

F

E

D

C

B

A

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

C
:\

R
e
v
it

L
o

c
a
l
F

il
e
s
\7

1
1
3
0
3
7
0
0
-A

T
C

-A
1
4
_
jw

ie
b

e
r.

rv
t

3
/2

0
/2

0
1
4

2
:2

0
:2

9
P

M

As indicated

AMBER PROPERTIES
COMPANY

AMBER TOWN CENTER
TOWNHOMES AND LOFTS

TROY, MI

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

A201
7113.037.00

1/16" = 1'-0"A001
EXTERIOR ELEVATION - NORTHC1

1/16" = 1'-0"A001
EXTERIOR ELEVATION - SOUTHA1

1/16" = 1'-0"A001
EXTERIOR ELEVATION - EASTE1

1/16" = 1'-0"A001
EXTERIOR ELEVATION - WESTE4

02.28.2014 CONDITIONAL REZONING REV



FIRST LEVEL
100' - 0"

SECOND LEVEL
109' - 5 1/8"

THIRD LEVEL
119' - 4 3/8"

151617181920212223 345678910111214 1324

16
'-

0"

2 1

FIRST LEVEL
100' - 0"

SECOND LEVEL
109' - 5 1/8"

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 233 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 1413 24

16
'-

0"

21

FIRST LEVEL
100' - 0"

SECOND LEVEL
109' - 5 1/8"

THIRD LEVEL
119' - 4 3/8"

EA B DC

16
'-

0"

E ABD C

16
'-

0"

GREEN SCAPE WALL,
RE: LANDSCAPING

E

D

PATIO TYP

PATIO TYP

LOBBY

A

B
LOBBY

E

D

BALCONY TYP 2 STORY SPACECANOPY

A

B

BALCONY TYPCANOPY

'PEDESTRIAN LEVEL' QUALIFICATION DEFINITIONS

- PROPOSED ELEVATION: 16'-0"
(TO BOTTOM OF ENTRANCE CANOPIES)
ACHIEVES REQUIRED 14'-0" STREET ELEVATION

- EAST & SOUTH ELEVATIONS ARE 'URBAN STREET
FRONT' FACADES

FACADE VARIATION - 5.04.E.1

UNINTERRUPTED PUBLIC STREET FACADE LENGTH

MAX ALLOWED 30'-0"

PROPOSED EAST ELEVATION 19'-8"
SOUTH ELEVATION 9'-1"

TRANSPARENCY ALTERNATIVES - 5.04.E.3.B

(A) EXPRESSION OF STRUCTURAL SYSTEM
- EXPRESSION OF CONCRETE WALLS, BEAMS, AND BALCONIES
- INDENTED/OUTDENTED UNIT PLACEMENT

(D) MATERIAL VARIATION
- ALTERNATING BRICK COLOR
- FLAT METAL PANELS

(E) INTEGRATED ARCHITECTURAL ORNAMENTATION
- GLAZED BLOCK TO SIGNIFY ENTRANCES

(F) GREEN SCREEN OR PLANTER WALLS
- GREEN SCREEN AT EAST ELEVATION

PEDESTRIAN LEVEL ACTIVATION AREA CALCULATIONS

WEST ELEVATION

REQUIREMENT % REQUIRED % PROPOSED

TRANSPARENCY TOTAL

GLAZING/DOORS

TRANSPARENCY ALTERNATIVES

WALL DESIGN

INTEGRATED
ARCHITECTURAL
ORNAMENT

MATERIAL VARIATION

OUTDOOR DINING/SEATING

30% MIN

30% MIN

24% MAX

15% MAX

--

--

--

47.3%

44.1%

3.2%

3.2%

3.2%

0%

0%

EAST ELEVATION

REQUIREMENT % REQUIRED % PROPOSED

TRANSPARENCY TOTAL

GLAZING/DOORS

TRANSPARENCY ALTERNATIVES

WALL DESIGN

INTEGRATED
ARCHITECTURAL
ORNAMENT

MATERIAL VARIATION

GREEN SCREEN

OUTDOOR DINING/SEATING

50% MIN

50% MIN

40% MAX

25% MAX

--

--

--

--

61.0%

44.1%

16.9%

3.2%

3.2%

0%

13.7%

0%

SOUTH ELEVATION

REQUIREMENT % REQUIRED % PROPOSED

TRANSPARENCY TOTAL

GLAZING/DOORS

TRANSPARENCY ALTERNATIVES

WALL DESIGN

INTEGRATED
ARCHITECTURAL
ORNAMENT

MATERIAL VARIATION

OUTDOOR DINING/SEATING

50% MIN

50% MIN

40% MAX

25% MAX

--

--

--

56.6%

35.3%

21.3%

21.3%

10.9%

10.4%

1250 SF
ADD

NORTH ELEVATION

REQUIREMENT % REQUIRED % PROPOSED

TRANSPARENCY TOTAL

GLAZING/DOORS
(INCL GARAGE DOORS)

TRANSPARENCY ALTERNATIVES

WALL DESIGN

INTEGRATED
ARCHITECTURAL
ORNAMENT

MATERIAL VARIATION

STRUCTURAL CONCRETE
EXPRESSION

OUTDOOR DINING/SEATING

30% MIN

30% MIN

24% MAX

15% MAX

--

--

--

--

64.2%

54.5%

32.2%

9.7%

2.5%

0%

7.2%

0%

1

ISSUE:

CHECKED:

SCALE:

© 2014 SHW Group

SHW Project:

SHEET TITLE:

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

F

E

D

C

B

A

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

C
:\

R
e
v
it

L
o

c
a
l
F

il
e
s
\7

1
1
3
0
3
7
0
0
-A

T
C

-A
1
4
_
jw

ie
b

e
r.

rv
t

3
/2

0
/2

0
1
4

2
:2

1
:3

0
P

M

As indicated

AMBER PROPERTIES
COMPANY

AMBER TOWN CENTER
TOWNHOMES AND LOFTS

TROY, MI

PEDESTRIAN LEVEL
ACTIVATION

A202
7113.037.00

1/16" = 1'-0"

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - NORTHF1

1/16" = 1'-0"

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - SOUTHC1

1/16" = 1'-0"A202
EXTERIOR ELEVATION - WESTF4

1/16" = 1'-0"A202
EXTERIOR ELEVATION - EASTF2

1/16" = 1'-0"

FIRST LEVEL FLOOR PLANA1

1/16" = 1'-0"

FIRST LEVEL FLOOR PLAND1

1/16" = 1'-0"

SECOND LEVEL FLOOR PLANB1

1/16" = 1'-0"

SECOND LEVEL FLOOR PLANE1

02.28.2014 CONDITIONAL REZONING REV



0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.3 0.3 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.1 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.1 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3

0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4

0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2

0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2

0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3

0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3

1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3

1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3

1.5 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3

1.8 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4

2.1 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.9 2.2 2.4 2.7 2.8 2.9 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.4 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.9 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.8 2.9 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.8 2.1 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.9 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.2 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4

2.5 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.8 2.2 2.6 2.8 3.1 3.3 3.5 3.6 3.6 3.6 3.5 3.3 3.0 2.8 2.5 2.1 1.8 1.5 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.5 1.8 2.2 2.5 2.8 3.1 3.3 3.5 3.6 3.6 3.6 3.5 3.3 3.1 2.8 2.6 2.2 1.9 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.5 2.7 3.0 3.2 3.4 3.6 3.6 3.6 3.5 3.4 3.2 2.9 2.6 2.3 1.9 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4

2.7 2.3 1.9 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.6 2.0 2.4 2.8 3.1 3.4 3.6 3.8 3.8 3.9 3.8 3.7 3.5 3.3 3.0 2.7 2.3 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.6 1.9 2.3 2.7 3.0 3.3 3.5 3.7 3.8 3.9 3.8 3.8 3.6 3.4 3.1 2.8 2.4 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.8 2.2 2.6 3.0 3.3 3.5 3.7 3.8 3.9 3.8 3.8 3.6 3.4 3.2 2.9 2.5 2.1 1.6 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4

2.8 2.4 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.5 2.9 3.3 3.6 3.8 3.9 4.0 4.0 4.0 3.9 3.7 3.5 3.2 2.8 2.4 2.0 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.0 2.5 2.9 3.2 3.5 3.7 3.9 4.0 4.0 4.0 3.9 3.8 3.5 3.3 2.9 2.6 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.9 2.4 2.7 3.1 3.4 3.7 3.9 4.0 4.0 4.0 3.9 3.8 3.6 3.3 3.0 2.6 2.2 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4

2.9 2.4 2.0 1.6 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.5 3.0 3.4 3.7 4.0 4.3 4.4 4.5 4.4 4.2 3.9 3.6 3.3 2.9 2.5 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.5 2.9 3.3 3.6 4.0 4.2 4.4 4.5 4.4 4.3 4.0 3.7 3.3 3.0 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 2.0 2.4 2.8 3.2 3.5 3.9 4.2 4.4 4.5 4.4 4.3 4.1 3.8 3.4 3.1 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4

2.9 2.4 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.5 3.0 3.4 3.9 4.3 4.7 4.9 4.9 4.8 4.6 4.2 3.7 3.3 2.9 2.5 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.0 2.5 2.9 3.3 3.8 4.2 4.6 4.8 4.9 4.9 4.6 4.3 3.8 3.4 3.0 2.6 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.9 2.4 2.8 3.2 3.6 4.1 4.5 4.8 4.9 4.9 4.7 4.4 4.0 3.5 3.1 2.6 2.2 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7

3.0 2.4 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 2.0 2.6 3.1 3.6 4.2 4.8 5.2 5.5 5.7 5.5 5.1 4.6 4.0 3.5 3.0 2.5 2.0 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 2.0 2.5 3.0 3.5 4.1 4.6 5.1 5.5 5.7 5.5 5.2 4.7 4.2 3.6 3.1 2.6 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.9 2.4 2.9 3.4 3.9 4.5 5.0 5.4 5.7 5.6 5.3 4.9 4.3 3.8 3.2 2.7 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.7

3.1 2.5 1.9 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.6 2.0 2.7 3.3 3.8 4.3 4.9 5.5 5.9 6.0 5.8 5.3 4.7 4.1 3.7 3.1 2.6 2.0 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.6 2.0 2.6 3.1 3.7 4.2 4.7 5.3 5.8 6.0 5.8 5.4 4.9 4.3 3.8 3.3 2.7 2.1 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.5 1.9 2.4 3.0 3.6 4.0 4.6 5.2 5.7 6.0 5.9 5.5 5.0 4.4 3.9 3.4 2.8 2.2 1.7 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7

3.1 2.5 1.9 1.5 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.6 2.0 2.7 3.2 3.6 4.2 4.7 5.4 5.6 5.7 5.6 5.2 4.6 4.0 3.5 3.1 2.6 1.9 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.5 2.0 2.6 3.1 3.5 4.0 4.6 5.2 5.6 5.7 5.6 5.3 4.7 4.2 3.6 3.2 2.7 2.1 1.6 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.8 2.4 3.0 3.4 3.9 4.5 5.1 5.5 5.7 5.6 5.4 4.8 4.3 3.7 3.3 2.8 2.2 1.6 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6

2.9 2.5 1.8 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.2 1.5 2.0 2.6 3.0 3.6 4.2 4.8 5.4 5.9 6.1 5.8 5.3 4.7 4.0 3.4 2.9 2.5 1.9 1.5 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.5 1.9 2.6 2.9 3.4 4.0 4.7 5.3 5.8 6.1 5.9 5.4 4.8 4.2 3.5 3.0 2.7 2.1 1.6 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.8 2.4 2.8 3.2 3.9 4.5 5.1 5.7 6.1 6.0 5.6 4.9 4.3 3.7 3.1 2.7 2.2 1.6 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5

2.8 2.4 1.9 1.4 1.1 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.6 2.0 2.5 2.9 3.6 4.3 5.1 5.7 6.3 6.5 6.2 5.6 4.9 4.1 3.4 2.8 2.4 1.9 1.5 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.5 2.0 2.4 2.8 3.4 4.2 4.9 5.6 6.2 6.5 6.3 5.7 5.1 4.3 3.6 2.9 2.5 2.1 1.6 1.2 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.8 2.3 2.7 3.3 4.0 4.7 5.5 6.0 6.5 6.4 5.9 5.3 4.5 3.8 3.1 2.5 2.1 1.6 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.4

2.6 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.6 1.9 2.3 2.8 3.6 4.4 5.2 6.1 6.5 6.7 6.4 5.9 4.9 4.2 3.4 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.5 1.9 2.2 2.6 3.4 4.2 5.0 5.9 6.5 6.6 6.5 6.1 5.2 4.3 3.6 2.8 2.3 1.9 1.6 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.8 2.1 2.5 3.2 4.0 4.8 5.7 6.4 6.7 6.6 6.2 5.4 4.5 3.8 3.0 2.4 2.0 1.6 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.4

2.6 2.0 1.6 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.8 3.6 4.3 5.1 6.2 6.6 6.6 6.5 5.9 4.8 4.1 3.4 2.6 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.0 2.6 3.4 4.1 4.9 6.0 6.5 6.6 6.6 6.2 5.1 4.3 3.5 2.7 2.1 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.9 2.4 3.2 4.0 4.6 5.7 6.4 6.6 6.6 6.3 5.3 4.4 3.7 2.9 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.4

1.8 1.4 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.7

0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5

0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3

0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

15 15 15

CALCULATION SUMMARY

LABEL

10 FT BEYOND BOUNDARY

PARKING LOT

PROPERTY BOUNDARY 5 FT AFF

CALC TYPE

ILLUMINANCE

ILLUMINANCE

ILLUMINANCE

UNITS

Fc

Fc

Fc

AVG

0.16

1.65

0.13

MAX

1.4

6.8

1.6

MIN

0.0

0.1

0.0

AVG/MIN

N/A

16.50

N/A

MAX/MIN

N/A

68.00

N/A

LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE

DESCRIPTION

KSF-1 250M R4SC

KSF-1 250M R4SC BACK-TO-BACK

LABEL

KSF-1_250M_R4SC

2 KSF-1_250M_R4SC

TOTAL LAMP LUMENS

22500

2250

LLF

0.720

0.720

LED

0.800

0.800

LDD

0.900

0.900

TOTAL WATTS

1440

1152

1

ISSUE:

CHECKED:

SCALE:

© 2014 SHW Group

SHW Project:

SHEET TITLE:

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

F

E

D

C

B

A

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

C
:\

R
e
v
it

L
o

c
a
l
F

il
e
s
\7

1
1
3
0
3
7
0
0
-A

T
C

-A
1
4
_
jw

ie
b

e
r.

rv
t

3
/2

0
/2

0
1
4

2
:1

3
:0

5
P

M

As indicated

AMBER PROPERTIES
COMPANY

AMBER TOWN CENTER
TOWNHOMES AND LOFTS

TROY, MI

EXTERIOR SITE LIGHTING
PLAN

ES01
7113.037.00

1" = 10'-0"

SITE LIGHTING - EASTA1
N

R
E:

ES
02

02.28.2014 CONDITIONAL REZONING REV



0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1

0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2

0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.1 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4

0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.1 2.4 2.5 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5

0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.7 2.8 2.4 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6

0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.5 2.9 3.0 2.6 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8

0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.8 3.3 3.4 2.9 2.4 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.9 1.9

0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.5 3.1 3.8 3.9 3.3 2.7 2.4 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1

0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.7 3.4 4.2 4.3 3.6 2.9 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.2

0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.8 3.4 4.3 4.5 3.7 2.9 2.6 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.3

0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.7 3.0 3.5 4.4 4.6 3.8 3.1 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.4

0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 4.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.4

0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.8 3.0 3.6 4.5 4.7 3.9 3.2 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.4

0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.6 2.7 3.0 3.7 4.6 4.7 3.9 3.1 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.4

0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.7 3.0 3.7 4.6 4.7 3.9 3.2 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3

0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.9 3.5 4.2 4.4 3.7 3.0 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2

0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.7 3.3 3.9 4.0 3.4 2.8 2.5 2.4 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.2

0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.7 3.1 3.6 3.7 3.2 2.8 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1

0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.6 3.0 3.5 3.5 3.1 2.7 2.4 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1

0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.9 3.3 3.3 3.0 2.6 2.4 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.4 2.8 3.1 3.2 2.8 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.2

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.7 3.0 3.1 2.7 2.4 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.7 3.1 3.1 2.7 2.4 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.8 3.2 3.2 2.8 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.9 3.3 3.3 3.0 2.6 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1

0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.6 3.0 3.5 3.5 3.1 2.7 2.4 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1

0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.7 3.2 3.7 3.7 3.2 2.7 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.2

0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.8 3.3 4.0 4.0 3.4 2.8 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2

0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.9 3.6 4.3 4.4 3.6 3.0 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3

0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.7 3.1 3.8 4.6 4.7 3.9 3.1 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.4

0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.8 3.1 3.7 4.6 4.7 3.8 3.1 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.5

0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.8 3.1 3.7 4.6 4.6 3.8 3.1 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.5

0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.4 2.4 2.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.1 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.3

0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.7 3.0 3.6 4.5 4.5 3.7 3.0 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4

0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.9 3.5 4.4 4.4 3.6 2.9 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.7 1.7 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4

0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.8 3.4 4.2 4.3 3.5 2.8 2.5 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5

0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.6 3.1 3.8 3.8 3.2 2.6 2.4 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6

0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.8 3.3 3.4 2.8 2.4 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7

0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.5 3.0 3.0 2.6 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8

0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.7 2.7 2.3 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9

0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.1 2.4 2.4 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1

0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.1 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2

0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4

0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.4 2.5 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.3 3.3 3.2 3.1 2.9 2.7 2.5 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.0 2.2 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.9 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.4 2.1 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.6

0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.5 2.9 3.1 3.3 3.6 3.7 3.9 3.9 3.9 3.8 3.6 3.4 3.1 2.9 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.9 2.3 2.6 2.9 3.1 3.3 3.5 3.6 3.6 3.6 3.5 3.3 3.1 2.8 2.5 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.8

0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.7 3.0 3.3 3.6 3.8 4.0 4.1 4.1 4.1 4.0 3.9 3.7 3.4 3.1 2.8 2.3 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.0 2.4 2.8 3.1 3.4 3.6 3.8 3.8 3.9 3.8 3.7 3.5 3.3 3.0 2.7 2.3 1.9 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.6 2.0

0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.7 3.1 3.5 3.7 4.0 4.1 4.2 4.3 4.3 4.2 4.1 3.8 3.6 3.3 2.9 2.5 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 2.1 2.6 3.0 3.3 3.6 3.8 3.9 4.0 4.0 4.0 3.9 3.7 3.5 3.2 2.8 2.4 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1

0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.7 3.1 3.4 3.8 4.1 4.4 4.6 4.7 4.7 4.6 4.3 4.0 3.7 3.3 2.9 2.5 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.8 2.2 2.6 3.0 3.4 3.7 4.0 4.3 4.4 4.5 4.4 4.2 3.9 3.6 3.3 2.9 2.4 2.0 1.6 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1

0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.2 2.6 3.0 3.4 3.8 4.3 4.7 5.0 5.1 5.1 5.0 4.7 4.2 3.8 3.3 2.9 2.4 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.8 2.1 2.6 3.0 3.4 3.9 4.3 4.7 4.9 4.9 4.8 4.6 4.2 3.7 3.3 2.9 2.4 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1

0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.1 2.6 3.0 3.6 4.1 4.6 5.1 5.5 5.8 5.9 5.6 5.2 4.6 4.0 3.5 3.0 2.4 2.0 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.6 3.1 3.6 4.2 4.8 5.2 5.6 5.7 5.5 5.1 4.6 4.0 3.5 3.0 2.4 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 2.0

0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.7 2.0 2.5 3.1 3.7 4.2 4.7 5.3 5.8 6.1 6.2 5.8 5.3 4.7 4.1 3.6 3.1 2.5 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.7 3.3 3.8 4.3 4.9 5.5 5.9 6.0 5.8 5.3 4.7 4.1 3.7 3.1 2.5 1.9 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.6 2.0

0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.3 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 2.0 2.5 3.1 3.5 4.0 4.6 5.1 5.7 5.8 5.8 5.7 5.2 4.6 4.0 3.5 3.1 2.5 1.9 1.5 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.6 2.1 2.8 3.2 3.6 4.2 4.7 5.4 5.6 5.7 5.6 5.2 4.6 4.0 3.5 3.1 2.5 1.9 1.5 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.6 2.0

0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.9 2.5 3.0 3.4 4.0 4.6 5.2 5.8 6.1 6.2 5.8 5.2 4.6 4.0 3.3 3.0 2.5 1.9 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.6 2.1 2.7 3.0 3.6 4.2 4.8 5.4 5.9 6.1 5.8 5.3 4.7 4.0 3.4 2.9 2.5 1.8 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.2 1.5 2.0

0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.2 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.9 2.4 2.8 3.3 4.0 4.7 5.5 6.1 6.6 6.6 6.1 5.5 4.8 4.0 3.3 2.8 2.4 1.9 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.6 2.1 2.5 2.9 3.6 4.3 5.1 5.7 6.3 6.5 6.2 5.6 4.9 4.1 3.4 2.8 2.4 1.9 1.4 1.1 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.6 2.0

0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.9 2.2 2.6 3.2 4.0 4.7 5.6 6.4 6.7 6.8 6.5 5.7 4.8 4.1 3.3 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.2 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.6 1.9 2.3 2.8 3.6 4.4 5.2 6.1 6.5 6.7 6.4 5.9 4.9 4.2 3.4 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.6 1.9

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.7 2.0 2.5 3.2 4.0 4.6 5.5 6.5 6.7 6.7 6.5 5.7 4.7 4.0 3.2 2.5 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.3 1.5 1.7 2.2 2.8 3.6 4.3 5.1 6.2 6.6 6.6 6.5 5.9 4.8 4.1 3.4 2.6 2.0 1.6 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.4 1.7

4.5 4.2 3.4 2.9 2.4 1.8 1.4 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.7

1.0 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

25

25

15 15

CALCULATION SUMMARY

LABEL

10 FT BEYOND BOUNDARY

PARKING LOT

PROPERTY BOUNDARY 5 FT AFF

CALC TYPE

ILLUMINANCE

ILLUMINANCE

ILLUMINANCE

UNITS

Fc

Fc

Fc

AVG

0.16

1.65

0.13

MAX

1.4

6.8

1.6

MIN

0.0

0.1

0.0

AVG/MIN

N/A

16.50

N/A

MAX/MIN

N/A

68.00

N/A

LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE

DESCRIPTION

KSF-1 250M R4SC

KSF-1 250M R4SC BACK-TO-BACK

LABEL

KSF-1_250M_R4SC

2 KSF-1_250M_R4SC

TOTAL LAMP LUMENS

22500

2250

LLF

0.720

0.720

LED

0.800

0.800

LDD

0.900

0.900

TOTAL WATTS

1440

1152

1

ISSUE:

CHECKED:

SCALE:

© 2014 SHW Group

SHW Project:

SHEET TITLE:

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

F

E

D

C

B

A

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

C
:\

R
e
v
it

L
o

c
a
l
F

il
e
s
\7

1
1
3
0
3
7
0
0
-A

T
C

-A
1
4
_
jw

ie
b

e
r.

rv
t

3
/2

0
/2

0
1
4

2
:1

3
:0

6
P

M

As indicated

AMBER PROPERTIES
COMPANY

AMBER TOWN CENTER
TOWNHOMES AND LOFTS

TROY, MI

EXTERIOR SITE LIGHTING
PLAN

ES02
7113.037.00

1" = 10'-0"

SITE LIGHTING - WESTA1
N

R
E:

ES
01

02.28.2014 CONDITIONAL REZONING REV





C-2

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 &
 U

TI
LI

TY
 P

LA
N

N
O

R
TH

A
M

B
ER

 P
R

O
P

ER
TI

ES
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

10
 - 

90
 T

O
W

N
 C

EN
TE

R
 D

R
IV

E

K
n

o
w

 
w

h
a
t
'
s
 
b

e
l
o

w
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
C

a
l
l
 
b

e
f
o

r
e
 
y
o

u
 
d

i
g

.

UTILITY NOTES:

GRADING NOTES:

STORM STRUCTURE SCHEDULE

CROSSING SCHEDULE







x

TOWN CENTER DR

LI
VE

R
N

O
IS

R
D

LI
N

E
O

F
SI

G
H

T
SE

C
TI

O
N

3415 LIVERNOIS
MEDICAL OFFICE

BUILDING

3435 LIVERNOIS
MEDICAL OFFICE

BUILDING

3455 LIVERNOIS
MEDICAL OFFICE

BUILDING

55
SINGLE FAMILY

HOUSE

71
SINGLE FAMILY

HOUSE

87
SINGLE FAMILY

HOUSE
103

SINGLE FAMILY
HOUSE

119
SINGLE FAMILY

HOUSE

10 - 98 TOWN CENTER
AMBER TOWN CENTER

TOWNHOMES AND LOFTS

POOL

POOL

12'-14' HT

25' HT 25' HT

12' HT

25'-30' HT

8'-14' HT
5' WALL HT

18'-25' HT

24' BLDG HT

33" BLDG HT

32" BLDG HT

12'-14' HT

14' HT 55' HT

14' HT

FI
R

ST
LE

VE
L

10
0'

-0
"

SE
C

O
N

D
LE

VE
L

10
9'

-5
1/

8"

TH
IR

D
LE

VE
L

11
9'

-4
3/

8"

FO
U

R
TH

LE
VE

L
12

9'
-3

5/
8"

M
EZ

ZA
N

IN
E

LE
VE

L
13

9'
-2

7/
8"

R
O

O
F

LI
N

E
14

9'
-8

"

55
'T

R
EE

10
-9

8
TO

W
N

C
EN

TE
R

41
'-

0"
13

'-
0"

34
5'

-0
".

H
O

U
SE

S
34

35
LI

V
ER

N
O

IS
34

15
LI

V
ER

N
O

IS
34

55
LI

V
ER

N
O

IS

P L

LINE OF SIGHT

LINE OF SIGHT DIAGRAM FROM HOUSES

LI
N

E
O

F
SI

G
H

T
D

IA
G

R
AM

FR
O

M
H

O
U

SE
S

N
SITE PLAN -

SE
C

TI
O

N
-



x

TOWN CENTER DR

LI
VE

R
N

O
IS

R
D

LI
N

E
O

F
SI

G
H

T
SE

C
TI

O
N

3415 LIVERNOIS
MEDICAL OFFICE

BUILDING

3435 LIVERNOIS
MEDICAL OFFICE

BUILDING

3455 LIVERNOIS
MEDICAL OFFICE

BUILDING

55
SINGLE FAMILY

HOUSE

71
SINGLE FAMILY

HOUSE

87
SINGLE FAMILY

HOUSE
103

SINGLE FAMILY
HOUSE

119
SINGLE FAMILY

HOUSE

10 - 98 TOWN CENTER
AMBER TOWN CENTER

TOWNHOMES AND LOFTS

POOL

POOL

12'-14' HT

25' HT 25' HT

12' HT

25'-30' HT

8'-14' HT
5' WALL HT

18'-25' HT

24' BLDG HT

33" BLDG HT

32" BLDG HT

12'-14' HT

14' HT 55' HT

14' HT

FI
R

ST
LE

VE
L

10
0'

-0
"

SE
C

O
N

D
LE

VE
L

10
9'

-5
1/

8"

TH
IR

D
LE

VE
L

11
9'

-4
3/

8"

55
'T

R
EE

34
15

LI
V

ER
N

O
IS

10
-9

8
TO

W
N

C
EN

TE
R

41
'-

0"
13

'-
0"

H
O

U
SE

S

FO
U

R
TH

LE
VE

L
12

9'
-3

5/
8"

M
EZ

ZA
N

IN
E

LE
VE

L
13

9'
-2

7/
8"

R
O

O
F

LI
N

E
14

9'
-8

"

34
35

LI
V

ER
N

O
IS

34
55

LI
V

ER
N

O
IS

34
5'

-0
"

P L

LINE OF SIGHT

LINE OF SIGHT DIAGRAM FROM BUILDING

LI
N

E
O

F
SI

G
H

T
D

IA
G

R
AM

FR
O

M
BU

IL
D

IN
G

N SITE PLAN -

SE
C

TI
O

N
-







 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  March 31, 2014 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Aileen Bittner, City Clerk 
  Gary Mayer, Police Chief    
 
Subject: Chapter 74 Ordinance Amendments (Introduced by:  Aileen Bittner, City Clerk)  
 
 
History 
Chapter 74 – Solicitations regulates both commercial and charitable solicitations within Troy. 
Charitable solicitations require a Charitable Solicitation Permit, are conducted by nonprofit 
organizations, and can be either stationary (for example, in front of a retail establishment) or door-to-
door. Commercial solicitations require a Peddler’s Permit, are conducted by for-profit entities, and are 
limited to door-to-door. Chapter 74 does not prevent political and/or religious speech, as those are 
considered protected speech and are not considered “solicitations”. 
 
Over the last few years, some communities have adopted what are known as “Do-Not-Knock” 
ordinances. Residents can register their addresses on a voluntary basis, either in writing or via the 
website, to be included in the registry. Copies of the registry list are then provided to all charitable and 
for-profit solicitors with their permits. The registry lists the addresses that are off-limits to solicitations. 
In essence, the “Do-Not-Knock” list enables residents to choose whether or not they want solicitors to 
knock at their doors.  
 
The Police Department conducted extensive research into the effectiveness and difficulties other 
communities have encountered after adoption of ”Do-Not-Knock” ordinance amendments. The Police 
Department supports the “Do-Not-Knock” ordinance amendment to Chapter 74 for three main 
reasons. First, this amendment gives relief to the residents who do not want solicitors at their doors. 
Second, this ordinance is another tool for police officers to use in maintaining the tranquility our 
residents enjoy. Third, solicitors should be able to easily comply with this ordinance.  
 
Should City Council approve this amendment, and upon the effective date, the City Clerk’s Office will 
advertise the registry extensively so that residents will have plenty of time to register before the 
summer influx of solicitors. The City Clerk’s Office is prepared to offer a simple registration process 
for Troy residents either via the website or using paper forms. Additionally, upon the effective date, all 
current solicitors will begin receiving the registry list. 
 
In addition to the “Do-Not-Knock” amendment to Chapter 74, there is an amendment to the time 
allowed for soliciting. City Administration felt that reducing the hours according to a seasonal 
schedule will still allowed ample time for soliciting, but will give our residents more security (especially 
in the winter when it gets dark very early.) The proposed hours for soliciting are 9:00 AM-6:00 PM 
from October 1st through March 31st, 9:00 AM-8:00 PM from April 1st through September 30th. 

stewartc
Text Box
K-02a



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
There are also significant amendments in two other sections. First, in Section 4, the application 
approval time has been reduced from 21 days to 10 days. The City Clerk’s Office has streamlined the 
approval process for solicitors, and 10 days is a more accurate approval time. Second, in Section 6c, 
the regulation has been struck that prevented more than one charitable organization to solicit at any 
one location at a time. This regulatory function will be transferred to the individual business owner 
since these solicitations take place on private property and the City Clerk’s Office requires property 
owner permission before the permit is granted. Other amendments suggested to this chapter are 
considered housekeeping amendments. 
 
For reference, a redlined copy of Chapter 74 – Solicitations is included with this memo. 
 
Purchasing 
There are no Purchasing items to consider. 
 
 
Financial 
There are no financial considerations. 
 
 
Recommendation 
City Administration recommends amending Chapter 74 – Solicitations to include the “Do-Not-Knock” 
registry and other amendments. The amended chapter will take effect 10 days after publication. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality 
 
 
____________________________  ______________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney   Date 
 
 
 
 
AB\ City Council\ Agenda\Clerk Council Agenda Items\City Code\140312 CHAPT074 Memo.doc 



Chapter 74 - Solicitations 

 74-1 

 
1. General Provisions. 
 
 It is hereby determined that regulation of all types of solicitation and peddl ing are sufficiently 

connected to the City's interest in preventing crime and protecting citizens' quiet enjoyment and 
peace. It is also determined that a significant connection among evening solicitation, evidence of 
nighttime crime, and disruption of citizens' quiet enjoyment and peace exists to limit all types of 
solicitation according to the following schedule: October 1st through March 31st the hours are 9 
o’clock in the forenoon until 6 o’clock in the afternoon; April 1st through September 30th the hours 
are 9 o’clock in the forenoon until 8 o’clock in the afternoon. to between 9 o'clock in the forenoon 
and 9 o'clock in the afternoon. It is further determined that the City has no other less restrictive 
means available to achieve its objectives. It is further determined that a ban on s olicitation 
outside the aforementioned hours after 9 o'clock in the afternoon and bef ore 9 o'clock in the 
forenoon leaves ample alternative channels of communication open to solicitors in the City. 

 
2. Definitions. 
 
 The following words and phr ases when used in this Chapter shall have the meanings 

respectively ascribed to them: 
 
 (a) "Solicit" and " solicitation" shall mean the request of money, credit, property, financial 

assistance or other thing of value by telephone, personal interview, or otherwise on the 
plea or representation that such money, credit, property, financial assistance or other 
thing of value, or any part thereof, will be used for a charitable, religious, patriotic, civic, 
educational, or philanthropic purpose. The said words shall also mean the placing of 
canisters for the receipt of money in business establishments or other public places. The 
said words shall also mean and include the sale or offer to sell any article, tag, ticket, 
emblem, publication, advertisement, subscription, or other thing, whether of value or not, 
on the pleas or representation that such money, credit, property, financial assistance, or 
other thing of value, or any part thereof, whether received by the solicitor or purchased by 
the buyer, will be us ed for a c haritable, religious, patriotic, civic, educational or 
philanthropic purpose. 

 
 (b) "Peddler" shall mean any person traveling by foot, wagon, automotive vehicle or other 

conveyance, from place to place, from house to house, or from street to street, carrying, 
conveying or transporting goods, wares, merchandise, meats, fish, vegetables, fruits, 
garden truck, farm products or provisions, offering and exposing the same for sale or 
making sales and del ivering articles to purchasers, or who takes or attempts to take 
orders for sale of goods, wares and merchandise, books or magazines, personal property 
of any nature whatsoever for future delivery, or for services to be furnished or performed 
in the future, whether or not such individual has, carries or exposes for sale a sample of 
the subject of such sale or whether he is collecting advance payments on such sales or 
not. Any person who solicits orders and as  a separate transaction makes deliveries to 
purchasers as part of a scheme or design to evade the provisions of this Chapter, shall 
be deemed a peddler. The word "peddler" shall include the words, "hawker", "huckster" 
and "canvasser". The word "peddler" shall not include agents of utility companies or firms 
franchised by referendum of the electorate of the City of Troy or agents of such firms 
governed by franchise ordinance(s) enacted by the City Council of the City of Troy 



Chapter 74 - Solicitations 

 74-2 

following an affirmative advisory vote on the question by said electorate. 
 
 (c) "Person" shall mean any individual, firm, co-partnership, corporation, company, 

association or joint stock association, church, religious sect, religious denomination, 
society, organization or league, and includes any trustee, receiver, assignee, agent or 
other similar representative thereof. 

 
 (d) "City Clerk" shall mean the individual employed as City Clerk of the City of Troy, or his 

authorized deputy. 
 
3. Permit or license required; exception. 
 
 No person shall solicit or peddle for any cause whatsoever, except as otherwise provided in this 

Chapter, within the City of Troy, without a permit or license from the City Clerk, authorizing such 
solicitation or peddling. Provided, however, that the provisions of this Chapter shall not apply to 
solicitations conducted exclusively within the membership of an organization by its own officers 
and members.. 

 
4. Application; contents. 
 
 Applications for permits for noncommercial solicitation filed with the City Clerk upon forms to be 

furnished by the City Clerk. The application shall contain the following information, or in lieu 
thereof, a det ailed statement of the reason why such information cannot be furnished. Such 
applications for permit to solicit shall be s worn to and f iled with the City Clerk not less than 
twenty-oneten (2110) days prior to the time when the permit is desired: 

 
 (a) Name, address, telephone number and headq uarters of the person applying for the 

permit. 
 
 (b) If the applicant is not an individual, the names and addresses of the applicant and the 

principal officers and managers. 
 
 (c) The purposes for which such solicitation is to be made and the use or disposition to be 

made of any receipts therefrom; or property purchased if the same is to be distributed by 
solicitor. 

 
 (d) The names and addresses of the person, or persons, who will be i n direct charge of 

conducting the solicitations. 
 
 (e) An outline of the method, or methods, to be used in conducting the solicitations. 
 
 (f) The time when such solicitation shall be m ade, giving the proposed dates for the 

beginning and ending of such solicitations and the hours of the days thereof. 
 
 (g) Such other information as may be required by the City Clerk for him to determine the kind 

or character of the proposed solicitation and whether such solicitation is in the interest of, 
and not inimical to, the public welfare. 

 



Chapter 74 - Solicitations 

 74-3 

 (h) In the event that information otherwise available to the City Clerk is deemed by him to be 
sufficient to permit him to make a det ermination pursuant to the provisions of this 
Chapter, he may authorize a license application which does not contain all or any part of 
the information required under this Section. 

 
  (Rev. 02-22-1988) 
 
5. Filing false application. 
 
 It shall be a v iolation of this Chapter for any person knowingly to file or to cause to be filed an 

application containing one or more false statements. 
 
6. Standards in consideration of permits. The City Clerk shall authorize the permit required by this 

Chapter whenever he shall find the following facts to exist: 
 
 (a) That the applicant is a person who is, as a matter of fact, engaged in charitable, patriotic, 

civic, educational, philanthropic or religious activity, or engaged in raising funds for 
distribution to such persons or organizations. 

 
 (b) That the net proceeds derived from the solicitation authorized under the permit shall be 

used substantially for charitable, civic, educational, patriotic, philanthropic or religious 
purposes. 

 
 (c) That the solicitation by the applicant will not become an annoyance or a nuisance to the 

citizens of the City or that such solicitation in no way conflicts with the solicitation of any 
other person or organization previously authorized. Such solicitation will inure to the 
benefit of the citizenry of the City. 

 
 (d) That the net proceeds over reasonable expenses, derived from the solicitations 

authorized under the permit shall be us ed exclusively for charitable, civic, educational, 
patriotic, philanthropic or religious purposes. 

 
 (e) That none of the proceeds derived from the solicitations authorized by the permit will be 

divided in any manner with persons who actually make the solicitations. 
 
 (f) That the proceeds of the solicitations authorized by the permit will not be divided or in any 

manner shared, either directly or indirectly, with any person or organization other than the 
applicant for the permit or the organization for whose benefit the solicitation is made. 

 
7. Peddling license required. 
 
 No person shall engage in the business of peddler without first obtaining a license therefor. No 

such license shall be granted except upon certification of the Chief of Police. 
 
 (Rev. 02-22-1988) 
 
8. Peddling license application. 
 



Chapter 74 - Solicitations 

 74-4 

 The initial application shall furnish the following information: 
 
 (a) Name and physical description of applicant; 
 
 (b) Permanent home address and full local address of the applicant; 
 
 (c) Drivers license number; 
 
 (d) A brief description of the nature of the business and the goods to be sold; 
 
 (e) If employed, the name and addr ess of the employer, together with credentials 

establishing the exact relationship;  
 
 (f) The place where the goods or property proposed to be sold, or orders taken for the sale 

thereof, are manufactured or produced, where such goods or products are located at the 
time said application is filed, and the proposed method of delivery; 

 
 (g) A photograph of the applicant, taken within sixty (60) days immediately prior to the date of 

the filing of the application, which picture shall be 2" x 2" showing the head and shoulders 
of the applicant in a clear and distinguishing manner; 

 
 (h) The fingerprints of the applicant; 
 
 (i) A statement as to whether or not an applicant has been convicted of any felony, or any 

misdemeanor or Municipal Ordinance violation. involving moral turpitude. 
 
9. Peddling license fees. 
 
 The fees for a Peddler's License shall be as specified in Chapter 60 of this Code. No fee for a 

Peddler's License shall be s o applied as to occasion an undue bur den upon i nterstate 
commerce. In any case, where a license fee is believed by a licensee or applicant for a license 
to place an undue burden upon interstate commerce, he may apply to the City Manager for an 
adjustment of the fees so that it shall not be discriminatory, unreasonable, or unfair as to such 
commerce. Such application maybe made before, at or within six (6) months after payment of 
the prescribed license fee. The applicant shall, by affidavit, and supporting testimony, show his 
method of business and gross volume or estimated gross volume of business and such other 
information as the City Manager may deem necessary in order to determine the extent, if any, of 
such undue burden on such commerce. The City Manager shall then conduct an investigation, 
comparing the applicant's business with other businesses of like nature and shall make findings 
of fact from which he shall determine whether the fee fixed for the Peddler's License is unfair, 
unreasonable or discriminatory as to the applicant's business and shall fix as the license fee for 
the applicant, an amount that is fair, reasonable and nondiscriminatory, or, if the fee has already 
been paid, shall order a refund of the amount over and above the fee so fixed. In fixing the fee to 
be charged, the City Manager shall have the power to base the fee upon a percentage of gross 
sales, or any other method which will assure that the fee assessed shall be uniform with that 
assessed on businesses of like nature, so long as the amount assessed does not exceed the 
fee as prescribed by Chapter 60 of  this Code. Should the City Manager determine the gross 
sales measure of the fee to be the fair basis, he may require the applicant to submit, either at the 



Chapter 74 - Solicitations 

 74-5 

time of termination of applicant's business in the City of Troy or at the end of each three-month 
period, a sworn statement of the gross sales and pay the amount of fee therefor, provided that 
no additional fee during any one license year shall be required after the licensee shall have paid 
an amount equal to the annual license fee as prescribed in Chapter 60 of this Code.  

 
 (Rev. 02-22-1988) 
 
10. Contents. 
 
 Permits and licenses issued under this Chapter shall bear the name and address of the person 

by whom the solicitation is made, a copy of the photo submitted with the peddler application, the 
date issued, the dates within which the permit holder may solicit, and a statement that the permit 
does not constitute an endorsement by the City of the purpose of the solicitation or of the person 
or group conducting the solicitation. All permits and licenses shall be s igned by the City Clerk 
and sealed with the official seal of the City of Troy.. 

 
11. A copy of the permit or license must be c arried by each solicitor or peddler. Solicitation or 

peddling without a valid permit or license or a copy of the permit or license is a misdemeanor, 
punishable by a fine of up to $500, 90 days in jail, or both. 

 
12. Expiration. 
 
 A solicitation permit shall not be issued for a period exceeding one calendar year. The dates 

within which the permit holder under this Chapter may solicit shall be determined by the City 
Clerk; provided that no permit shall grant the right to solicit for a longer period than ninety (90) 
days. 

 
13. Nontransferable. 
 
 Any permit or license approved and i ssued under this Chapter shall be nontransferable; 

provided, however, that this shall not prevent any permitee from using any number of solicitors 
and representatives and provided, further, that the City Clerk shall require that each solicitor and 
representative shall carry a facsimile copy of such permit while engaged in solicitation. 

 
 (Rev. 02-22-1988) 
 
14. Misrepresentation of Endorsement by City. 
 
 No person shall represent that the granting of a per mit or license under this Chapter is an 

endorsement by the City of the particular organization involved, and any such representation is 
hereby declared to be a misrepresentation of fact and subject to the provisions for revocation of 
the permit. 

 
15. Revocation. 
 
 If, upon receipt of written information or upon his own investigation, the City Clerk has reason to 

believe that any officer, agent or representative of a permittee is misrepresenting the facts or 
made untrue statements, or has misrepresented facts or making untrue statements, either with 



Chapter 74 - Solicitations 

 74-6 

words or by implication, with regard to solicitations or the purposes thereof, or has made untrue 
statements in the application, or that in any other way the solicitations have been conducted, 
including a failure to carry a copy of the permit, in violation of any part of this Chapter and not in 
conformity with the intent and pur pose of this Chapter, then the City Clerk shall immediately 
suspend such permit and shall cause notice thereof to be mailed to the permit holder.  

 
 If any agent or representative of the permittee is misrepresenting or making untrue statements 

with regard to the solicitation, or has made untrue statements in the application, or in any other 
way the solicitation is being conducted in a manner inimical to the protection of the public health, 
safety or welfare of the citizens of the City of Troy, or in violation of any of the provisions of this 
Chapter or of any statute of the State of Michigan, or any other Ordinance of the City of Troy, or 
is representing in any way that any permit granted hereunder is endorsement of such solicitation, 
then the City Clerk may suspend the permit or revoke same. 

 
 One conviction of a solicitor or peddler for the permittee within a one (1) year, three-hundred and 

sixty-five (365) day time span, for violations arising out of the manner, style or content of the 
solicitation shall be grounds for suspension or revocation of the permit or license. 

 
 Further it shall be a v iolation serving as grounds for suspension or revocation of such licenses 

for any permittee or licensee or his representative to enter upon property which is posted as 
prohibiting solicitors. 

 
 Further, it shall be a basis for revocation or suspension of said permit as well as a misdemeanor 

punishable by a fine of up to $500, 90 days in jail, or both when the permittee or its solicitors fail 
to leave premises when asked by owner or occupant to do so. 

 
16. Fixed stands prohibited. 
 
 No license shall stop or remain in any one place upon any street, alley or public place, longer 

than necessary to make a sale to a customer wishing to buy. Any peddler using a vehicle, when 
stopped, shall place his vehicle parallel to and within twelve (12) inches of the curb and shall 
depart from such place as soon as he has completed sales with customers actually present.  

 
17. Practices prohibited. 
 
 No peddler shall shout or cry out his goods or merchandise, nor blow any horns, ring any bell or 

use any other similar device to attract the attention of the public. The practice by a peddler of 
going in and upon private residences in the City of Troy, State of Michigan which has posted a 
"No Solicitation" sign, or its equivalent, or whose address is at that time on the Do-Not-Knock 
Registry, for the purpose of soliciting orders for the sale of goods, wares and m erchandise, 
and/or for the purpose of disposing of and/or peddling or hawking the same is hereby declared 
to be a nuisance and puni shable as such nuisance as a m isdemeanor.in violation of this 
ordinance. 

 
18. Curb service prohibited. 
 
 No person shall operate or maintain any stand, vehicle, store or place of business on or near to 

any highway in such a m anner that the customers or traders with such person occupy or 



Chapter 74 - Solicitations 

 74-7 

congregate within the limits of any street, lane, highway, or public place within the City. No 
person shall be permitted to use the streets, alleys, lanes or public places of the City for the 
service of customers or for the transaction of business, or to use any stands, stores or other 
places of business in any manner that shall require the customer, when transacting said 
business, to stand within the limits of the streets, highways, alleys or public places of the City.  

 
 (Rev. 02-22-1988) 
 
19. Prohibited areas. 
 
 No peddler, in the sale of goods, wares and m erchandise, shall obstruct any street, alley, 

sidewalk or driveway except as may be necessary and reasonable to consummate a sale nor 
remain, barter, sell offer or expose for sale any goods, wares or merchandise in front of or at the 
side of any property against the wish or desire of the property owner or the tenant or occupant of 
such property. No peddler shall engage in peddling on any  street, alley or public place after 
having been r equested to desist by any police officer of the City because of congested or 
dangerous traffic conditions. No peddler shall engage in business on any State trunk line 
highway or County road within the City. No peddler shall engage in business in a commercially 
zoned district outside of any building.  

 
20. Other prohibitions. 
 
 Solicitations and peddling upon the street and publ ic highways of the City are expressly 

prohibited at any time. No peddler or solicitor shall enter onto property which has posted a "No 
Solicitation" sign, or its equivalent, or whose address is at that time on the Do-Not-Knock 
Registry. 

 
21. Hours of peddling and solicitation. 
 
 No peddling or solicitation, as defined by this Chapter, may be conducted in residential areas 

before 9 o’clock in the forenoon and after 6 o’clock in the afternoon from October 1st through 
March 31st, and af ter 8 o’clock in the afternoon from April 1st through September 30th.after 9 
o'clock in the afternoon or before 9 o'clock in the forenoon. 

 
 No peddling or solicitation, as defined by this Chapter, may be conducted in commercially or 

otherwise zoned district except during the normal business hours of the establishment in which 
the peddling is taking place. If said establishment is not otherwise open for business, there shall 
be no peddl ing before 9 o’ clock in the forenoon and af ter 6 o’ clock in the afternoon from 
October 1st through March 31st, and after 8 o’ clock in the afternoon from April 1st through 
September 30th.after 9 o'clock in the afternoon and before 9 o'clock in the forenoon. 

 
  
 In all other areas of the City, peddling and solicitation shall be prohibited before 9 o’clock in the 

forenoon and after 6 o’clock in the afternoon from October 1st through March 31st, and after 8 
o’clock in the afternoon from April 1st through September 30th.after 9 o'clock in the afternoon 
and before 9 o'clock in the forenoon. 

 
22. Establishment of Do-Not-Knock Registry  



Chapter 74 - Solicitations 

 74-8 

 
The City Clerk shall establish and maintain the Do-Not-Knock Registry. 
 
Any person in lawful possession and occupancy of any residence, house, apartment, or other 
dwelling within the City may request that the City place and maintain his or her residence, 
house, apartment, or dwelling on the Do-Not-Knock Registry by submitting a written request on 
a form supplied by the City Clerk. The written request shall contain the following: 
 
(a) The name of the person completing the form. 
 
(b)  The complete address of the residence, house, apartment, or dwelling to be placed on 

the registry. 
 
(c)  The date the form was completed. 
 
(d)  A statement that solicitors and/or peddlers shall not knock, ring the doorbell, or 

otherwise physically call at his or her residence, house, apartment, or dwelling. 
 
(e)  Any other information reasonably required by the City to verify the identity of the person 

completing the form as a lawful occupant and possessor of the residence, house, 
apartment, or dwelling. 

 
23. Re-registering on the Do-Not-Knock Registry 
 

 
Every person who requests that the City place and maintain his or her residence, house, 
apartment, or dwelling on the Do-Not-Knock Registry shall be required to re-register his or her 
residence, house, apartment, or dwelling every five years. Any residence, house, apartment, 
or dwelling that is not re-registered shall be removed from the registry pursuant to Section 24. 
 

24. Removal from Do-Not-Knock Registry 
 
Any person in lawful possession and occupancy of any residence, house, apartment, or other 
dwelling within the City may request that the City remove his or her residence, house, 
apartment, or other dwelling from the Do-Not-Knock Registry by submitting a written request 
on a form supplied by the City Clerk. The written request shall contain the following: 
 
(a) The name of the person completing the form. 
 
(b) The complete address of the residence, house, apartment, or dwelling to be removed 

from the registry. 
 
(c)  The date the form was completed. 
 
(d)  A statement that his or her residence, house, apartment, or dwelling shall be removed 

from the Do-Not-Knock Registry. 
 
(e)  Any other information reasonably required by the City to verify the identity of the person 

http://ecode360.com/27076140#27076140�
http://ecode360.com/27076141#27076141�
http://ecode360.com/27076142#27076142�
http://ecode360.com/27076143#27076143�
http://ecode360.com/27076144#27076144�
http://ecode360.com/8261739#8261739�
http://ecode360.com/27076145#27076145�
http://ecode360.com/27076146#27076146�
http://ecode360.com/27076147#27076147�
http://ecode360.com/27076148#27076148�
http://ecode360.com/27076149#27076149�


Chapter 74 - Solicitations 

 74-9 

completing the form as a lawful occupant and possessor of the residence, house, 
apartment, or dwelling. 

 
After being placed on the Do-Not-Knock Registry, a residence, house, apartment, or other 
dwelling shall remain on the registry until one of the following occurs: 
 
(a)  The City Clerk receives a written request to remove the residence, house, apartment, or 

dwelling from the registry pursuant to this Section. 
 
(b) The City receives written notice that that person who submitted the request to have the 

residence, house, apartment, notice, or dwelling added to the registry pursuant to 
Section 22 is no longer a lawful possessor or occupant of the premises. 

 
(c)  The expiration of five calendar years, expiring on December 31 of the fifth full calendar 

year, from the date of the form submitted pursuant to Section 22. 
 

25. Copies of Do-Not-Knock Registry 
 

The City Clerk shall provide a copy of the then-current Do-Not-Knock Registry to each person 
issued a peddler's license or door-to-door solicitation permit pursuant to this chapter. A copy of 
the Do-Not-Knock Registry shall also be available for public inspection in the City Clerk's office 
during regular business hours.  

 
The failure to add a residence, house, apartment, or other dwelling to the Do-Not-Knock 
registry, or to remove a residence, house, apartment, or other dwelling from the registry, shall 
not be grounds for any claim against the City. 
 

 
226. A violation of any of the sections of this Chapter is a misdemeanormunicipal civil infraction, 

punishable by a fine of up to $500, 90 days in jail, or both. 
 
 (Rev. 02-22-1988) 

http://ecode360.com/27076150#27076150�
http://ecode360.com/27076151#27076151�
http://ecode360.com/27076152#27076152�


 

DETROIT WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT (DWSD): 

Discussion, Status and Business Issues 
Rochester Area Republican Club 

April 3, 2014 

1 

stewartc
Text Box
K-02b



DWSD OVERVIEW 

 A regional water and sewer authority, properly launched and governed 
supports critical regional goals – clean water, economic development and 
a vibrant southeastern Michigan to live, work and recreate.  Despite the 
media’s assertions to the contrary concerning Oakland’s position, a 
regional authority makes sense. 

 

 Clean water and properly processed sewage operated in a cost-efficient 
manner and in compliance with EPA standards is critical for regional 
economic development and vitality – and jobs that arise therefrom.   

 

 With the Great Lakes representing 20% of the fresh water in the entire 
world and covers 40% of the State’s population, the State of Michigan has 
an enhanced obligation to be actively involved in the resolution of the 
DWSD matter to ensure the Great Lakes remain pristine.  Unfortunately, 
the State has played a very minor role in the discussions to date. 

 

 



DWSD OVERVIEW (Cont.) 

 

 The Emergency Manager’s (EM’s) DWSD offer and related discussions for 
the past 9 months does not support a long-term strategy but one that 
clearly supports a short-term goal of infusing the maximum amount of 
DWSD cash into the City’s general operations and leaves unresolved the 
DWSD operating and capital needs. 

 

 Clearly, the EM had the legal authority to address the operating issues 
facing DWSD under Public Act 436 and / or via the bankruptcy court 
proceedings.  He choose not to do so leaving value that could have been 
extracted from a more efficiently run operation unaddressed. 

 

 Oakland County Executive Patterson – ‘No deal is better than a bad deal.’ 



OVERVIEW – CRITICAL DATES 

 Federal court oversight imposed in 1978 (mismanagement, EPA failures, etc.) - ends spring 
2013. 

 

 Late in the Federal Court oversight process, a Root Cause Committee (3 members of DWSD / 
3 members of Detroit – no regional members) was created.  Root Cause Committee report in 
March 2013: 

 

 Cited goal to establish a regional authority. 

 Had a very complicated organization and governance structure. 

 Was not vetted at all by the Wayne, Oakland and Macomb Counties (although the 
Counties would have continued discussions).  

 Contemplated a $50 million to $70 million annual lease payment from the authority to 
the City with nominal cost avoidance (e.g. it would have been an incremental cost). 

 

 Judge rejects Root Cause Committee report – he had no legal basis that would have 
permitted him to create a regional entity.  Court exits oversight (although a legal challenge 
still exists). 

 

 

 



OVERVIEW – CRITICAL DATES (Cont.) 

 Started regional DWSD discussions with EM - June 2013. 

 

 Detroit petitions for bankruptcy – July 18, 2013. 

 

 City proposal ($9 billion lease payments over 40 year lease term) – October 2, 2013. 

 

 Discussions on City proposal and development of memorandum of understanding on ‘terms and 
conditions’ – October 2013 through February 2014. 

 

 Disclosure Statement / Plan of Adjustment – February 21, 2014. 

 

 General rejection by Counties of lease payment, memorandum of understanding, and 
discontinuation of Counties / City meetings – mid-March 2014. 

 

 City issues request for information from private companies – late March 2014. 

 



OCT. 2, 2013 CITY PROPOSAL 

 Divergence of goals – EM and regional leaders: 

 
 EM’s representative – ‘Counties are not his clients and his sole 

purpose is to maximize the value extracted from the DWSD deal 
for the benefit of the City.’  Represents combative and short-
term objectives to resolve the immediate bankruptcy needs only 
for the City, not the DWSD.  Caveat emptor – buyer beware.   

 
 Counties’ leadership - interested in a water / sewer system that 

provides services in compliance with EPA regulations at a cost-
efficient price well into the future.  Collaborative and long-term 
goals involving a well-operated water and sewer system 
sustainable well after the bankruptcy has ended. 

 



OCT. 2, 2013 CITY PROPOSAL (Cont.) 

 City proposal of a ‘revenue neutral’ approach:   

 

 Projected costs avoided due to bankruptcy actions taken by the EM, regardless 
of whether the savings are actually achieved in the future, would be paid to 
the City in the form of a lease payment essentially forever.  The net effect of 
the cost avoidance, in theory, would be that the new authority would be in no 
worse financial shape than it is today and would be in the future.   

 

 40-year contract that could not be broken even for breaches / defaults and 
automatically renews so long as the new authority had outstanding debt.  A 
40-year plus ‘no cut’ contract requires substantial due diligence - a proper 
review and complete understanding of the financial, operations, 
environmental and other business issues as once the region is committed 
there is no turning back – CAVEAT EMPTOR. 



OCT. 2, 2013 CITY PROPOSAL (Cont.) 

 Annual lease payment - $94M in 2015 increasing to $228M in 2023.  In 2023, the 
$228M lease payment becomes a base amount to be increased at not less than 
4% per year for the remaining life of the 40-year lease term (or beyond).  Over 40-
year term, the estimated lease payments would have accumulated to be $9.0 
billion. 

 

 Costs that would be avoided in the original proposal: 

 
 DWSD pension costs – DWSD is a part of City’s general retirement system to provide City 

employees not only a defined benefit plan, but a supplemental defined contribution plan 
whereby they were guaranteed a rate of return of no less than 7.9% on amounts 
invested.  Accrued pension liability for retirements system, as calculated by the EM’s 
actuaries, including DWSD - $1.9 billion for this guaranteed benefit. 

 

 Retirees’ healthcare – eliminate ‘pay-as-you-go’ medical bills for DWSD retirees. 
Bankruptcy is eliminating an estimated $200,000 in value per retiree and active 
employee on average ($6B+ / 32,000 active employees and retirees = $200,000).  Media 
is focusing only on pension reductions, not loss to actives and retirees for lost medical 
benefits.  Annual DWSD savings in the near term - $21 million. 



OCT. 2, 2013 CITY PROPOSAL (Cont.) 

 Financing savings – EM assumed lower borrowing costs under an authority 
separate from the City.  In theory, a better bond rating (estimated by the City at no 
less than ‘A’ without bond insurance) would provide an lower borrowing cost (e.g. 
interest rate).   

 

 City wanted credits on the assumption that the existing $5.7 billion in debt 
would be refinanced.  EM incorporated it into the lease payment even though 
most of the bonds were not yet callable.  Accelerating the call date, which is 
now proposed, creates a bond impairment with the result of a bond rating 
downgrade - actually creating a substantial increase in borrowing costs, rather 
than assumed benefits over the 40-year lease term. 

 

 Recently, Fitch and Standard & Poors rating agencies have lowered the debt 
rating, in part, because of the proposed impairment. 

 



OCT. 2, 2013 CITY PROPOSAL (Cont.) 

 Pension debt - elimination of pension certificate of 
participation debt service (e.g. a special type of long-term 
debt) alleviates future principal and interest payments. 

 
 Operations – EM wanted savings from the restructuring of 

operations over 10 years even as the City representatives 
would not be party to achieving the new authority’s actual 
savings. 

 

 The lease payment would have preference over existing debt 
and operations – to be paid first.  Bondholders and bond 
insurers objected. 
 



OCT. 2, 2013 CITY PROPOSAL (Cont.) 

 The proposed investment banking fees paid to the 
City’s advisers for closing a DWSD deal are summarized 
below under two alternatives (to be paid as part of a 
20-year term new bond financing): 
 
 County regional authority - $8 million, with additional 

services and fees possible.  Plus, potentially additional fees 
for certain other related services. 
 

 Privatization - alternatively, a fee for privatization (e.g. sale 
to a private entity) of DWSD would be based on a 
commission on size of the deal – between $35 million and 
$45 million (based on Oct. 2, 2013 proposal). 

 



CRITICAL BUSINESS ISSUES 

 ‘Back-stopping’ of unpaid customer invoices – a deal breaker:   

 
 Those who have the ability to pay would fund those who will not or 

cannot pay for the new authority’s capital and operating needs over 
the 40-year period. 

 
 Despite numerous requests by the Counties for the State and City to 

discuss the ‘back-stopping’ issue, the State decided not to assist in the 
DWSD back-stopping matter. 

 
 Order of magnitude - retail (e.g. Detroit residents) delinquent accounts 

at Feb 28, 2014:  amount owed by retail customers - $170M.  Amount 
60 days or over delinquent - $140M (represented by 162,000 
customer accounts, or say 300K residents).  Over 80% delinquent.  
Annual write-offs of roughly $40 million in unpaid bills. 



CRITICAL BUSINESS ISSUES (Cont.) 

 Back-stopping (cont.) - Actions to reduce losses: 
 
 Delinquency on property tax bills – the print media recently 

reported that only 53% pay their property tax bills on a current 
basis.  After 2 years, the collection percentage rises to 85% of 
amounts originally levied.  Disclosure Statement filed with the 
court – 85% collection rate in 2014 with NO improvement 
expected through 2023. 
 

 Shut-offs – assuming that 300K residents have no water, what 
could happen in July when temperatures hit 90+ degrees (public 
safety issues for ‘shut-off’ employees and unrest / health-
related issues / creation of further abandonment of homes 
causing increased blight)? 



CRITICAL BUSINESS ISSUES (Cont.) 

 Back-stopping issues (cont.): 

 

 Highland Park (considered a ‘wholesale’ customer) was delinquent  as well - $19.6 
million increasing at $600K per month (DWSD has filed a lawsuit in 2014).  Other minor 
amounts delinquent from remainder of wholesale customers (all of which have ‘work-
out’ agreements to pay over a specified period of time). 

 

 Lack of adequate and timely information provided to the Counties to evaluate the City’s 
proposal – financial, actuarial (pension / retirees’ healthcare), legal, labor status, insurance, 
capital needs, environmental compliance, etc.   

 

 Mid-March 2014 quote from Orr:  ‘During the coming due diligence we will be giving the 
Counties everything that is available.’  Been discussing DWSD for 10 months.  Example – 
given millions being spent on accountants / consultants why would the City not hire a 
few bookkeepers from these firms to close the DWSD books to make the information 
available to the Counties? 

 



CRITICAL BUSINESS ISSUES (Cont.) 

 Capital needs:  

 

 Range from $2.5B to $5.0B over next 10-year period (bonding for the new capital causing 
increases in the rates) - if bonding can be obtained at all.  The $2.5B amount is based on 
affordability (e.g. ability to pay), not based on what would be needed to properly 
maintain / improve the DWSD system (higher amount). 

 

 New debt service (e.g. principal and interest payments for above) would result in rate 
increases - can the rate increases be passed onto Detroit customers if the City has 80% 
delinquency rate and writes-off $40 million annually in uncollected billings?   

 

 Standard & Poors has dropped the bond rating to ‘CCC’ with a negative watch (meaning 
if the underlying business issues are not improved, the raring could be reduced further). 
Fitch has rated the debt at BB+ with a negative watch.  Ratings below BBB are considered 
to be ‘junk.’   The meaning – future interest rates on debt borrowed for the capital needs 
above will increase and thereby be included in future water and sewer rates. 

 

 



CRITICAL BUSINESS ISSUES (Cont.) 

 Capital needs (cont.): 

 

 City’s representatives targeting of an ‘A’ rating for financing savings (see costs 
avoided) with no bond insurance required - likely not possible in the near term 
for DWSD as a department and / or as a separate authority. 

 

 Detroit infrastructure needs - estimated Detroit water loss of 150 million 
gallons / day (28% of all water produced by the DWSD), with billed usage of 75 
MGD – half of the water lost.  Old infrastructure (pipes, water mains, etc.) 
requiring replacement would cost billions.  Has yet to be properly quantified. 

 

 Loss of Detroit’s population, businesses and other issues continues to result in 
constantly smaller water usage.  In past 10 years, the billed water usage for 
Detroit has dropped in half.  With a largely fixed-cost operation (operations / 
debt service) and the basis for rates being water / sewer flow, the continued 
flow loss is going to contribute to higher future rates for Detroit residents – are 
they even collectible?  
 

 

 



CRITICAL FINANCIAL ISSUES 

 Operating losses for the 7-year period ended June 30, 2013:  $1.5 BILLION ($150 million in 
FY-2013) – two of the largest components of which are: 

 

 $514 million in likely bonded projects (cost of which is in the water and sewer rates), 
launched and vendors paid, and then, abandoned.  NO benefit received from 
abandonments. 

 

 $547 million in swap termination losses (buy-out of risky financial transactions / 
agreements that went sour) in 2012.  NO benefit received. 

 

 Ending equity of water and sewer operations combined (‘net worth’) of DWSD at June 30, 
2013 – just $20 MILLION (9 months ago), down from $1.52 BILLION as of June 30, 2006. 

 

 The accumulated unrestricted deficit of the combined water and sewer operations as of June 
30, 2012 was $1.1 billion (FY-2013 balances not yet available); 3.3 times the City’s General 
Fund accumulated deficit that is causing a Chapter 9 bankruptcy.  The State’s Department of 
Treasury has never required a deficit elimination plan to be produced for the water and 
sewer operations. 

 

 
 

 



CRITICAL FINANCIAL ISSUES 

 DWSD expects to reduce 700 employees through 2022 through attrition.  
Said differently, DWSD is currently carrying 700 employees that will not be 
needed in a more efficient operation (gross cost to carry these employees 
is estimated at $170 million through 2022 and is currently included in the 
water and sewer rates). 

 

 Annual rate of return provided to Detroit customers - $29 million:   

 
 Amount to be paid in 2014 by wholesale (suburban) customers to Detroit retail 

customers for the risks and rewards of the City’s DWSD ownership.   

 
 Rate of return has been incorporated into the rate calculations for decades.  

Amounts would be over and above the City’s proposed lease payment.   

 

 

 

 

 



TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 Spent October 2013 to late January 2014 trying to nail down ‘terms and 
conditions’: non-financial lease terms (governance; responsibilities for 
operations; funding; etc.). 

 

 Governance – two representatives from each of the three counties; two 
from City and one appointed by governor.  Affirmative voting for major 
issues (e.g. would require a single ‘yes’ vote from each of the four entities 
for major action to be approved). 

 

 As proposed by the EM the new authority would have to fund capital 
needs of wholesale and retail (Detroit) regardless of whether any retail / 
wholesale customer could pay (e.g. part of the ‘back-stopping’ issue).   
Funding the capital needs would become an authority issue regardless of 
source of funds. 



TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Cont.) 

 

 Term – 40-plus years (perpetual unless there is no long-term debt 
at end of 40 years); there would be no exiting the agreement even 
if one party breaches.  Due diligence becomes critical! 
 

 Despite Oakland County having provided input for months, at the end of 
January 2014, there remained over 30 critical issues involving the terms 
and conditions that had not been addressed at all or had been rejected by 
the EM representatives. The County’s questions, comments and issues 
still remain unaddressed at this time. 

 

 The terms and conditions efforts were largely abandoned in late January 
2014 after a two-week concerted push to resolve them in mid-January. 

 



RECENT DISCUSSIONS - $47 MILLION 

 Annual lease payment of $47 million is EM’s recent proposal.  EM considers $47M 
to be the minimum necessary for City bankruptcy resolutions and is a floor 
(meaning other presently undefined circumstances could result in a higher 
amount to be paid). 

 

 The $47 million is supposedly comprised of the cost avoidance of the pension 
certificates of participation (debt) payments and retirees’ healthcare payments 
(total - $36 million over the next 10 years or so); yet the lease payment is $47 
million (‘revenue neutrality’  is no longer on the table).   

 

 In addition to the $47 million, the new authority would be expected to assume 
the $1.0 billion in unfunded pension obligations (caused in large part due to the 
guaranteed interest rate matter). 

 

 Numerous other problems with the underlying assumptions as well – repairing 
these problems were rejected by the EM. 



RECENT DISCUSSIONS - $47 MILLION (Cont.) 

 In early March 2014, the EM representatives would only agree to permit 
‘confirmatory’ due diligence:  only the underlying assumptions of the calculation 
of the $47 million lease payment was to be considered as well as demonstrating 
that the assumptions used could result in a sustainable system. 

 

 City / State would not fund professional costs unless the Counties agreed in 
advance to ‘good faith’ efforts to the creation of an authority even given the 
egregious issues proffered by the EM representatives from inception through 
March 2014.  Hardly bargaining in ‘good faith.’ 

 

 EM:  ‘During the coming due diligence we will be giving the Counties everything 
that is available.’  Why now when they haven’t for past 10 months and if little or 
no efforts were expended to accumulated known needed materials, of course 
they won’t be available. 

 

 Three counties choose to reject the ‘confirmatory’ due diligence efforts. 



DWSD AS A DEPARTMENT 

 The Disclosure Statement / Plan of Adjustment prepared by the EM 
intends on penalizing the wholesale customers if no authority is formed: 

 

 ‘Affordability program’ – the City would initiate a program that lowers 
the water and sewer rates for Detroit residents / businesses to be 
funded by the suburban customers in addition to the above business 
issues imposed on wholesale customers and the $29 million rate of 
return adjustment. 

 

 Pension contribution increase - $675 million over 10 years (rather than 
the normal  30 years). Present pension payment is approximately $15 
million, for an annual increase in pension costs of $52.5 million.  The 
additional pension cost would result in an estimated 6.2% increase in 
the rates alone. 



DWSD AS A DEPARTMENT (Cont.) 

 The $675 million acceleration of DWSD pension payments would allow 
the City to avoid the City General Fund pension payments and the 
‘savings’ from DWSD pension acceleration would be diverted into City 
capital needs (police / fire cars; technology; etc.) – even as the DWSD 
has significant capital needs as well.   

 

 The Disclosure Statement has implied that the City would impose a 
‘payment in lieu of taxes’ amount which could be a lease payment (e.g. 
perhaps $47 million by any other name. 

 

 DWSD could continues to operate as a City department with many 
of the problems being pushed into the coming years.  Whether the 
City would choose to restructure operations (reduce the 700 
employee positions) is presently unknown.  The bond ratings, 
however, would likely continue to be a problem.  

 

 



RECENTLY – ISSUANCE OF RFI 

 Recently, EM issued a request for information (RFI) from various potential water / 
sewer vendors. To be considered for the request for proposal phase, companies 
must respond to the RFI no later than April 7, 2014.  The EM’s review team on the 
RFI proposals would ‘short-list’ vendors that could formally propose.  A binding 
request for proposal would be due no later than June 1, 2014. 

 

 Proposal should consider either an outright sale of DWSD to a private entity, lease 
or a vendor operating the water and sewer system.  Significant financial and 
statutory barriers exist in the sale of DWSD to a private entity. 

 

 Private entity would have to fund the $47 million in lease payments or equivalent. 

 

 Private entity must either accept a nearly $1 billion unfunded pension liability or 
commit to funding the $675 million pension payment over 10 years. 

 



RECENTLY – ISSUANCE OF RFI (Cont.) 

 Interestingly, they have required that the new vendor cap the rate increases for 
10-years at no greater than 4% (even as this rate has been insufficient to avoid the 
$1.5 billion in operating losses for the past 7 years).   

 

 Doubtful that this cap in the RFI requirement is realistic given the DWSD financial 
status.  Still need to resolve weak balance sheet accumulated over past 7 years, 
structural operating losses, finance capital needs and resolve City bankruptcy 
needs – either through rate increases and / or restructuring of operations.    

 

 Private entity must commit to fund capital needs even as only the estimated 
needs for the first five years of a ten-year term are provided in the RFI. 

 

 Under the Counties’ consideration is the use of the Michigan Public Services 
Commission as a body used to set water and sewer rates should a private entity 
be selected to own or operate the DWSD. 

 



OAKLAND’S ALTERNATIVE STUDY 

 The Oakland County administration and Water Resources Commissioner 
are seeking the designation of $3.0 million (of which $500,000 would be 
immediately appropriated) from the Board of Commissioners for a study 
of alternative water and sewer services for Oakland residents and for 
bankruptcy attorneys to protect the County’s rate-payers.  Board 
committees have approved the request. 

 

 Matters to be considered as part of the study – expansion of existing 
sewage treatment plants; collaboration with Macomb and Genesee 
Counties for water services; and such other approaches that would serve 
to minimize reliance on the DWSD for water and sewer services. 

 

 No short-term solutions are presently possible given infrastructure needs 
for transmission of water and sewage flow. 



SUMMARY 

 The County Executive and Water Resource 
Commissioner believe that a properly managed and 
operated regional authority would be the best solution 
for economic development, job retention and 
attraction, and the general health of the County’s 
residents and businesses.   

 

 The EM’s “revenue neutral” plan is based on the 
notion that a new lease payment can be funded within 
existing rate charges because of the ‘savings’ realized 
by better management under an authority. 

 

 

 



SUMMARY (Cont.) 

 The better management ‘savings’ arises from the end of 
corruption, the right-sizing of the admittedly bloated labor force, 
the use of modern best operating practices, and from potential 
interest savings on bonds after Wall Street sees the improvements. 

 

 The flaw is this:  if the ‘savings’ are required to be returned to the 
City as a lease payment, isn’t the EM simply institutionalizing, for 
the next 40+ years, the unjust cost (tax of sorts) of the criminal and 
programmatic victimization of the DWSD rate-payers? 

 

 The EM’s plan calls on the rate-payers to continue to pay the cost 
of mismanagement and corruption, but this time it is called a lease 
payment.  How is that just? 
 



SUMMARY (Cont.) 

 

             

            County Executive Patterson said it best: 

 

         ‘No deal is better than a bad deal.’ 
 



Robert J. Daddow, Deputy County Executive 
Oakland County, Michigan 
248 / 858-1650 
daddowr@oakgov.com 

Q&A - Thank you 



stewartc
Text Box
O-01a





PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 11, 2014 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Edmunds called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:30 p.m. on February 11, 2014 in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Michael W. Hutson 
Steve Gottlieb Philip Sanzica 
Tom Krent 
Gordon Schepke 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-02-010 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Hutson, Sanzica 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2014-02-011 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the January 28, 2014 Special/Study meeting as 
published. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Hutson, Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01b



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 11, 2014 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 080-D) – Proposed Walsh 

College Renovations and Addition, East side of Livernois, South of Wattles (3838 
Livernois), Section 22, Currently Zoned CF (Community Facilities) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the Preliminary Site Plan application for Walsh College. He 
addressed: 
 The required variances relating to the proposed building setback and building height. 
 A request for a parking deviation from the required number of parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Carlisle noted the Planning Commission cannot take action on the application until the 
applicant receives the necessary variances from the Zoning Board of Appeals. 
 
Mr. Carlisle reported the proposed site plan is consistent with the goals of the Zoning 
Ordinance. He said if the applicant is granted the necessary variances, he recommends 
that the Planning Commission give consideration to the parking deviation and asked the 
applicant to resubmit the Site Plan addressing the items indicated in his report dated 
January 29, 2014 for review and approval at the next Planning Commission meeting. 
 
Stephanie Bergeron, President and Chief Executive Officer of Walsh College, and 
Christine McGrath of Valerio Dewalt Train Associates, project architect, were present. 
 
Ms. McGrath gave a general description of the proposed design concepts. 
 
The proposed preliminary site plan was well received by all of the Board members. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
6. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items on Current Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

7. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
There were general Planning Commission comments relating to: 
 Joint City Council/Planning Commission meeting. 
 Walsh College expansion and renovation. 
 





Traffic Committee Minutes – February 19, 2014  FINAL 

Page 1 of 4 
 

A regular meeting of the Troy Traffic Committee was held Wednesday, February 19, 2014 
in the Lower Level Conference Room at Troy City Hall.  P ete Ziegenfelder called the 
meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
1. Roll Call 
 
PRESENT:  Tim Brandstetter 
    Ted Halsey 
    Richard Kilmer 
    Al Petrulis 
    Stevan Popovic 
    Pete Ziegenfelder 
 
ABSENT:  Sarah Binkowski 
          
Also present: Tod Jenkins, 6773 Little Creek 
    Jim and Phyllis Williams, 3317 McClure 
    Lt. Eric Caloia, Fire Department 
    Sgt. Mike Szuminski, Police Department 
    Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer 
     
2. Minutes – November 20, 2013 
 
RESOLUTION # 2014-02-01 
  
Moved by Kilmer  
Seconded by Petrulis 
 
To approve the November 20, 2013 minutes as printed. 
 
YES:   5 (Halsey, Kilmer, Petrulis, Popovic, Ziegenfelder) 
NO:   None 
ABSENT:  2 (Binkowski, Brandstetter) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
3.  Request for Traffic Control – Chancery at Little Creek 
 
Lynda Fitzpatrick of 6735 Little Creek requests that traffic control be placed at the 
intersection of Chancery and Little Creek.  Ms. Fitzpatrick states that the lack of Stop signs 
at the intersection creates a hazardous situation. 
 
Tod Jenkins of 6773 Little Creek was in attendance at the meeting .  Mr. Jenkins has lived 
in the area for 18 years.  He is not aware of any crashes at the intersection [there has 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01c



Traffic Committee Minutes – February 19, 2014  FINAL 

Page 2 of 4 
 

been one crash reported at the intersection in the past five years].    M r. Jenkins is not 
opposed to the change but is not sure why it is needed and questions if a change should 
be made. 
 
Sgt. Szuminski confirmed that there have been no crashes at the intersection in his review 
back to January 13, 2013. 
 
RESOLUTION # 2014-02-02 
  
Moved by Halsey 
Seconded by Popovic 
 
RESOLVED, that NO changes be made at the intersection of Chancery at Little Creek. 
 
YES:   6 (Brandstetter, Halsey, Kilmer, Petrulis, Popovic, Ziegenfelder) 
NO:   None 
ABSENT:  1 (Binkowski) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
4.  Request for Traffic Control – McClure at Banmoor 
 
Phyllis Williams of 3317 McClure requests that traffic control be placed at the intersection 
of McClure at Banmoor.  Ms. Williams states that the lack of Stop signs at the intersection 
creates a hazardous situation. 
 
Phyllis Williams of 3317 McClure was in attendance at the meeting.  She discussed the 
need for Stop signs due to McClure being used as a bypass for Crooks Road.  She reports 
that traffic volumes have increased significantly over the past few years.  The road is 
narrow and used for all modes of travel including walkers, bikers and cars as there are no 
sidewalks in the area.  M s. Williams feels that Stop signs will help control traffic on 
McClure. 
 
Jim Williams of 3317 McClure supported all that Ms. Williams reported.  He added that he 
walks his two dogs daily on McClure and traffic is indeed much heavier than in the past.  
He stated that Stop signs would add to the safety of the area. 
 
Traffic Engineering received one email in support of Stop signs at the intersection from 
Azam Makki of 1915 Muer.  He stated that the lack of sidewalks in the area coupled with 
an increase in traffic has created an unsafe situation. 
 
Mr. Ziegenfelder asked if the purpose of the Stop signs was speed control or to make 
people stop at the intersection.  Mr. and Ms. Williams stated that they felt Stop signs would 
address both issues.  They feel that Stop signs would help focus attention at the 
intersection. 
 



Traffic Committee Minutes – February 19, 2014  FINAL 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Mr. Ziegenfelder asked about the location of the school bus stop.  It was reported that it is 
on McClure, between Banmoor and Muer. 
 
Sgt. Szuminski reported that there have been no crashes at the intersection in his review 
back to January 13, 2013. 
 
Ms. Williams stated that there have been two (2) incidents on McClure in the past that 
have not been reported. 
 
RESOLUTION # 2014-02-03 
 
Moved by Kilmer 
Seconded by NONE 
 
RESOLVED, that the intersection of McClure at Banmoor be modified to All-Way STOP 
control. 
 
There was no support for this Resolution. 
 
RESOLUTION # 2014-02-04 
  
Moved by Brandstetter 
Seconded by Popovic 
 
RESOLVED, that the intersection of McClure and Banmoor be modified from a YIELD sign 
on Banmoor to a STOP sign on the Banmoor approach to McClure.   
 
YES:   5 (Brandstetter, Halsey, Petrulis, Popovic, Ziegenfelder) 
NO:   1 (Kilmer) 
ABSENT:  1 (Binkowski) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
5.  Request for Traffic Control – McClure at Muer 
 
Phyllis Williams of 3317 McClure requests that traffic control be placed at the intersection 
of McClure at Muer.  Ms. Williams states that the lack of Stop signs at the intersection 
creates a hazardous situation. 
 
The same discussion ensued for this intersection as previously discussed for 
McClure/Banmoor. 
 
RESOLUTION # 2014-02-05 
  
Moved by Popovic 
Seconded by Halsey 



Traffic Committee Minutes – February 19, 2014  FINAL 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
RESOLVED, that the intersection of McClure and Muer be modified from NO traffic control 
to a STOP sign on the McClure approach to Muer.   
 
YES:   6 (Brandstetter, Halsey, Kilmer, Petrulis, Popovic, Ziegenfelder) 
NO:   NONE 
ABSENT:  1 (Binkowski) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

   
6. Public Comment 
 
Ms. Williams asked about other options for McClure in lieu of All-Way Stop signs.  Sgt. 
Szuminski stated that this area is similar to many other areas in the city.  He will add the 
area to the roll call so that when officers are in the area and are not responding to higher 
priority calls they will provide additional attention to McClure. 
 
7. Other Business 
 
Mr. Popovic asked about the use of “No Through Traffic” signs.  The city does not use 
these types of signs as public roads are open to use for all.   
 
Mr. Brandstetter asked about the use of traffic calming measures in Troy.  To date, there is 
one (1) speed hump in use on Walnut Hill.  This was paid for by the residents in this area 
as part of a special assessment district paving project.  Most recent comments have been 
that it is not very effective.  Other traffic calming measures have not been investigated in 
great depth as initial feedback in areas where they have been considered has not moved 
forward due to lack of support by residents in the area primarily due to cost.   
 
Mr. Petrulis discussed the intersection of Coolidge and Maple and specifically the need for 
additional signage to reinforce no left turns from southbound Coolidge to westbound 
Maple.  Traffic Engineering will review the area to determine if additional signage can be 
placed. 
 
A general discussion ensued regarding road conditions, funding, lack of maintenance, etc.  
A suggestion was made to have signs placed along the road when concrete is curing to 
inform the public why there may not be construction activity taking place in that area for 
several days.  This suggestion will be reviewed and potentially incorporated into upcoming 
concrete slab replacement projects.  
 
8. Adjourn 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:22 p.m.  
 
                                          ___           
    , Vice-Chairperson    Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer 
G:\Traffic\aaa Traffic Committee\2014\2_February 19\Minutes_20140219_DRAFT.docx 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT MARCH 5, 2014 
 
 

1 
 

Chair Dziurman called the Regular meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals to order at 
3:00 p.m. on March 5, 2014 in the Lower Level Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Members Present: 
Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
Gary Abitheira 
Teresa Brooks 
Brian Kischnick 
 
Absent: 
Michael Carolan 
 
Support Staff Present: 
Mitch Grusnick, Building Official/Code Inspector 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Also Present: 
Attached and made a part hereof is the signature sheet of those present and signed in 
at this meeting. 

 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Moved by: Brooks 
Support by: Abitheira 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the February 5, 2014 Regular meeting as 
submitted. 
 
Yeas: All present (4) 
Absent: Carolan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. HEARING OF CASES 

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, WILLIAM J. SHORT FOR HURON SIGN COMPANY, 1650 

W MAPLE – A variance for relief of the Sign Code to replace the existing ground 
sign with a proposed ground sign measuring 99 square feet, set back four feet, eight 
inches (4’8”) from the Maple Road right-of-way line. Table 85.02.05 requires a 20 
foot minimum setback for the proposed 99 square foot sign. 
 
Mr. Grusnick reviewed the variance request.  He advised the Board the existing sign 
on the property was installed with a permit in 1995 at which time the property was 
zoned M-1 (Light Industrial). Mr. Grusnick said that later in 1995, the property was 
rezoned to B-3 (General Business) noting the Sign Code allows two (2) ground signs 
in the B-3 zoning district within a zero (0) to twenty (20) foot setback. Mr. Grusnick 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01d



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT MARCH 5, 2014 
 
 

2 
 

said the Sign Code currently allows one ground sign at a maximum of 50 square feet 
in size and a second ground sign at a maximum of 36 square feet in size. Mr. 
Grusnick reported the department received no responses to the public hearing 
notices. 
 
Present were William Short of Huron Sign Company and Quentin Jeffries, 
representative of Belle Tire corporate office. 
 
Mr. Short said Belle Tire would like to replace the existing sign with a smaller sign in 
both height and width and install it on the existing poles and foundation. He indicated 
they are seeking relief from the required setback because new footings would require 
moving the existing landscaping and flagpole. In addition, Mr. Short said because the 
sign would be lower in height, the parked cars to the west would block the view of the 
sign from westbound Maple Road traffic. He addressed existing signs in the vicinity 
with similar setbacks. Mr. Short indicated the existing Belle Tire sign could remain 
because it is still functional. 
 
Mr. Jeffries said Belle Tire would like to replace the existing sign with the new standard 
corporate sign. He indicated that Belle Tire does not intend to install a second sign. 
 
Mr. Grusnick displayed pictures of neighboring signs from both the west and east views 
of Belle Tire. 
 
There was discussion on: 
 Legally nonconforming sign(s). 
 Allowable sign dimensions. 
 Neighboring signs to west and east as relates to uniformity. 
 Compromise on dimensions/size to be more in uniform with neighboring signs. 
 Variances run with the property. 
 
Chair Dziurman opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Toby Buechner of Troy Gymnastics, 1600 W Maple, addressed concerns with the 
proposed sign blocking the sign for Troy Gymnastics. 
 
With no one else present who wished to speak, Chair Dziurman closed the floor for 
public comment. 
 
Moved by: Kischnick 
Support by: Brooks 
 
RESOLVED, To grant the variance request with the conditions that signage is 
limited to one (1) sign and limited up to 86 square feet in size, for the following 
reasons: 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT MARCH 5, 2014 
 
 

3 
 

1. The variance would not be contrary to the public interest or general purpose and 
intent of Chapter 85. 

2. The variance does not adversely affect properties in the immediate vicinity of the 
proposed sign. 

3. The petitioner has a hardship or practical difficulty resulting from the unusual 
characteristics of the property that precludes reasonable use of the property, 
more specifically because of the change in zoning. 

 
Yeas: All present (4) 
Absent: Carolan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
4. COMMUNICATIONS 

 
None. 

 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
None. 
 

6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
 
Chair Dziurman addressed photo identification cards for Board members. 
 

7. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The Regular meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals adjourned at 3:27 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
  
Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
 
 
 
 
  
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Building Code Board of Appeals Minutes\2014\Draft\2014 03 05 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 





PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 11, 2014 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Edmunds called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:01 p.m. on March 11, 2014 in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Steve Gottlieb 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
Philip Sanzica 
Gordon Schepke 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Frank Boudon, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-03-012 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as printed. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2014-03-013 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Schepke 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the February 11, 2014 Regular meeting as 
prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01e



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 11, 2014 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Poppleton Ridge, 

11 units/lots, South side of Big Beaver, E of Adams between Brooklawn and 
Wrenwood (3737 W Big Beaver), Section 30, Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family 
Residential) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the Preliminary Site Condominium Plan application for Poppleton 
Ridge. He reported the applicant provided floor plans and elevations in compliance with 
the submittal requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. Mr. Carlisle addressed: 
 

 Existing landscaped berm along the southerly boundary. 
 Lot 4 as relates to minimum width requirement. 
 Maintenance of greenbelt and Big Beaver right of way. 
 Road width of Poppleton Court. 
 Storm water alternatives; i.e., location of detention basin to provide amenity for 

residential community. 
 Required vision clearance triangle for decorative wall and landscaped corner at Big 

Beaver and Brooklawn. 
 
Mr. Carlisle indicated support for the proposed Preliminary Site Plan and recommended 
approval of the application with the conditions as outlined in his report, dated February 24, 
2014, with the exception of the applicant providing building plans and elevations. 
 
Joe Cracchiolo was present and said he would abide by the conditions outlined in the 
Planning Consultant report. 
 
There was discussion on: 
 Tree preservation. 
 Alternative storm water features; specifically grass/paver material. 
 
Chair Edmunds opened the floor for public comment. There was no one present; the floor 
was closed for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-03-014 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Condominium Approval, pursuant to Article 8 and 
Section 10.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for Poppleton Ridge Site 
Condominium, 11 units/lots, South side of Big Beaver, East of Adams between 
Brooklawn and Wrenwood, Section 30, currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) 
District, be granted, subject to the following: 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 11, 2014 
  
 
 

3 
 

1. Increase road width of Poppleton Court to 28-feet. 
2. Reconfigure Lot 4 to meet the 76.5 foot minimum width requirement. 
3. Indicate percent lot coverage by building. 
4. Consider more naturalized storm water best management practices. 
5. Indicate maintenance of greenbelt and Big Beaver right of way. 
6. Ensure that the 25-foot vision clearance triangle is met. 
7. Construct the retention pond access drive with grass/paver material. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
There was discussion whether approval of the Preliminary Site Plan should be subject 
to the minimum square footage requirements for residential units. 
 
Mr. Savidant said the applicant is not able to provide the square footage information at 
this time because he is building custom homes. Mr. Savidant said he is confident the 
applicant will meet the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and it is not necessary to 
place that condition on its approval. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File 

Number SU 412) – Proposed Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Inc., North side 
of Birchwood, East of Bellingham (1871 Birchwood), Section 26, Currently Zoned IB 
(Integrated Industrial and Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the Special Use and Preliminary Site Plan application for Advanced 
Landscape & Builders Supply. He said the soil conveyor, sorter and stockpile are not 
standard operations for a landscaper contractor’s yard. Mr. Carlisle said he not able to 
make a recommendation until the applicant provides additional information as outlined in 
his report, dated February 26, 2014. 
 
There was discussion on: 
 Decibel level of noise. 
 Impact on surrounding neighbors. 
 Height of equipment. 
 Retail entity of operation. 
 Soil and mud transported on surface roads. 
 Proposed portions of pavement. 
 Storm water management. 
 
Present were the applicant/property owner, Russ Maloney, and Nathan Robinson of 
Horizon Engineering. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 11, 2014 
  
 
 

4 
 

Mr. Robinson provided an explanation of the proposed use on site, stating it would be a 
low intensity, low trafficked operation. He addressed: 
 

 Average hours of operation and topsoil sorting. 
 Truck traffic to/from site. 
 Overnight parking; two trucks. 
 Height dimensions of topsoil sorter/conveyer. 
 Existing 6 foot wood fence. 
 Paving of site; proposed to pave northwest quadrant. 
 Vehicular driving, parking and maneuvering on paved surface. 
 Dust control; spray with water, chloride. 
 Soil erosion control; no immediate measures, possibly some type of barrier. 
 Storm water requirements dependent on amount of pavement. The applicant will 

comply with all engineering requirements. 
 
Mr. Robinson distributed manufacturing flyers on the landscaping and topsoil sorter 
equipment. 
 
Mr. Maloney said the topsoil sorter is equivalent to a larger tractor with a 4-cylinder motor 
and a muffler that could be used to control noise. Mr. Maloney said there would be no 
retail operation at this site; the facility would not be open to the public. He addressed the 
height of the topsoil sorter and his flexibility in hours of operation. 
 
Discussion continued on: 
 Screening for adjacent properties. 
 Sight angles of equipment from adjacent properties. 
 Manufacturer of topsoil sorting equipment; decibel level, motor, muffler. 
 Cost factor as relates to paving entire site. 
 Decibel level allowed in IB district; not to exceed 70 decibels at property line. 
 Storm water management; bioswales in lieu of retention to manage run-off. 
 Definition of ‘travel areas’. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Lisa Casali of Collision Protection Sciences, 1893 Birchwood Drive, was present. Ms. 
Casali said Collision Protection Services moved to this location in January 2013 because 
of its perfect fit with the office space and garage area. She displayed pictures taken on this 
date of the existing view from her office window. Ms. Casali shared concerns with the 
noise level of the proposed use, stating it is not a fit for their business or neighboring 
businesses. She asked that consideration be given for additional screening should the use 
get approval. Ms. Casali referenced Section 6.08 as relates to topsoil sorting operation 
and questioned who would monitor the site for code violations. Ms. Casali said she has 
had no contact with the applicant. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 11, 2014 
  
 
 

5 
 

Board members asked the applicant to address: 
 Acceptable screening for surrounding neighbors. 
 Designate paving area on the site plan. 
 Noise levels. 
 Retention/run-off measurements. 
 Public comment; approach and reach common ground with neighboring businesses. 
 
Mr. Maloney briefly addressed the previous use of property. He offered to demonstrate to 
the Board members the operation of the topsoil sorter/conveyor equipment. 
 
Mr. Carlisle stated any conditions the Planning Commission might place on the Special 
Use Approval must relate to the special use and operation of the site; i.e., fence, 
screening, protection of surrounding properties, hours of operation. 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-03-015 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Gottlieb 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for 
the proposed Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Inc., to the April 8, 2014 Regular 
meeting, or until such time as the petitioner comes back with a revised site plan.  
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
7. CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 011) – Proposed Amber 

Town Center Townhomes and Lofts, West side of Livernois, North of Town Center 
(3409 Livernois), Section 21, From O (Office) District to BB (Big Beaver) District 
 
Mr. Savidant provided a history on the previous traditional rezoning request denied by 
City Council on January 27, 2014 and a previously submitted site plan that related to the 
traditional rezoning request. He addressed changes in the proposed Conditional 
Rezoning application which is scheduled for a Public Hearing on March 25, 2014. Mr. 
Savidant summarized the proposed development is lower in profile. He displayed color 
renderings provided by the applicant. 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed the differences between a traditional rezoning request and a 
conditional rezoning request. 
 
Present were the petitioner, Jerome Amber, and the project architect, Justin Wieber of 
SHW Group. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 11, 2014 
  
 
 

6 
 

Mr. Amber addressed the Master Plan, noting the project is market driven and he has 
tenants who want to move to Troy. 
 
Mr. Wieber addressed the changes in the proposed preliminary site plan. 
 Elimination of one floor. 
 Improved sight lines. 
 Reduced number of balconies. 
 Increased brick on rear elevation. 
 Reduced parking. 
 Increased greenbelt and landscape. 
 Additional glazing on front elevation. 
 
Mr. Wieber gave an explanation on the sight line drawings that were displayed. 
 
Chair Edmunds opened the floor for public comment. There was no one present; the floor 
was closed for public comment. 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

9. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Planning Commission comments related to: 
 Special Use Application before Board this evening. 
 Walsh College application; received variances from ZBA, scheduled for March 25, 

2014 meeting. 
 Proposed Bylaw amendments; item for March 25, 2014 agenda. 
 Transit Center project update. 

 
The Regular meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:38 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Donald Edmunds, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2014 PC Minutes\Draft\2014 03 11 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 11, 2014 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Edmunds called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:01 p.m. on March 11, 2014 in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Steve Gottlieb 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
Philip Sanzica 
Gordon Schepke 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Frank Boudon, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-03-012 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as printed. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2014-03-013 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Schepke 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the February 11, 2014 Regular meeting as 
prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01f



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 11, 2014 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Poppleton Ridge, 

11 units/lots, South side of Big Beaver, E of Adams between Brooklawn and 
Wrenwood (3737 W Big Beaver), Section 30, Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family 
Residential) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the Preliminary Site Condominium Plan application for Poppleton 
Ridge. He reported the applicant provided floor plans and elevations in compliance with 
the submittal requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. Mr. Carlisle addressed: 
 

 Existing landscaped berm along the southerly boundary. 
 Lot 4 as relates to minimum width requirement. 
 Maintenance of greenbelt and Big Beaver right of way. 
 Road width of Poppleton Court. 
 Storm water alternatives; i.e., location of detention basin to provide amenity for 

residential community. 
 Required vision clearance triangle for decorative wall and landscaped corner at Big 

Beaver and Brooklawn. 
 
Mr. Carlisle indicated support for the proposed Preliminary Site Plan and recommended 
approval of the application with the conditions as outlined in his report, dated February 24, 
2014, with the exception of the applicant providing building plans and elevations. 
 
Joe Cracchiolo was present and said he would abide by the conditions outlined in the 
Planning Consultant report. 
 
There was discussion on: 
 Tree preservation. 
 Alternative storm water features; specifically grass/paver material. 
 
Chair Edmunds opened the floor for public comment. There was no one present; the floor 
was closed for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-03-014 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Condominium Approval, pursuant to Article 8 and 
Section 10.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for Poppleton Ridge Site 
Condominium, 11 units/lots, South side of Big Beaver, East of Adams between 
Brooklawn and Wrenwood, Section 30, currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) 
District, be granted, subject to the following: 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 11, 2014 
  
 
 

3 
 

1. Increase road width of Poppleton Court to 28-feet. 
2. Reconfigure Lot 4 to meet the 76.5 foot minimum width requirement. 
3. Indicate percent lot coverage by building. 
4. Consider more naturalized storm water best management practices. 
5. Indicate maintenance of greenbelt and Big Beaver right of way. 
6. Ensure that the 25-foot vision clearance triangle is met. 
7. Construct the retention pond access drive with grass/paver material. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
There was discussion whether approval of the Preliminary Site Plan should be subject 
to the minimum square footage requirements for residential units. 
 
Mr. Savidant said the applicant is not able to provide the square footage information at 
this time because he is building custom homes. Mr. Savidant said he is confident the 
applicant will meet the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and it is not necessary to 
place that condition on its approval. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File 

Number SU 412) – Proposed Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Inc., North side 
of Birchwood, East of Bellingham (1871 Birchwood), Section 26, Currently Zoned IB 
(Integrated Industrial and Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the Special Use and Preliminary Site Plan application for Advanced 
Landscape & Builders Supply. He said the soil conveyor, sorter and stockpile are not 
standard operations for a landscaper contractor’s yard. Mr. Carlisle said he not able to 
make a recommendation until the applicant provides additional information as outlined in 
his report, dated February 26, 2014. 
 
There was discussion on: 
 Decibel level of noise. 
 Impact on surrounding neighbors. 
 Height of equipment. 
 Retail entity of operation. 
 Soil and mud transported on surface roads. 
 Proposed portions of pavement. 
 Storm water management. 
 
Present were the applicant/property owner, Russ Maloney, and Nathan Robinson of 
Horizon Engineering. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 11, 2014 
  
 
 

4 
 

Mr. Robinson provided an explanation of the proposed use on site, stating it would be a 
low intensity, low trafficked operation. He addressed: 
 

 Average hours of operation and topsoil sorting. 
 Truck traffic to/from site. 
 Overnight parking; two trucks. 
 Height dimensions of topsoil sorter/conveyer. 
 Existing 6 foot wood fence. 
 Paving of site; proposed to pave northwest quadrant. 
 Vehicular driving, parking and maneuvering on paved surface. 
 Dust control; spray with water, chloride. 
 Soil erosion control; no immediate measures, possibly some type of barrier. 
 Storm water requirements dependent on amount of pavement. The applicant will 

comply with all engineering requirements. 
 
Mr. Robinson distributed manufacturing flyers on the landscaping and topsoil sorter 
equipment. 
 
Mr. Maloney said the topsoil sorter is equivalent to a larger tractor with a 4-cylinder motor 
and a muffler that could be used to control noise. Mr. Maloney said there would be no 
retail operation at this site; the facility would not be open to the public. He addressed the 
height of the topsoil sorter and his flexibility in hours of operation. 
 
Discussion continued on: 
 Screening for adjacent properties. 
 Sight angles of equipment from adjacent properties. 
 Manufacturer of topsoil sorting equipment; decibel level, motor, muffler. 
 Cost factor as relates to paving entire site. 
 Decibel level allowed in IB district; not to exceed 70 decibels at property line. 
 Storm water management; bioswales in lieu of retention to manage run-off. 
 Definition of ‘travel areas’. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Lisa Casali of Collision Protection Sciences, 1893 Birchwood Drive, was present. Ms. 
Casali said Collision Protection Services moved to this location in January 2013 because 
of its perfect fit with the office space and garage area. She displayed pictures taken on this 
date of the existing view from her office window. Ms. Casali shared concerns with the 
noise level of the proposed use, stating it is not a fit for their business or neighboring 
businesses. She asked that consideration be given for additional screening should the use 
get approval. Ms. Casali referenced Section 6.08 as relates to topsoil sorting operation 
and questioned who would monitor the site for code violations. Ms. Casali said she has 
had no contact with the applicant. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 11, 2014 
  
 
 

5 
 

Board members asked the applicant to address: 
 Acceptable screening for surrounding neighbors. 
 Designate paving area on the site plan. 
 Noise levels. 
 Retention/run-off measurements. 
 Public comment; approach and reach common ground with neighboring businesses. 
 
Mr. Maloney briefly addressed the previous use of property. He offered to demonstrate to 
the Board members the operation of the topsoil sorter/conveyor equipment. 
 
Mr. Carlisle stated any conditions the Planning Commission might place on the Special 
Use Approval must relate to the special use and operation of the site; i.e., fence, 
screening, protection of surrounding properties, hours of operation. 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-03-015 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Gottlieb 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for 
the proposed Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Inc., to the April 8, 2014 Regular 
meeting, or until such time as the petitioner comes back with a revised site plan.  
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
7. CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 011) – Proposed Amber 

Town Center Townhomes and Lofts, West side of Livernois, North of Town Center 
(3409 Livernois), Section 21, From O (Office) District to BB (Big Beaver) District 
 
Mr. Savidant provided a history on the previous traditional rezoning request denied by 
City Council on January 27, 2014 and a previously submitted site plan that related to the 
traditional rezoning request. He addressed changes in the proposed Conditional 
Rezoning application which is scheduled for a Public Hearing on March 25, 2014. Mr. 
Savidant summarized the proposed development is lower in profile. He displayed color 
renderings provided by the applicant. 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed the differences between a traditional rezoning request and a 
conditional rezoning request. 
 
Present were the petitioner, Jerome Amber, and the project architect, Justin Wieber of 
SHW Group. 





Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes – Draft March 13, 2014 

 

-1- 

A Meeting of the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) was held Thursday, March 13, 2014 at Troy 
City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road in the Lower Level Conference Room. Chairman/President 
McGinnis called the meeting to order at 7:30 AM. 
 
A. ROLL CALL: 
    
   PRESENT:  Chairman/President Donald E. McGinnis, Jr.   

 Commissioner David Cannon      
 

ALSO PRESENT: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
  M. Aileen Bittner, City Clerk 

  Gary Mayer, Police Chief 
  Thomas Gordon, Police Lieutenant 

Jeanette Menig, Human Resources Director 
Brooke Insana, Human Resources Coordinator 
John Higgins, President of EMPCO, Inc. 

   
B. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  
 

1. Approval of Minutes of September 11, 2012 

 
Resolution #CSC-2014-03-001 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the Minutes of 
the Tuesday, September 11, 2012 meeting as presented. 
 
Yes: Cannon, McGinnis 
No: None 
Absent: Steele 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
C. PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS:  None 
 
D. REPORTS:  None 

 

E. OLD BUSINESS:  None 

 

F. NEW BUSINESS: 

 

1. Approval of Job Qualifications, Posting and Test Battery for Recruitment of Police 

Officer 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #CSC-2014-03-002 
Moved by Cannon 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01g



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes – Draft March 13, 2014 

 

-2- 

Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the job 
qualifications, the posting and the test battery for the recruitment of Police Officer as 
PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: McGinnis, Cannon 
No: None 
Absent: Steele 
 
2. Approval of Job Qualifications, Posting and Test Battery for Recruitment of Police 

Sergeant 
 
Human Resources Director Menig and Chief Mayer highlighted the revisions to the posting and 
qualifications. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #CSC-2014-03-003 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the job 
qualifications, the posting and the test battery for the recruitment of Police Sergeant as 
PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: Cannon, McGinnis 
No: None 
Absent: Steele 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT:  None 

 
 
G. ADJOURNMENT:   
 
The Civil Service Commission (Act 78) meeting ADJOURNED at 7:38 AM. 
 
 
 
 
   
Donald E. McGinnis, Jr., Chairman  M. Aileen Bittner, City Clerk  

 
 



Traffic Committee Minutes – March 19, 2014  DRAFT 

Page 1 of 8 
 

A regular meeting of the Troy Traffic Committee was held Wednesday, March 19, 2014 in 
the Lower Level Conference Room at Troy City Hall.  Ted Halsey called the meeting to 
order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
1. Roll Call 
 
PRESENT:  Sarah Binkowski 
    Tim Brandstetter 
    Ted Halsey 
    Stevan Popovic 
     
ABSENT:  Richard Kilmer 
    Al Petrulis 
    Pete Ziegenfelder 
          
Also present: Murray Deagle, 328 Evaline 
    Brad Manning, 660/670 Trombley 
    Jerry Griffith, 660/670 Trombley 
    Sgt. Mike Szuminski, Police Department 
    Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer 
     
2. Minutes – February 19, 2014 
 
RESOLUTION # 2014-03-06 
  
Moved by Binkowski  
Seconded by Brandstetter 
 
To approve the February 19, 2014 minutes as printed. 
 
YES:   4 (Binkowski, Brandstetter, Halsey, Popovic) 
NO:   None 
ABSENT:  3 (Kilmer, Petrulis, Ziegenfelder) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
3.  Request for Sidewalk Waiver – Sidwell #88-20-20-427-038 
 
Item #3 and #4 were discussed at the same time by the Committee.  The petitioner was 
not present at the meeting. 
 
Safet Stafa requests a sidewalk waiver for the sidewalk at Lot 52 of Muer’s Garden Farms, 
Sidwell #88-20-20-427-038.  Petitioner states that there is no existing sidewalk on 
Banmoor.  

stewartc
Text Box
O-01h



Traffic Committee Minutes – March 19, 2014  DRAFT 

Page 2 of 8 
 

This will be a corner lot, so the waiver would actually apply to Banmoor and McClure as it 
would be granted to the parcel.  
 
Traffic Engineering received two (2) emails regarding this request.  One (1) email from Ann 
Bruttell of 3425 McClure Drive requested that the waiver be denied.  The second email, 
from Jennifer and Mark Beres of 3322 McClure supported granting the waiver. 
 
General discussion relative to sidewalk waivers and lack of existing sidewalks in this area 
ensued.  There were no members of the public that commented on this item. 
 
RESOLUTION # 2014-03-07 
  
Moved by Binkowski 
Seconded by Brandstetter 
 

1. WHEREAS, City of Troy Ordinances, Chapter 34, allows the Traffic Committee to 
grant waivers of the City of Troy Design Standards for Sidewalks upon a 
demonstration of necessity; and 

 
WHEREAS, Safet Stafa has requested a waiver of the requirement to construct 
sidewalk due to the fact that there is no existing sidewalk on Banmoor or McClure; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Traffic Committee has determined the following: 

 
a. A waiver will not impair the public health, safety or general welfare of 

the inhabitants of the City and will not unreasonably diminish or 
impair established property values within the surrounding area, and 

 
b. A strict application of the requirements to construct a sidewalk would 

result in practical difficulties to, or undue hardship upon, the owners, 
and 

 
c. The construction of a new sidewalk would lead nowhere and connect 

to no other walk, and thus will not serve the purpose of a pedestrian 
travel-way. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Traffic Committee grants a 
waiver of the sidewalk requirement for Lot 52 of Muer’s Garden Farms, Sidwell 
#88-20-20-427-038. 

 
YES:   4 (Binkowski, Brandstetter, Halsey, Popovic) 
NO:   None 
ABSENT:  3 (Kilmer, Petrulis, Ziegenfelder) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



Traffic Committee Minutes – March 19, 2014  DRAFT 

Page 3 of 8 
 

4.  Request for Sidewalk Waiver – Sidwell #88-20-20-427-039 
 
Item #3 and #4 were discussed at the same time by the Committee.  The petitioner was 
not present at the meeting. 
 
Safet Stafa requests a sidewalk waiver for the sidewalk at Lot 52 of Muer’s Garden Farms, 
Sidwell #88-20-20-427-039.  Petitioner states that there is no existing sidewalk on 
Banmoor.  
 
Traffic Engineering received two (2) emails regarding this request.  One (1) email from Ann 
Bruttell of 3425 McClure Drive requested that the waiver be denied.  The second email, 
from Jennifer and Mark Beres of 3322 McClure supported granting the waiver. 
 
General discussion relative to sidewalk waivers and lack of existing sidewalks in this area 
ensued.  There were no members of the public that commented on this item. 
 
RESOLUTION # 2014-03-08 
 
Moved by Brandstetter 
Seconded by Binkowski 
 

1. WHEREAS, City of Troy Ordinances, Chapter 34, allows the Traffic Committee to 
grant waivers of the City of Troy Design Standards for Sidewalks upon a 
demonstration of necessity; and 

 
WHEREAS, Safet Stafa has requested a waiver of the requirement to construct 
sidewalk due to the fact that there is no existing sidewalk on Banmoor; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Traffic Committee has determined the following: 

 
a. A waiver will not impair the public health, safety or general welfare of 

the inhabitants of the City and will not unreasonably diminish or 
impair established property values within the surrounding area, and 

 
b. A strict application of the requirements to construct a sidewalk would 

result in practical difficulties to, or undue hardship upon, the owners, 
and 

 
c. The construction of a new sidewalk would lead nowhere and connect 

to no other walk, and thus will not serve the purpose of a pedestrian 
travel-way. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Traffic Committee grants a 
waiver of the sidewalk requirement for Lot 52 of Muer’s Garden Farms, Sidwell 
#88-20-20-427-039. 

 



Traffic Committee Minutes – March 19, 2014  DRAFT 

Page 4 of 8 
 

YES:   4 (Binkowski, Brandstetter, Halsey, Popovic) 
NO:   None 
ABSENT:  3 (Kilmer, Petrulis, Ziegenfelder) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
5.  Request for Sidewalk Waiver – 475 Leetonia 
 
Murray Deagle requests a s idewalk waiver for the sidewalk at Lot 92 o f McCormick & 
Lawrence Little Farms Subdivision, 475 Leetonia, Sidwell #88-20-15-377-042.  Petitioner 
states that there is no existing sidewalk on Leetonia to the west that would connect to 
Livernois.  Mr. Deagle also states that there are potential issues with drainage and road 
grades along Leetonia. 
 
Traffic Engineering received one (1) phone call from James Wong of 491 Leetonia 
regarding the sidewalk waiver request.  Mr. Wong supports installation of a sidewalk if it 
were to be extended to Livernois. 
 
Mr. Deagle was present at the meeting and noted that this lot is adjacent to existing 
sidewalk and would connect to a sidewalk network that provides a pathway to Leonard 
Elementary.  He supports the waiver based on his claims that drainage in the area will be 
adversely impacted by installation of sidewalk.   
 
Mr. Brandstetter did review the site and it appears that drainage issues should be able to 
be addressed during grading of the site. 
 
Ms. Binkowski also recommended that the sidewalk be installed and that drainage issues 
be addressed through engineering and site grading. 
 
RESOLUTION # 2014-03-09 
 
Moved by Brandstetter 
Seconded by Popovic 
 

1. WHEREAS, the Traffic Committee has determined, after a public hearing, that 
Petitioner failed to establish the standards justifying the granting of a waiver,  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Traffic Committee denies a 
waiver of the sidewalk requirement for Lot 92 of McCormick & Lawrence Little 
Farms Subdivision, 475 Leetonia, Sidwell #88-20-15-377-042. 

 
YES:   4 (Binkowski, Brandstetter, Halsey, Popovic) 
NO:   None 
ABSENT:  3 (Kilmer, Petrulis, Ziegenfelder) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



Traffic Committee Minutes – March 19, 2014  DRAFT 

Page 5 of 8 
 

6.  Request for Sidewalk Waiver – Sidwell #88-20-22-401-095 (Parcel A) 
 
Item #6 and #7 were discussed at the same time by the Committee.   
 
Eric Konieczny requests a sidewalk waiver for the sidewalk at Lot 40 (Parcel A) of 
Supervisors Plat #6, Sidwell #88-20-22-401-095.  Petitioner states that there is no existing 
sidewalk on Trombley.   
 
Mr. Brad Manning of 660/670 Trombley was present at the meeting and supported a 
waiver based on no e xisting sidewalk on the entire street or in the area.  The sidewalk 
would connect to nothing and lead to nowhere. 
 
Mr. Halsey, who lives on Vanderpool, one block south of Trombley, confirmed that there 
are no sidewalks in this neighborhood. 
 
Traffic Engineering received one (1) email regarding this sidewalk waiver.  M r. Frank 
Colosimo supports installation of the sidewalk and requests that the waiver be denied. 
 
RESOLUTION # 2014-03-10 
 
Moved by Popovic 
Seconded by Brandstetter 
 

1. WHEREAS, City of Troy Ordinances, Chapter 34, allows the Traffic Committee to 
grant waivers of the City of Troy Design Standards for Sidewalks upon a 
demonstration of necessity; and 

 
WHEREAS, Eric Konieczny has requested a waiver of the requirement to 
construct sidewalk due to the fact that there is no existing sidewalk on Trombley; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Traffic Committee has determined the following: 

 
a. A waiver will not impair the public health, safety or general welfare of 

the inhabitants of the City and will not unreasonably diminish or 
impair established property values within the surrounding area, and 

 
b. A strict application of the requirements to construct a sidewalk would 

result in practical difficulties to, or undue hardship upon, the owners, 
and 

 
c. The construction of a new sidewalk would lead nowhere and connect 

to no other walk, and thus will not serve the purpose of a pedestrian 
travel-way. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Traffic Committee grants a 



Traffic Committee Minutes – March 19, 2014  DRAFT 

Page 6 of 8 
 

waiver of the sidewalk requirement for Lot 40 (Parcel A) of Supervisors Plat #6, 
Sidwell #88-20-22-401-095. 

 
YES:   4 (Binkowski, Brandstetter, Halsey, Popovic) 
NO:   None 
ABSENT:  3 (Kilmer, Petrulis, Ziegenfelder) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
7.  Request for Sidewalk Waiver – Sidwell #88-20-22-401-096 (Parcel B) 
 
Item #6 and #7 were discussed at the same time by the Committee.   
 
Eric Konieczny requests a sidewalk waiver for the sidewalk at Lot 40 (Parcel B) of 
Supervisors Plat #6, Sidwell #88-20-22-401-096.  Petitioner states that there is no existing 
sidewalk on Trombley.   
 
Mr. Brad Manning of 660/670 Trombley was present at the meeting and supported a 
waiver based on no e xisting sidewalk on the entire street or in the area.  The sidewalk 
would connect to nothing and lead to nowhere. 
 
Mr. Halsey, who lives on Vanderpool, one block south of Trombley, confirmed that there 
are no sidewalks in this neighborhood. 
 
Traffic Engineering received one (1) email regarding this sidewalk waiver.  M r. Frank 
Colosimo supports installation of the sidewalk and requests that the waiver be denied. 
 
RESOLUTION # 2014-03-11 
 
Moved by Popovic 
Seconded by Brandstetter 
 

1. WHEREAS, City of Troy Ordinances, Chapter 34, allows the Traffic Committee to 
grant waivers of the City of Troy Design Standards for Sidewalks upon a 
demonstration of necessity; and 

 
WHEREAS, Eric Konieczny has requested a waiver of the requirement to 
construct sidewalk due to the fact that there is no existing sidewalk on Trombley; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Traffic Committee has determined the following: 

 
a. A waiver will not impair the public health, safety or general welfare of 

the inhabitants of the City and will not unreasonably diminish or 
impair established property values within the surrounding area, and 

 



Traffic Committee Minutes – March 19, 2014  DRAFT 

Page 7 of 8 
 

b. A strict application of the requirements to construct a sidewalk would 
result in practical difficulties to, or undue hardship upon, the owners, 
and 

 
c. The construction of a new sidewalk would lead nowhere and connect 

to no other walk, and thus will not serve the purpose of a pedestrian 
travel-way. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Traffic Committee grants a 
waiver of the sidewalk requirement for Lot 40 (Parcel B) of Supervisors Plat #6, 
Sidwell #88-20-22-401-096. 

 
YES:   4 (Binkowski, Brandstetter, Halsey, Popovic) 
NO:   None 
ABSENT:  3 (Kilmer, Petrulis, Ziegenfelder) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
8. Election of Chairperson 
 
By-laws of the City of Troy Traffic Committee address the appointment of Chairperson.  
The Chairperson shall be one of the citizen members of the Committee and shall have the 
privilege of discussing all matters before the Committee and voting thereon. 
 
Mr. Brandstetter nominated Mr. Ziegenfelder to remain as Chairperson.  This was 
supported by Mr. Halsey. 
 
RESOLUTION # 2014-03-12 
 
Moved by Brandstetter 
Seconded by Halsey 
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Committee hereby ELECTS Pete Ziegenfelder to serve as 
Chairperson for the Traffic Committee for a term scheduled to expire in one (1) year or 
until his or her successor shall take office. 
 
YES:   4 (Binkowski, Brandstetter, Halsey, Popovic) 
NO:   None 
ABSENT:  3 (Kilmer, Petrulis, Ziegenfelder) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 



Traffic Committee Minutes – March 19, 2014  DRAFT 

Page 8 of 8 
 

9. Election of Vice-Chairperson 
 
By-laws of the City of Troy Traffic Committee address the appointment of Vice-
Chairperson.  The Vice-Chairperson shall act for the Chairperson in his or her absence.  
The Vice-Chairperson shall be a citizen member of the Committee, with the rights and 
privileges of the Chairperson. 
 
Mr. Halsey nominated Ms. Binkowski as Vice-Chairperson.  This was supported by Mr. 
Brandstetter. 
 
RESOLUTION # 2014-03-13 
 
Moved by Halsey 
Seconded by Brandstetter 
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Committee hereby ELECTS Sarah Binkowski to serve as Vice-
Chairperson for the Traffic Committee for a term scheduled to expire in one (1) year or 
until his or her successor shall take office. 
 
YES:   4 (Binkowski, Brandstetter, Halsey, Popovic) 
NO:   None 
ABSENT:  3 (Kilmer, Petrulis, Ziegenfelder) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
10. Public Comment 
 
Ms. Kira Binkowski of 139 Scottsdale Drive requested that the intersection of Livernois and 
Square Lake be reviewed.  School buses traveling northbound on Livernois and turning 
eastbound to Square Lake are in conflict with southbound Livernois left turning traffic that 
stop past the stop bar at the intersection.  Ms. Binkowski requests that the stop bar be 
moved back to provide for more room for the school bus to navigate the turn.   
 
11. Other Business 
 
The April Traffic Committee meeting will be moved to Wednesday, April 16, 2014 at 7:30 
PM.  It had been scheduled for April 23, but a conflict with budget sessions necessitated a 
move in the scheduled Traffic Committee meeting date. 
 
12. Adjourn 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:09 p.m.  
 
                                          ___           
Pete Ziegenfelder, Chairperson    Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer 
 
G:\Traffic\aaa Traffic Committee\2014\3_March 19\Minutes_20140319_DRAFT.docx 



 
Fire Department 
 

Memorandum 

 
 
Date:             April 1, 2014 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager     
  
From:  William S. Nelson, Fire Chief   
 
Subject: Fire Department and Alliance Mobile Health 2013 Annual Reports 
 
 
I am pleased to submit the fire department and Alliance Mobile Health activity reports 
for 2013.  The fire department report provides details on response and support activity 
for 2013, and provides comparison data from the previous year.  
 
 The following are notable changes in fire activity in 2013: 

 Fire incidents deceased by over 19% with the largest decreases in grass fires 
73% and refuse fires 44% 

 Single family dwelling fires increased by 32% 
 Overall responses decreased by 3.68%. 
 There was one civilian fire death in 2013 which occurred as a result of car truck 

crash on I-75.  
 Civilian fire injuries increased from 4 in 2012 to 8 in 2013. 
 Fire fighter injuries increased from 1 in 2012 to 4 in 2013. 
 There were 8 structure fires with significant loss in 2013 as compared to 3 

structure fires with significant loss in 2012.  
 Property fire loss estimates increased from approximately $1.26 million in 2012 

to $2.39 million in 2013   
 Contents fire loss estimates increased from $350,549 in 2012 to $2,063,685 in 

2013 
 Overall non-incident related fire department activities increased by 4.91%  
 Volunteer firefighter staffing fell by 3.64% primarily due to retirements.    

 
If you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
O-02a



TROY FIRE DEPARTMENT

ANNUAL REPORT

2013

1

Category Count Percent of Total Incidents Previous Year Change

Total Fire Incidents 146 13.96% 182 -19.78%
Total Non Fire Incidents 900 86.04% 904 -0.44%
Total Incidents 1046 100.00% 1086 -3.68%

Fire Incidents Count Percent of Total Fires Previous Year Change

Structure Fires 66 45.21% 66 0.00%
Vehicle Fires 42 28.77% 37 13.51%
Grass Fires 13 8.90% 49 -73.47%
Refuse Fires 14 9.59% 25 -44.00%
Outside Fires 1 0.68% 0 100.00%
Other Fires 10 6.85% 5 100.00%
Total Fire Incidents 146 100.00% 182 -19.78%

Non Fire Incidents Count Percent of Total Non Fires Previous Year Change

Overpressure/Explosion 6 0.67% 3 100.00%
Rescue / Extrication 46 5.11% 41 12.20%
Hazardous Conditions * 210 23.33% 151 39.07%
Public Service 43 4.78% 52 -17.31%
Good Intent ** 170 18.89% 180 -5.56%
Alarm System Malfunction 170 18.89% 162 4.94%
Alarm Activation Unintentional 253 28.11% 298 -15.10%
Weather Standby 2 0.22% 2 0.00%
Other Non Fire 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Total Non Fire Incidents 900 100.00% 889 1.24%

* Includes spills or leaks with no fire; excess heat; arcing wires; and chemical emergencies
** Includes smoke scares; wrong locations; steam mistaken for smoke; and controlled burning

All data throughout this report obtained from Oakland County Fire Records Management System



TROY FIRE DEPARTMENT

ANNUAL REPORT

2013

2

Structure Fires by Occupancy Count Percent of Structure Fires Previous Year Change

Apartments 9 13.64% 13 -30.77%
Educational 0 0.00% 3 -300.00%
Industrial 7 10.61% 4 75.00%
Institutional 0 0.00% 2 -200.00%
Motel/Hotel 2 3.03% 1 100.00%
Office 2 3.03% 2 0.00%
Other 0 0.00% 5 -100.00%
Public Assembly 6 9.09% 4 50.00%
Single Family Dwelling 33 50.00% 25 32.00%
Storage 3 4.55% 6 -50.00%
Stores/Sales 4 6.06% 1 300.00%
Total Occupancies 66 100.00% 66

Structure Fires by Cause Count Percent of Structure Fires Previous Year Change

Act of Nature 0 0.00% 1 -100.00%
Cooking 15 22.73% 19 -21.05%
Equipment Failure 7 10.61% 12 -41.67%
Intentional 2 3.03% 1 100.00%
Other 2 3.03% 3 -33.33%
Under Investigation * 3 4.55% 2 50.00%
Undetermined 8 12.12% 10 -20.00%
Unintentional 29 43.94% 18 61.11%
Total Causes 66 100.00% 66

* As of 02/14



TROY FIRE DEPARTMENT

ANNUAL REPORT

2013

3

Total Casualties Number Percent Previous Year Change

Civilian Injury 8 61.54% 3 166.67%
Civilian Death * 1 7.69% 0 100.00%
Firefighter Injury 4 30.77% 1 300.00%
Firefighter Death 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Total Casualties 13 100.00% 4 33.00%

Total Estimated Fire Loss Amount ** Percent Previous Year *** Change

Property Value $93,359,818.00 100.00% $210,698,184.00 -55.69%
Content Value $31,469,833.00 33.71% $176,707,518.00 -82.19%
Property Loss $2,391,861.00 2.56% $1,259,036.00 89.98%
Contents Loss $2,063,685.00 2.21% $350,549.00 488.70%
Total Loss $4,455,546.00 4.77% $1,609,585.00 176.81%

Total Saved $88,904,272.00 95.23% $209,088,599.00 -57.48%

* Traffic Collision Fatality with Fire
** Values may change upon completion of pending investigations
*** Values adjusted from previous report



TROY FIRE DEPARTMENT
ANNUAL REPORT

2013

4

Response Time Analysis
Cumulative Cumulative

Fire Dept Emergency Response * Count Response Percent Percent

0 - 1 Minute 6 6 1.02% 1.02%
1 - 2 Minutes 3 9 0.51% 1.53%
2 - 3 Minutes 19 28 3.23% 4.76%
3 - 4 Minutes 32 60 5.44% 10.20%
4 - 5 Minutes 67 127 11.39% 21.60%
5 - 6 Minutes 82 209 13.95% 35.54%
6 - 7 Minutes 93 302 15.82% 51.36%
7 - 8 Minutes 80 382 13.61% 64.97%
8 - 9 Minutes 54 436 9.18% 74.15%
9 - 10 Minutes 54 490 9.18% 83.33%
10 + Minutes 98 588 16.67% 100.00%

Total Emergency Responses 588 56.21% of total responses

Total Nonemergency Responses 458 43.79% of total responses

Total Responses 1046

* Dispatch to arrival as recorded by the dispatch center. Priority response as recorded by the fire stations.

Cumulative Cumulative
Dispatch Emergency Processing ** Count Response Percent Percent

0 - 1 Minute 580 580 98.64% 98.64%
1 - 2 Minutes 4 584 0.68% 99.32%
2 - 3 Minutes 2 586 0.34% 99.66%
3 - 4 Minutes 0 586 0.00% 99.66%
4 - 5 Minutes 0 586 0.00% 99.66%
5 - 6 Minutes 0 586 0.00% 99.66%
6 - 7 Minutes 0 586 0.00% 99.66%
7 - 8 Minutes 0 586 0.00% 99.66%
8 - 9 Minutes 0 586 0.00% 99.66%
9 - 10 Minutes 1 587 0.17% 99.83%
10 + Minutes 1 588 0.17% 100.00%

Total Emergency Incidents 588

** Receipt of call to dispatch as recorded by the dispatch center.



TROY FIRE DEPARTMENT

ANNUAL REPORT

2013

5

Activities Performed Count Percent Previous Year Change

Fire Station Service Requests 983 56.89% 875 12.34%
Fire Investigations 53 3.07% 45 17.78%
In-Service Training Provided 517 29.92% 554 -6.68%
Specialty Team Training Provided 64 3.70% 60 6.67%
Fire Academy Training Provided 111 6.42% 112 -0.89%
Subtotal 1,728 100.00% 1,646 4.98%

Plans Reviewed 1,069 5.92% 879 21.62%
Permits Issued 584 3.23% 532 9.77%
Inspections 3,198 17.71% 2,881 11.00%
Violations Issued 1,515 8.39% 1,831 -17.26%
Violations Cleared 778 4.31% 1,051 -25.98%
Hydrant Flow Tests Conducted 30 0.17% 30 0.00%
Public Education Programs 113 0.63% 125 -9.60%
Public Education Participants 7,369 40.80% 8,336 -11.60%
HAPIS Computer Entries 1,967 10.89% 1,031 90.79%
Alarms Registered * 735 4.07% 520 41.35%
Knox Box Updates 702 3.89% N/A N/A
Subtotal 18,060 100.00% 17,216 4.90%

Total Activities 19,788 18,862 4.91%

* Paid registrations as of 02/14

Activity Time Hours Percent Previous Year Change

Administrative ** 1,893.50 6.10% 2,048.00 -7.54%
Fire Prevention ** 6,451.36 20.78% 6,248.75 3.24%
Supportive ** 5,408.90 17.43% 5,185.05 4.32%
Training *** 17,287.00 55.69% 17,858.00 -3.20%
Total Hours 31,040.76 100.00% 31,339.80 -0.95%

** Career staff-hours only. Does not include leave time.
*** Includes staff hours + volunteer hours



TROY FIRE DEPARTMENT

ANNUAL REPORT

2013

6

Staffing

Volunteer Station 1 Station 2 Station 3 Station 4 Station 5 Station 6 Total Trend Cumulative

2009 29 27 28 24 31 25 164 NA 0.00%
2010 29 27 29 32 30 26 173 5.49% 5.49%
2011 29 27 28 31 29 24 168 -2.89% 2.44%
2012 27 27 26 29 31 25 165 -1.79% 0.61%
2013 25 27 24 27 29 27 159 -3.64% -3.05%

5 Yr. Avg. 27.8 27.0 27.0 28.6 30.0 25.4 165.8 -0.56% 1.10%
2 Yr. Avg. 26.0 27.0 25.0 28.0 30.0 26.0 162.0 -2.71% -1.22%

Career Chief Assistant Chief Staff Lieutenant Staff Technician Secretary Total Trend Cumulative 

2009 1 2 6 2 1 12 NA 0.00%
2010 1 2 6 2 1 12 0.00% 0.00%
2011 1 2 6 2 1 12 0.00% 0.00%
2012 1 1 5 3 1 11 -8.33% -8.33%
2013 1 1 5 3 1 11 0.00% -8.33%

5 Yr. Avg. 1.0 1.6 5.6 2.4 1.0 11.6 -1.67% -3.33%
2 Yr. Avg. 1.0 1.0 5.0 3.0 1.0 11.0 -4.17% -8.33%



TROY FIRE DEPARTMENT

ANNUAL REPORT

2013

7

Station Incident Category Incident Count Percent of Category Percent of Total Count Previous Year Count Change
1 Fire 41 28.08% 3.92% 41 0.00%

Rescue/Extrication 2 4.35% 0.19% 9 -77.78%
False Alarm 66 15.60% 6.31% 87 -24.14%
All Other 78 18.10% 7.46% 77 1.30%
Sub Total 187 17.88% 17.88% 214 -12.62%

2 Fire 14 9.59% 1.34% 11 27.27%
Rescue/Extrication 6 13.04% 0.57% 5 20.00%
False Alarm 35 8.27% 3.35% 33 6.06%
All Other 51 11.83% 4.88% 42 21.43%
Sub Total 106 10.13% 10.13% 91 16.48%

3 Fire 25 17.12% 2.39% 47 -46.81%
Rescue/Extrication 12 26.09% 1.15% 12 0.00%
False Alarm 124 29.31% 11.85% 125 -0.80%
All Other 93 21.58% 8.89% 69 34.78%
Sub Total 254 24.28% 24.28% 253 0.40%

4 Fire 31 21.23% 2.96% 31 0.00%
Rescue/Extrication 12 27.27% 1.15% 5 140.00%
False Alarm 87 20.57% 8.32% 125 -30.40%
All Other 67 15.55% 6.41% 67 0.00%
Sub Total 197 18.83% 18.83% 228 -13.60%

5 Fire 14 9.59% 1.34% 30 -53.33%
Rescue/Extrication 6 13.04% 0.57% 4 50.00%
False Alarm 18 4.26% 1.72% 18 0.00%
All Other 50 11.60% 4.78% 36 38.89%
Sub Total 88 8.41% 8.41% 88 0.00%

6 Fire 12 8.22% 1.15% 13 -7.69%
Rescue/Extrication 6 13.04% 0.57% 5 20.00%
False Alarm 55 13.00% 5.26% 46 19.57%
All Other 49 11.37% 4.68% 39 25.64%
Sub Total 122 11.66% 11.66% 103 18.45%

8 * Fire 9 6.16% 0.86% 9 0.00%
Rescue/Extrication 2 4.35% 0.19% 1 100.00%
False Alarm 38 8.98% 3.63% 41 -7.32%
All Other 43 9.98% 4.11% 58 -25.86%
Sub Total 92 8.80% 8.80% 109 -15.60%

Total 1046 100.00% 100.00% 1086 -3.68%

* Administrative staff followup; investigations; duty officer response.



TROY FIRE DEPARTMENT

ANNUAL REPORT

2013

8

Supplemental

Valid Alarm Activations Count Percent of Total Incidents Previous Year Change

Cooking 28 2.57% 20 40.00%
Fire 2 0.18% 5 -60.00%
Smoke 2 0.18% 3 -33.33%
Overheat 8 0.73% 3 166.67%
Electrical 3 0.28% 0 300.00%
Total Valid Alarms 43 4.11% of Total Incidents 31 38.71%

9.23% of Total Alarm Activations

False Alarm Activations Count Percent of Total Incidents Previous Year Change

Unintentional 247 22.66% 298 -17.11%
Malfunction 170 15.60% 162 4.94%
Other 0 0.00% 1 -100.00%
Malicious 6 0.55% 14 -800.00%
Total False Alarms 423 40.44% of Total Incidents 475 -10.95%

Fires With Significant Loss * Date Resources Alarms Estimated Loss** Summary

2180 E Long Lake Rd. 1/14/2013 Sta. 5; Sta. 2; Sta.1; R4; AT3 2 $375,000.00 Single Family Dwelling
1972 Meijer Dr. 1/21/2013 Sta. 3; Sta. 4; Sta. 1 2 $525,000.00 Commercial Building Fire & Explosion
2200 Crooks Rd. 3/17/2013 Sta. 3; Sta. 4 1 $100,000.00 Multi-Family Residential/Apartment
1972 Meijer Dr. 4/4/2013 Sta. 3; Sta. 4 1 $100,000.00 Commercial Building
I-75 at Rochester Rd. 5/10/2013 Sta. 1; Sta. 4 1 $260,000.00 Semi Tractor Trailer Hauling Paper Products
64 Park St. 8/26/2013 Sta. 4; Sta. 1; Sta. 3 2 $325,000.00 Commercial Building
I-75 at Crooks Rd. 10/2/2013 Sta. 2 1 $250,000.00 Passenger Vehicle With Test Equipment
1749 Northwood Dr. 10/24/2013 Sta.3; Sta. 4 1 $514,000.00 Commercial Building

Mutual Aid Date Resources Alarms Type Summary

1575 E 13 Mile Rd, Madison Heights 1/8/2013 Air Tender 3 2 Provided Air Mult-Family Residential/Apartment
618 S. Chocolay Ave, Clawson 7/19/2013 Sta. 4 1 Wires Downed Power Lines From Storm
24201 Coolidge Hwy, Oak Park 10/11/2013 Sta. 3 3 Assist Church Building

* $100,000.00 or greater. **Replacement Cost of Real & Personal Property



 

 

2013 Annual Report 

       Prepared for   

   The City of Troy 



About Your Ambulance Provider – Alliance Mobile Health 

Alliance Mobile Health (AMH) began operations in March 2000 

in  Oakland County, Michigan.  AMH is organized as a 501C3 

non-profit corporation. 

AMH is (equally) owned by Mobile Medical Response in      

Saginaw, MI and Huron Valley Ambulance in Ann Arbor, 

MI.  Both agencies are also non-profit 501C3 ambulance provid-

ers. 

AMH is contracted to provide paramedic level ambulance re-

sponses for the City of Troy since October 2003.  We also pro-

vide paramedic ambulance service in the surrounding             

communities of  Clawson,  Beverly Hills, Oak Park and Berkeley 

AMH’s Executive Director is Stewart Slipiec. 

S. Slipiec has an undergraduate degree in 

Business and has worked in the medical field 

for 30+ years.  His experience ranges from 

working in administrative capacities at the   

Detroit Medical Center and St. Joseph Mercy Hospital in Clinton 

Township to 25 years in the ambulance transportation field.  He is 

a licensed EMT and has served as the CEO with Ruehle’s        

Ambulance and Medstar Ambulance in Mt. Clemens, MI and 

most  recently the Napa (California) Ambulance  Service.    



How the EMS system works in the City of Troy 

 

The Emergency Medical Service (EMS) system in the City of Troy is 

provided by a contracted ambulance service selected by the City of Troy 

through a request for proposal (RFP). The agreement requires both a first 

responder service as well as an ambulance response. AMH is the current 

holder of this contract. 

First Response Units (PFR) 

The first response units are staffed with one paramedic and       

respond to emergency 911 calls in a Ford Expedition vehicle. 

PFR’s are dispatched in conjunction with a paramedic ambulance 

and arrive on scene ahead of 

the responding ambulance. 

PFR’s are scheduled 24 

hours a day and 7 days per 

week.  

Monday through Friday there 

are three PFR units deployed 

during the day and two units 

deployed at night.                   

On weekends, there are two 

PFR units deployed day and night. PFR units are dedicated to the city at 

all times and must respond to all emergency medical calls in 5 minutes 

00 seconds with 90% reliability.  

The PFR component of the agreement is paid for by the City of Troy.  

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ambulances 

The ambulance service provided is required to be 

advanced life support. This means that the ambu-

lance is staffed with two paramedics capable of 

providing ECG monitoring, IV therapy, advanced 

airway interventions, and can administer          

medications.  

While these units are not dedicated to the City of 

Troy, a response time of  8 minutes 00 seconds is 

required for all emergency calls with 90 reliability. 

This service is not subsidized by the City of Troy. This service is paid 

for by patients that utilize the service. In most cases, the ambulance 

transport is paid for by the patient’s insurance company. 

In 2014 AMH will begin using “predictive” dispatch software to        

strategically position ambulances to optimize response time                

performance. The “Marvelous” software uses prior historical call data, 

by time of day, week, etc. to recommend where to position an              

ambulance.             

When a citizen calls 911 for a medical         

emergency, the call is answered by the  City of 

Troy’s communication center.  

Once the information about the call is obtained 

by Troy, the call is transferred to Alliance Mobile 

Health’s communication center to provide pre-arrival instruction to the 

caller.  



This assists the caller in rendering   

immediate aid to the patient before 

the first responder unit arrives. 

This pre-arrival care can range 

from controlling bleeding to     

starting cardiopulmonary             

resuscitation (CPR).  

At the same time instructions are    

given to the caller, both the first  

responder unit and an ambulance 

are dispatched to the address. The         

dispatcher stays on the line with 

the caller until the first responder unit arrives at the address. 

When Alliance Mobile Health’s communication center receives a     

transferred call from the City of Troy, the call taker asks a series 

of  questions to determine the appropriate response to the        

ambulance request. Using a nationally recognized algorithm, the 

call taker is able to determine whether the patient requires an 

emergency response with the use of emergency lights and sirens, 

known as a “priority 1” response, or an immediate                      

response without the use of lights and sirens, known as a  

“priority 3” response.  

This differentiation is important because it reduces unnecessary 

emergency responses to stable patients, which can be unsafe, 

while ensuring emergency responses to the patients that need it.  

The Troy Police and Fire Departments and Alliance Mobile 

Health have regular communication about EMS performance.  

Alliance Mobile Health provides monthly reports and an annual 

report on the ambulance and PFR response performance. 

  



            Call Volume and Response Time Analysis  2013    

 

 

 

 

 

 

In 2013, Alliance Mobile Health responded to a total of 3076   

ambulance requests in the City of Troy. This averages about 8.4 

calls per day.  



                            Ambulance     

First       
Response 

Unit      

  2010 2011 2012 2013 2010 2011 2012 2013  

                   

Total          
Emergency Calls 2852 2783 2559 3076 2439 2557 2419 2818  

                   

Standard % 90.57% 92.99% 93.10% 91.03% 90.20% 89.83% 90.03% 90.22%  

                   

50th Percentile   
Response Time 0:06:07 0:06:06 0:06:03 0:06:02 0:04:04 0:04:02 0:04:03 0:04:08  

                 

                   

A comparison in volume, on-time percentage, and average response times is shown below. 

 

                                       Four year comparison of EMS performance 

 

                    Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) 

Alliance has taken the initiative and leadership to contract with an 

agency – EMS Survey Team, to measure various aspects of the 

care we provide to our patients. See Attachment for a detailed    

report for your review. 

There are 49 ambulance agencies that participate nationally in this 

program.  Surveys are mailed to all patients we come into contact 

with.  The survey return rate is approximately 18%. 

 



The categories we measure are, 

1. The patients experience on the phone with the dispatch center. 

2. Timeliness of the ambulance, cleanliness and comfort of the      

     ride.                 

3. Treatment by the paramedics. 

4. Professionalism of the billing staff. 

5. Patients ease of entry into the destination medical facility. 

While Alliance scores in the top ranking of all 

participating ambulance services we strive to   

improve even further.  It is our belief that an    

important step to managing the quality of this   

organization is to -  

A. Participate in quality   surveys and be com-

pared to other similar organizations 

B. Benchmarks where you 

are currently and make changes to improve. 

In reviewing the quality report, by example, 

Alliance scored low in the category “Degree 

to which the medic relieved your pain or   

discomfort”.   

It’s an interesting observation that the simple 

answer is to administer more pain            

medications such as morphine and fentanyl.    

 



The more complicating consideration is that too much pain      

medication will “mask” the pain and its origin. Once the patient 

arrives at the hospital emergency department and is examined by 

the doctor, nurse and x-rays, CAT scans, etc. are taken, they may 

not be able to properly diagnose and/or treat the patient. 

  

It can be a local preference by hospital 

staff (that we work closely with) to limit 

pain medications in the ambulance.  We 

are still reviewing this topic with Medical 

Control and it is not a resolved issue at 

this writing.     

 

This information is regularly shared with 

our staff so they understand our goals and 

patient’s expectations.  

 

           

 

 

 

 

 



Alliance Mobile Health Licensure and Accreditation 

 

Alliance Mobile Health is a licensed 

Paramedic ambulance provider by 

the State of Michigan to operate in 

Oakland County.  

Alliance is also accredited through 

the Commission of  Accreditation for 

Ambulance Services (CAAS) since 

2003.  

This accreditation means that          

Alliance meets a higher standard than what the State of Michigan 

mandates. CAAS is an independent accrediting agency that        

reviews all aspects of an ambulance operation from patient care to 

hiring practices. Alliance Mobile Health was the first ambulance 

service in Oakland County to be accredited. 



Special Programs/Community Involvement 

 

• Tactical EMS team (TEMS) -  These AMH paramedics 

train and respond alongside the Troy tactical support team. 

TEMS responds to high risk situations with the Troy tactical 

support team to provide emergency medical attention to any 

officers during tactical operations. 

 

• Paramedic bike team -  AMH paramedics 

that provide advanced life support for special 

events to maneuver quickly in large crowds 

in order to assess and treat patients during 

large events. The bike team is comprised of 

two paramedics riding bikes which are 

equipped with the same capabilities as an 

ambulance. 

 

• CPR, blood borne pathogens, AED, and first aid training to 

Troy Police and Fire Depts. 

 

• Firefighter rehabilitation - This is conducted during signifi-

cant or long term fire incidents. Paramedics provide medical 

monitoring, including blood pressure, oxygen saturation lev-

els, and ECG, to all firefighters that are involved in active 

firefighting in accordance with NFPA standard 1584. 



 Translation Services–                

Alliance employs a  telephonic             

interpretation  service available to 

all paramedics to help assess and      

communicate with patients and    

family members who do not 

speak English and have no inter-

preter available. 

 

• Social worker program -  For citizens that have underlying prob-

lems that place them in need of emergency medical care, the pro-

gram puts the patient or family in touch with a social worker who 

can connect them with available resources to help the patient or 

family. An example of this would be a citizen who cannot afford 

to buy necessary medications. 

 

• Evidentiary blood draws -  Paramedics perform evidentiary 

blood draws under physician direction in the Troy lock up facility 

for individuals suspected of being under the influence of drugs or 

alcohol. This service saves the police department from escorting 

the patient to the hospital for this test. 

 

• Nursing home evacuation training -  Alliance Mobile Health and 

the Troy Fire Department conduct joint training on how to remove 

elderly patients out of nursing facilities during a fire. 



 Troy People Concerned Annual Back Pack event -Alliance hosts 

this annual event at their main station at 2045 Austin Dr.         

Alliance has several employees that      

participate in the event and the organiza-

tion donates to the event as well. Alliance 

also donates office space for Troy People     

Concerned at their main building. 

 Stewart Slipiec, Executive Director for 

Alliance, is an active Rotarian. Alliance is 

actively involved in both Rotary and     

Kiwanis which includes financial support 

as well as volunteer support in the community  

•   Alliance is a business sponsor for the Troy Community           

Coalition Prayer Breakfast 

 Alliance is a business sponsor for the Michigan Martin Luther 

King Day Event, hosted at Troy Athens High School. 

 Alliance is involved in the annual Troy Senior Expo held at the 

community center. 



        We are proud to serve you community 

Stewart Slipiec (General Manager)  x225 

sslipiec@alliancemobilehealth.org 

Vince Waryas (Director of Operations) x222 

vwaryas@alliancemobilehealth.org 

Josh Alger (Operations Coordinator) x235 

jalger@alliancemobilehealth.org 

 Faye Mueller (CQI/Education Coordinator) x233 

fmueller@alliancemobilehealth.org 

Ron Delorme ( Director of Human Resources) x224 

rdelorme@alliancemobilehealth.org 

Ryan Donnellon ( Public Relations) x229 

rdonnellon@alliancemobilehealth.org 

Laura Rogers  (Billing) x223 

lrogers@alliancemobilehealth,org 

 

Contact Information 

   (248) 457-0344 



 

                            Attachments  





stewartc
Text Box
O-02b





stewartc
Text Box
O-03a



stewartc
Text Box
O-03b


	APRIL 7, 2014 CITY COUNCIL AGENDA�
	COVER MEMO
	VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS
	TOP 12 STRATEGIES
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	INVOCATION:  Pastor Doug Schmidt with Woodside Bible Church
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Trail Life Scout Troop #007
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 On Behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program for the Months of November & December 2013, Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart will Present a Check in the Amount of $981 to Jeff Evans, Boys & Girls Club of Troy Executive ...
	C-2 Chief Gary Mayer will Present a Proclamation for Sexual Assault Awareness Month to Megan Widman, Social Action Program Director from HAVEN  (Introduced by: Gary Mayer, Chief of Police)

	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 No Public Hearings

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1 Disposal/Sale of Remnant Property (Introduced by:  Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development and Brenda Carter, City Manager’s Office Intern)

	I.  REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City Council Appointments – None
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Brownfield Redevelopment Authority; b) City Council Nominations – Charter Revision Committee, Historic District Commission, Personnel Board, and Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA)
	I-3 No Request for Closed Session
	I-4 Amendment to Chapter 26 – Parks Ordinance – General Regulations (Introduced by:  Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent of Parks, Streets and Drains)
	I-5 Transit Center Property (Introduced by:  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney)

	J.  CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – March 17, 2014
	b) City Council Special Study Meeting-Draft – April 1, 2014

	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:
	a) Sexual Assault Awareness Month – April, 2014
	b) Fair Housing Month – April, 2014

	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option - Mowing and Landscape Services
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option - General Consulting Engineering Services
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Home Chore Lawn and Yard Services
	d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option - Aggregates
	e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and Debris
	f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award - Upgraded Landscape Maintenance
	g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Award – Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles
	h) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Contract 14-1 – Section 36 Overlay

	J-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization from Jed C. Sprunger, President of the Troy Community Lions Club
	J-6 Adoption of the Oakland County Hazard Mitigation Plan
	J-7 Troy Racquet Club Rates
	J-8 Addendum #1 – Aquatic Center Backwash Discharge Modification
	J-9 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed and Four Permanent Easements for Belleclaire Estates Site Condominium – Sidwell #88-20-14-351-098, 099, 100, 101 and 102

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	a) April 14, 2014 - Conditional Rezoning Application (File CR-011) – Proposed Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts, West Side of Livernois, North of Town Center, 3409 Livernois, Section 21, from O (Office) to BB (Big Beaver) District

	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time):
	a) Amendments to Chapter 74 – Solicitations
	b) Detroit Water and Sewer Department – Discussion – Status and Business Issues


	L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	N. COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	N-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	O. REPORTS:
	O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)-Final – September 11, 2012
	b) Planning Commission-Final – February 11, 2014
	c) Traffic Committee-Final – February 19, 2014
	d) Building Code Board of Appeal-Draft – March 5, 2014
	e) Planning Commission-Draft – March 11, 2014
	f) Planning Commission-Final – March 11, 2014
	g) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)-Draft – March 13, 2014
	h) Traffic Commission-Draft – March 19, 2014

	O-2 Department Reports:
	a) Fire Department and Alliance Mobile Health 2013 Annual Reports
	b) Building Department Activity Report – March, 2014

	O-3 Letters of Appreciation:
	a) From Eric Messinger Regarding Assistance from Officer Greg Pokley and Sergeant Justin Novak
	b) From Art Leftridge Regarding Police Academy and Ride Along with Tim Alter and Josh Muhlenbeck

	O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted

	P. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES):
	Q. STUDY ITEMS:
	Q-1 Fund Balance

	R. CLOSED SESSION:
	R-1 No Closed Session

	S. ADJOURNMENT:
	Attachments.pdf
	20140407 Agenda - C-02  Sexual Assault Month Proclamation.pdf
	20140407 Agenda - H-01  Disposal-Sale of Remnant Property
	20140407 Agenda - I-04  Troy City Code Chapter 26 - Parks - General Regulations Amendment
	20140407 Agenda - I-05  Transit Center Property
	20140407 Agenda - J-02a  City Council Minutes-Draft - March 17, 2014
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 On Behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program for the Months of September and October, 2013, Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart will Present a Check in the Amount of $845 to Maureen Keenan Meldrum, Chair of the Susan G....
	C-2 Proclamation to Keith Stark to Celebrate the 40th Anniversary of Stark Reagan, P.C., as a Business in the City of Troy (Introduced by: Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director)
	C-3 Presentation of the State Champion DPW Water Tapping Team (Introduced by: Tim Richnak, Department of Public Works Director)

	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 Liquor Violation Hearings – Yara, Inc., d/b/a Lebanese Grill
	E-2 Liquor Violation Hearings – Pizza Papalis/Rio Wraps, d/b/a Pizzapapalis of Troy, LLC
	E-3 Public Hearing to Receive Public Input on the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority Utilizing Tax-Exempt Bonds for William Beaumont Hospital – Troy (Introduced by:  Lisa Haga, Miller Canfield and Nick Vitale, CFO, Beaumont Hospital)

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1 No Postponed Items

	I.  REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City Council Appointments – None
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City Council Nominations – Historic District Commission
	I-3 No Request for Closed Session
	I-4 Pure Troy – Mowing Ordinance Amendment (Introduced by:  Paul Evans, Zoning Compliance Specialist)
	I-5 Disposal/Sale of Remnant Property (Introduced by:  Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development and Brenda Carter, City Manager’s Office Intern)
	I-6 2014 Tri-Party Program – Concrete Slab Replacement – Big Beaver Road, Coolidge to Civic Center Drive (Introduced by:  Steve Vandette, City Engineer)
	I-7 Contract Ratification - Troy Communication Supervisors Association (TCSA) (Introduced by:  Jeanette Menig, Human Resources Director)

	J.  CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – March 3, 2014
	b) City Council Special Meeting Minutes-Draft – March 3, 2014

	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:
	a) Proclamation to Keith Stark to Celebrate the 40th Anniversary of Stark Reagan, P.C., as a Business in the City of Troy

	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Pump Repair and Emergency Services – Indoor and Outdoor Pools
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Asphalt Paving Materials – Hot Patch
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Option to Renew – Printing Services for the Troy Today Quarterly Newsletter
	d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Lowest Acceptable Bidder – Replacement Batteries for Emergency Back-Up System for the Community Center

	J-5 Act 51 Mileage Certification for 2013
	J-6 Mondrian Properties Belleclaire LLC v City of Troy Lawsuit
	J-7 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – Galleria of Troy – Phase II Project 13.923.3
	J-8 Bid Waiver – Professional Services – Police Department Promotional Testing Services
	J-9 Switch to Community Blue PPO and PA 152
	J-10 Scheduling of City Council Special Meetings

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time):
	a) Troy City Code Chapter 26 – Parks – General Regulations


	L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	N. COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	N-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	O. REPORTS:
	O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final – February 5, 2014
	b) Planning Commission-Draft – February 11, 2014

	O-2 Department Reports:
	a) Building Department Activity Report – February, 2014
	b) Travel Expense Request – Council Member Ellen Hodorek - MML Core Training - February 7, 2014 and February 8, 2014 - Frankenmuth, Michigan

	O-3 Letters of Appreciation:  None Submitted
	O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted

	P. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES):
	Q. STUDY ITEMS:
	Q-1 No Study Items

	R. CLOSED SESSION:
	R-1 No Closed Session

	S. ADJOURNMENT:

	20140407 Agenda - J-02b Special Study Meeting Minutes-Draft - April 1, 2014
	20140407 Agenda - J-03b  Fair Housing Month - April, 2014
	20140407 Agenda - J-04a  SPR3 Exercise Renewal Option - Mowing and Landscape Services
	20140407 Agenda - J-04b  SPR3 Exercise Renewal Option - General Consulting Engineering Services
	20140407 Agenda - J-04c  SPR1 Award to Low Bidders - Home Chore Lawn and Yard Services
	ITB-COT 14-09 HC Lawn&Yard Services.pdf
	Lawn Care 1


	20140407 Agenda - J-04d  SPR3 Exercise Renewal Option - Aggregates
	20140407 Agenda - J-04e  SPR1 Award to Low Bidder - Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and Debris
	ITB-COT 14-07 Hauling Dirt & Debris .pdf
	ITB-COT 14-07


	20140407 Agenda - J-04f   SPR8 Best Value Award - Upgraded Landscape Maintenance
	RFP-COT 14-04 Upgraded Landscape Mntce.pdf
	RFP-COT 14-04_1
	RFP-COT 14-04_2

	Best Value SR8 - RFP - Upgraded Landscape Maintenance- WeightedRatingSummary 14-04.pdf
	In order to equate the price to the weighted evaluation process scoring, the prices had to be converted into a score with the base of 100.  NOTE:  Vendors are listed in the order of their summary score for the proposal and price, from highest to lowes...
	Weighted Average Score for Proposals: 30%
	Weighted Average Score for Price: 40%
	Summary:   Proposal and Price Scores
	FINAL SCORE:
	SELECTION PROCESS
	A. Compliance with qualifications criteria
	B. Completeness of the proposal
	F. Evaluation Process





	20140407 Agenda - J-04g  SPR4 Award - Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement - Fleet Vehicles
	Red Holman Buick, GMC   Budget    Unit Cost        Estimated Total
	(4) 1500 GMC Pickups 2X4    $  80,000.00      $19,783.00  $   79,132.00
	(1) 3500 GMC Savana Cargo Van    $  24,000.00      $22,660.00  $   22,660.00

	20140407 Agenda - J-04h  SPR1 Award to Low Bidder - Contract 14-1 - Section 36 Overlay
	20140407 Agenda - J-05 Request for Recognition as Nonproft Organization from Troy Community Lions Club
	20140407 Agenda - J-06  Adoption of the Oakland County Hazard Mitigation Plan
	20140407 Agenda - J-07  Troy Racquet Club Rates
	20140407 Agenda - J-08  Addendum #1 - Aqauatic Center Backwash Discharge Modification
	BidTab - Short.pdf
	Sheet1

	Engineers_Estimate.pdf
	ESTIM 03-03-2014

	ADPE0D2.tmp
	Sheet1


	20140407 Agenda - J-09  Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed and Easements for Belleclaire Estates Site Condominium
	20140407 Agenda - K-01a  Announcement of Public Hearing - Proposed Conditional Rezoning (File Number CR 011) - Amber Town Center Townhouses and Lofts
	20140407 Agenda - K-02b  Detroit Water and Sewer Department - Discussion, Status and Business Issues
	20140407 Agenda - O-01a  Civil Service Commission (Act 78)-Final - September 11, 2012
	20140407 Agenda - O-01b  Planning Commission-Final - February 11, 2014
	20140407 Agenda - O-01c  Traffic Committee-Final - February 19, 2014
	20140407 Agenda - O-01d  Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft - March 5, 2014
	20140407 Agenda - O-01e  Planning Commission-Draft - March 11, 2014
	20140407 Agenda - O-01f  Planning Commission-Final - March 11, 2014
	20140407 Agenda - O-01g  Civil Service Commission (Act 78)-Draft - March 13, 2014
	20140407 Agenda - O-01h  Traffic Committee-Draft - March 19, 2014
	20140407 Agenda - O-02a  Fire Department and Alliance Mobile Health 2013 Annual Reports
	20140407 Agenda - O-02a Fire Department and Alliance Mobile Health 2013 Annual Reports - Fire.pdf
	2013 Incident Count
	2013 Occupancy & Cause
	2013 Incident Related
	2013 Response Times
	2013 Activity
	2013 Personnel
	2013 Stations
	2013 Supplemental


	20140407 Agenda - O-02b  Building Department Activity Report - March, 2014
	20140407 Agenda - O-03a  LoT to Chief Mayer from Eric Messinger Thanking  Sgt Novak and PO G Pokley for their Assistance
	20140407 Agenda - O-03b  LoT to Chief Mayer from Art Leftridge Thanking Troy Police Academy and Ride Along with Officers Alter and Muhlenbeck

	20140407 Agenda - K-02a Ordinance Amendment - Chapter 74 Solicitations.pdf
	140312 CHAPT074 Memo.pdf
	140312 CHAPT074 working

	20140407 Agenda - I-04  Troy City Code Chapter 26 - Parks - General Regulations Amendment .pdf
	20140407 Agenda - I-04  Troy City Code Chapter 26 - Parks - General Regulations Amendment
	Chapter 26 Ordinance 03.24.14
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND
	CHAPTER 26 - CITY OF TROY ORDINANCE
	Section 2. Amendment
	Section 4. Savings







